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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Continental Airlines, Inc. is a major U.S. air carrier engaged in the business of transporting passengers, cargo
and mail. The terms “Continental,” “we,” “us,” “our” and similar termns refer 10 Continental Airlines, Inc. and, unless the
conlext indicaies otherwise, its consolidated subsidiaries,

We are the world’s fifth largest airline as measured by the number of scheduled miles flown by revenue
passengers in 2007. Including our wholly-owned subsidiary, Continental Micronesia, Inc. (“CMI™), and regional flights
operated on our behalf under capacity purchase agreements with other carriers, we operate more than 2,900 daily
departures. As of December 31, 2007, we flew to 134 domestic and 130 intemational destinations and offered additional
connecting service through alliances with domestic and foreign carriers. We directly served 27 European cities, nine
South American cities, Tel Aviv, Delhi, Mumbai, Hong Kong, Beijing and Tokyo as of December 31, 2007. In addition,
we provide service to more destinations in Mexico and Central America than any other U.S. airline, serving 41 cilies.
Through our Guam hub, CMI provides extensive service in the western Pacific, including service to more Japanese cities
than any other U.S. carrier.

We operate our domestic route system primarily through our hubs in the New York metropolitan area at
Newark Liberty International Airport (“New York Liberty™). in Houston, Texas at George Bush Intercontinental Airport
(“Houston Bush™) and in Cleveland, Ohio at Hopkins International Airport (“*Cleveland Hopkins™). Each of our
domestic hubs is located in a large business and population center, contributing to a large amount of “origin and
destination” traffic. Our hub system allows us to transport passengers between a large number of destinations with
substantially more frequent service than if each route were served directly. The hub system also allows us 1o add service
10 a new destination from a large number of cities using only one or a limited number of aircrafi. As of December 31,
2007, we operated 72% of the average daily departures from New York Liberty, 84% of the average daily departures
from Houston Bush and 70% of the average daily departures from Cleveland Hopkins, in each case based on scheduled
commercial passenger departures and including regional flights flown for us under capacity purchase agreements.

We directly serve destinations throughout Europe, Canada, Mexico, Central and South America and the
Caribbean, as well as Tel Aviv, Delhi, Mumbai, Hong Kong, Beijing and Tokyo. We also provide service lo numerous
other destinations through codesharing arrangements with other carriers and have extensive operations in the western
Pacific conducted by CMI. As measured by 2007 available seat miles, approximately 48% of our mainline operations is
dedicated to international traffic.

New York Liberty is a significant intemnational gateway for our operations. From New York Liberty, we
served 27 cities in Europe, two cities in India, eight cities in Canada, six cities in Mexico, seven cities in Central
America, four cities in South America, 18 Caribbean destinations, Tel Aviv, Hong Kong, Beijing and Tokyo at
December 31, 2007. During 2007, we added service between New York Liberty and Athens, Greece and Mumbai,
India. We inaugurated service from New York Liberty and Houston Bush to London’s Heathrow Airport at the end of
March 2008, while continuing daily service from both hub airports to London’s Gatwick Airport as well as seasonal
service between Cleveland Hopkins and Gatwick. We expect to begin daily service between New York Liberty and
Shanghai, China in the spring of 2009,

Houston Bush is the focus of our flights to destinations in Mexico and Central and South America. As of
December 31, 2007, we flew from Houston Bush to 31 cities in Mexico, all seven countries in Central America, nine
cities in South America, six Caribbean destinations, three cities in Canada, three cities in Europe and Tokyo.

At December 31, 2007, we flew from Cleveland Hopkins 1o three cities in Canada, one Caribbean destination
and one cily in Mexico. We also have seasonal service between Cleveland Hopkins and London and plan 1o begin
seasonal service between Cleveland Hopkins and Paris in 2008.

From its hub operations based on the island of Guam, as of December 31, 2007, CMI provided service to eight
cilies in Japan, more than any other U.S, carrier, as well as other Pacific rim destinations, including Manila in the
Philippines; Hong Kong; Caims, Australia and Bali, Indonesia. CMI is the principal air carrier in the Micronesian
Islands, where it ptoneered scheduled air service in 1968. CMI’s route system is linked to the U.S. market through Hong
Kong. Tokyo and Honolulu, each of which CMI serves non-stop from Guam.

|




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA,

Statement of Operations Data (in millions except per
share data) (1):

OPErating TEVENUE ....vceevemreecrsississsisisis s ssssssenassrssnssons
OPErating EXPENMSES .vuvirveivcreriem e s ssnsseressssarsssssassnssanssenseres

Operating income {J0SS}.......covimeneiemrmercererictitsssrssie e

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change

N accounting Principle ...
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle...........
Net INCOME {JUSSY o.viverrrerirrreeeereeereeeeesrmiesisse st mesesers s senssen

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change

in accounting prinCiple.... ..o,
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........
Net inCome (10S8) .vveeeeereirieriirenerce e e nerones

Diluted:
Income {loss) before curnulative effect of change
in accounting principle.....

Curnulative effect of change n accoummg pnncnple .......
NEL INCOMIE (1055 vvvervrriiceeererrrerrecnsseensenerreraenrenesstessssis

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$14,232 513,128 $11,208 $9.899 $9,001
§3.545 12,660 11,247 10,137 8.813
687 468 (39) (238) 188
459 369 (68) (409) 28

- (26) - - -

459 343 (68) (409) 28
$4.73 $4.15 $(0.96) 5(6.19) $0.43
- (0.29} __- __- -
$4.73 $3.86 $(€.96) $(6.19 5043
$4.18 $3.353 $(0.97 $(6.25) $0.41
- {0.23) - - _ -
$4.18 $3.30 $(0.97) $(6.25) $0.41




(1) Includes the following special income (expense) items (in mittions) for year ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Operating revenue:
Change in expected redemption of frequent
flyer mileage credits sold........ocecveernnniiiniinncnens $ - § - $ - 5 - $ 24
Operating (expense) income:
Gain on sales of aircrafi and aircrafi-related
(charges) credils ... e 22 18 16 (87 (86)
Pension settlement/curtailment charges ................. 3D (39 (83) - -
Pilot long-term disability charge.... eeerneenenaes (4) - - - -
Surrender of stock price based RSU awards .......... - 14 - - -
Termination of 1993 service agreement with
United Micronesia Development Association...... - - - (34) -
Frequent flyer reward redemplion cost
adjustment ..........c.c..... - - - (18)
Security fee relmbursemenl ................................... - - - - 176
Severance and other special charges..........ccceeeeee. - - - - (14)
Nonoperating income:
Gains on INVESIMENIS.........oooiii e 37 92 204 - 305
Income tax expense:
Increase in deferred tax asset valuation allowance.... (104) - - - -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
PINCIPAL ottt ee e - (26) - - -
As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance Sheet Data (in millions):
Unresiricted cash, cash equivalents and short-lerm
IOVESTIMEIUS coveecereeieseer et saesaesteebesessesban e eenesoeseeenmesmneanenes $2.803 $2.484 $ 1,957 $1.458 $1,430
TOLAL BSSEIS cooeoieeere ettt e e e 12,105 11,308 10,529 10,511 10,620
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations.............coueeene. 4,366 4859 5,057 5.167 5,558
Stockholders’ €quily ..o.oooveeeeeee e 1,550 347 226 135 727




Selected Operating Data

We have two reportable segments: mainline and regional. The mainline segment consists of flights to
cilies using larger jets while the regional segment currently consists of flights with a capacity of 50 or fewer seats
{for jets) or 79 or fewer seats {for turboprops). As of December 31, 2007, the regional segment was operated by
Expresslet Airlines, Inc. ("Expresslet™), Chautauqua Airlines, Inc. ("Chautauqua™) and Champlain Enterprises, Inc.

("CommutAir") through capacity purchase agreements.

Mainline Operations:

Passengers (thousands) (1) .......coccoeviniiiiiennicnccinnne.
Revenue passenger miles (millions) (2).......................
Available seat miles (millions) (3).....cvvereerieinnncnneecns
Passenger load faclor (4) ......cccovvvvninissinnissinieeees
Cargo ton miles (MIUNONS) .c.coeriiniiceearer e

Passenger revenue per available seat mile (cents)........
Total revenue per available seat mile {(cents)..................
Average yield per revenue passenger mile (cents) (5)....
Average fare per revenue passenger ...,

Cost per available seat mile, including special

charges (Cents) (6) .oco.ocovvviniesiininiin e
Average price per gallon of fuel, including fuel

LAXES (COMLS) ooeeeiieieieeie e reeee e ee s
Fuel gallons consumed (millions)............ccooinnnnn.

Actual aircrafi in fleet at end of period (7} ...................
Average length of aircrafi flight {miles) ......coocceeeecee
Average daily utilization of each aircraft (hours) (8) .....

Regional Operations:

Passengers (thousands) (1) ...
Revenue passenger miles {millions) (2)........cccoceeeenn
Available seat miles (millions) (3)....ccooveeiiiiinnnncen.
Passenger load factor (4) ......cccoovvmeeniiiiiiccceenee
Passenger revenue per available seat mile {cents) .........
Average yield per revenue passenger mile {cenis) (3)....
Actual aircraft in fleet at end of period (7} ..o vveeriinas

Consolidated Operations:

Passengers (thousands) (1) ....cocnvnniinininececnicninininnes
Revenue passenger miles (millions) (2},
Available seat miles (millions) (3)...c.cooveeiieriinieiinninnn,
Passenger load faclor (4) oo
Passenger revenue per available seat mile {cents) ..........
Average yield per revenue passenger mile (cents) (5)....

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
50,960 48,788 44,939 42,743 40,613
84,309 79,192 71,261 65.734 59.165

103,139 97.667 89,647 84,672 78.385
81.7% 81.1% 79.5% 77.6% 75.5%
1,037 1.075 1,018 1.026 917
10.46 9.96 932 8.82 8.79
11.65 11.17 10.46 9.283 981
12.80 12.29 11.73 11.37 11.64
$214.03 $201.78 $188.67 $177.90 $172.83
10.83 10.56 10.22 9.84 9,53
217.53 206.35 177.55 119.01 91.40
1,542 1,471 1,376 1.333 1,257
365 366 356 349 355
1,450 1,431 1,388 1,325 1,270
11:34 11:07 10:31 9:55 9:19

17,970 18,3314 16,076 13,739 11,445

9,856 10,325 8,938 7.417 5,769
12,599 13,251 11,973 10410 8,425
78.2% 77.9% 74.7% 71.3% 68.5%

17.48 17.16 15.67 15.09 15.31
22.35 22.03 20.99 21.18 22.35
263 282 266 245 224
68,930 67,119 61,015 56,482 52,058
94,165 89,517 80.199 73,151 64,934
115,738 110918 101,620 95,082 86,810
81.4% 80.7% 78.9% 76.9% 74.8%
11.23 10.82 10.07 9.51 9.42
13.80 13.41 12.76 12.36 12.60




(M
(2)
(3)

(4)
(3)
(6)

0]

(8)

The number of revenue passengers measured by each flight segment flown.

The number of scheduled miles flown by revenue passengers,

The number of seats available for passengers mulliplied by the number of scheduled miles those seats are
flown.

Revenue passenger miles divided by available seat miles.

The average passenger revenue received for each revenue passenger mile flown.

Includes operating expense special items noted in (1) under "Statement of Operations Data" above. These
special items increased (decreased) mainline cost per available seat mile by 0.01, 0.03, 0.07, 0.16 and (0.11) in
each of the five years, respectively.

Excludes aircrafi that were removed from service. Regional aircraft include aircraft operated by all carriers
under capacily purchase agreements, but exclude any aircrafl operated by Expresslel outside the scope of our
capacity purchase agreement with Expresslet (the "Expresslet CPA™),

The average number of hours per day that an aircraft flown in revenue service is operuted (from gate departure
to gate arrival).




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

The following discussion contains forward-looking stutements that are not limited to historical fucts, but reflect
our current beliefs, expectations or intentions regarding fiture events. All forward-looking statements involve risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. For
examples of those risks and uncertainties, see the cautionary statements contained in ltem 14 of our annual report on
Form 10-K. "Risk Factors - Risk Factors Relating to the Company” and "Risk Factors - Risk Factors Relating to the
Airline Industryv.” We undertake no obligation to pubiicly update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances that may arise after the date of this report.  Hereinafier, the term "Continental,” "we," "us,”
"our" and similar terms refer to Continental Airlines, Inc. and, unless the context indicates otherwise, its consolidated
subsidiaries.

Overview

We recorded net income of $459 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared 1o net income
of 5343 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, The improvement in nel income for 2007 was primarily the
result of higher revenue, FHowever, our results for the year were adversely impacted by a significant increase in fuel

prices and a special non-cash charge of $104 million 10 increase our deferred 1ax asset valuation allowance. The
increase in fuel prices in recent years has caused most U.S. domestic carriers to reduce capacity and increase fares.

2007 Financial Highlights

e  Operating revenue grew 8.4% during 2007 as compared to 2006 due to more flights, higher load factors and
increased domestic and international yields.

¢ Operating income, a key measure of our performance, increased 46.8% during 2007 as compared to 2006 due to
increased operating revenue.

e Unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments exceeded $2.8 billion at December 31, 2007.
2007 Operationat Highlights

» Consolidated traffic increased 5.2% and capacity increased 4.3% during 2007 as compared to 2006, resulting in a
consolidated load factor of 1.4%, 0.7 points above the prior year consolidated load factor.

»  We continued our intenational expansion, adding new nonstop service between New York Liberty and Athens,
Greece and Mumbai. India,

s Despite operaling a large number of flights in the congested New York airspace and having record traffic levels, we
recorded a DOT on-time arrival rate of 74.3% for Continental mainfine flights and a systemwide mainline segment
completion factor of 99.2% for the year.

s We took delivery of two Boeing 777 aircrafi.

¢ Sales on continental.com, our lowest cost distribution channel, totaled $3.5 billion, an increase of 19% over 2006.

Outlook
Although we have been profitable for the past two years, there are many industry-specific factors that could
have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition in 2008 and thereafler. Among the most

significant of these factors are fuel costs, economic conditions, industry consolidation, competition, labor and other costs
and capacity.




Fuel Costs. High fuel prices continue to increase our costs and diminish our profitability. Although we have
recently experienced some success raising ticket prices (including fuel surcharges) in response to record high fuel
costs, further increases in jet fuel prices or disruptions in fuel supplies could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, We believe that our young, fuel-efficient fleet continues to
provide us with a competitive advantage relative to our peers. Based on our expected fuel consumption in 2008, a
one dollar increase in the price of crude oil will increase our annual fuel expense by approximately 545 million,
holding the refining margin constant and before considering the impact of our fuel hedging program. As of
December 31, 2007, we had hedged approximately 20% and 5% of our projected fuel requirements for the first and
second quarters of 2008, respectively, using heating oil option coniracts forming zero cost collars with a weighted
average call price of $2.44 per gallon and a weighted average put price of $2.28 per gallon.

Economic Conditions. Many economists have reported that the U.S. economy is slowing, and may be
headed 1oward a recession. The airline industry is highly cyclical, and the growth in demand for air travel is
correlated to the growth in the U.S. and global economies. A recession in these economies could have a maierial
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, the declining value of the U.S. dollar
relative to foreign currenctes, such as the British pound, Japanese yen and the euro, increases the costs to U.S.
residenis of traveling internationaliy, thereby reducing the demand for air travel and potentially having a material
adverse effect on us.

Indusiry Consolidation. Recent media reports have indicated thal Delta Air Lines is considering a
consolidation or other similar transaction with Northwest Airlines or another major U.S. carrier. Our preference is
10 remain independent, but certain consolidations could adversely affect our competitive position. Our ability to
engage in a business combination is currently restricied by our Series B preferred stock held by Northwest Airlines.
However, the execution of a definitive agreement by Northwest providing for a2 change of contro! of Northwest
would. under certain circumstances, eliminate these restrictions. Although we cannot predict whether consolidation
will occur or the impact on us of any consolidation within the U.S. airline industry, we are prepared 1o move quickly
and aggressively to defend and protect the interests of all of our stakeholders, including our stockholders,
employees, customers and the communilies we serve.

Competition. Competition in most of our domestic markets from low-cost carriers, as well as our response
(o this competition, continues to resull in increased capacily and reduced yields in many of those markets. In
addition, several of our domeslic competitors are contlinuing to increase their international capacity, including
service to some destinations that we currently serve, resulting in lower yields and/or load factors in affected markets.
The "open skies" agreement between the U.S. and the European Union, which becomes effective on March 30,
2008, will also result in increased competition from European and U.5. airlines in these international markets, and
may give rise to additional consolidation or betier integration opportunitics among European carriers,

The "open skies" agreement, while potentially increasing our competition, is also expected to enhance our
ability to compete with European and U.S. airlines that have historically provided service from London's Heathrow
Airport to destipations in the U.S. We have acquired slots at Heathrow, and we plan 1o inaugurate service from New
York Liberty and Houston Bush to Heathrow at the end of March 2008, while continuving daily service from both
hub airports to London’s Gatwick Airport as well as seasonal service between Cleveland Hopkins and Gatwick.

In addition, Air France-KLM, Delta Air Lines and Northwest Airlines have filed for anti-trust immunity
seeking permission to form a new trans-Atlantic joint venture among those airlines and the coordination of routes.
fares, schedules and other maiters among those airlines, Alitalia and CSA Czech Airlines. Air France-KLM and
Delta Air Lines announced in October 2007, in connection with this application for anti-trust immunity, their plans
for a joint venture beginning in March 2008 that will initially cover all of their trans-Atlantic flights between the
airlines’ hubs and all of their flights between London's Heathrow Airport and any U.S. destination.

Labor and Other Costs. Our ability to sustain our profitability also depends on continuing ocur efforts to
implement and maintain a more compeltitive cost structure. The collective bargaining agreements with our pilots,
mechanics and certain other work groups become amendable beginning in December 2008, and we began discusstons
with our pilots' union in 2007 on the non-economic conltract issues pursuant to our protocol agreement with them. We
cannot predict the cutcome of our negotiations with our pilots and mechanics, although significant increases in the pay

7




and benefits resulting from new collective bargaining agreements could have a material adverse effect on us. We have
implemented $1.6 billion of annual cost-cutting and revenue-generating measures since 2002, $500 million of which was
achieved through our 2005 pay and benefit cost reductions. Additionally, during 2007 we completed additional
initiatives related to contracts with major suppliers. These new initiatives, along with several other smaller initiatives,
should reduce our costs by approximately $100 million annually when fully implemented. We began to realize a portion
of these additional savings beginning in the fourth quarter of 2007,

Capacity. We currently intend to grow our mainline capacity between 2% and 3% in 2008. Over the long run,
we are targeling mainline capacity growth of between 5% and 7% annually, although actual growth may differ from
these targets in any given year. Specific factors reflected in these capacity growth targets are as follows:

e In 2008, we expect lo decrease our domestic mainline capacity slightly compared 1o 2007. In the international
market, we plan to inaugurate service from our hubs at Houston Bush and New York Liberty to London's Heathrow
Airport at the end of March 2008, as discussed above.

e In 2009, our expected mainline capacity growth includes the commencement of daily service between New York
Liberty and Shanghai. China in the spring of 2609,

e The first three deliveries of our 25 Boeing 787 aircrafi on firm order are currently scheduled for 2009. Boeing
recently announced that its initial Boeing 787 deliveries would begin in early 2009, as opposed to the originally
scheduled initial delivery date of May 2008. Boeing has not informed us of the effect, if any, this latest delay will
have on our scheduled deliveries; however, it is possible that our deliveries could be significantly delayed. Our
mainline capacity growth for 2009 and thereafter may be reduced below the target range if there are stgnificant
delays in the scheduled deliveries of our Boeing 787 aircrafl, particularly if we are unable to make alternative
arrangements 10 acquire long-range aircraft on commercially acceptable terms.

Our ability to achieve our targeted capacity growth will be subject to, among other things, any capacity
constraints imposed on our operations. The FAA has designated several airports, including New York's John F.
Kennedy Airport ("Kennedy") and LaGuardia Airport ("LaGuardia"), as "high density traffic airports.” To address
concerns about airport congestion, the FAA has imposed operating restrictions at Kennedy and LaGuardia. We expect
operating restrictions similar to those al Kennedy to be imposed by the FAA at New York Liberty. Although we do not
believe that the anticipated operating restrictions will have a material effect on our operations at New York Liberty, we
cannot predict the impact of future capacity constraints or other restrictions on our operations that might be imposed by
the FAA or other regulators, agencies or Congress.




Results of Operations

Special ltems, The comparability of our financial results between years is affected by a number of special
items. Qur results for each of the last three years included the following special items {in millions):

Gain on sale of aircraft and aircraft-related charges (1) .o
Pension settlement/curtailment charges (2) ...coooeeei e s
Pilot long-term disability charge {1).....coovreiioirieier e i
Surrender of stock price based RSU awards (3) oo
Gains on sale or dispositions of investments (4):

ARINC Lot eres e rerr e ses e e e reemn e e saeseeene e eaebeeb et

ERPIESSIEL. .ot e

COPH et e e e e ne s nan e
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (5).....ccoovvievcinieneiinn i
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (SFAS 123R) (3) .vovcvvveenen.

(1) See Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report.
(2)  See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report.
(3)  See Note & to our consolidated financial statements included in this report.

(4} See Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report.
(5)  See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2006

Consolidated Results of Operations

Income {Expense)

2007 2006 2005

5 22 S18 S16

(31) (59) (83)

4) - -

. 14 .

30 ] .

7 ] 9%

) 92 106

(104) - -

_ - (26) -
3(80) $39

5131

Significant components of our consolidated operating results for the year ended December 31 were as follows

(in miliions. except percentage changes):

Increase % Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease}  (Decrease)
Operating reVENUE...........ceorreerierereceeaereenceeenenneseeneanens $14,232 513,128 SL.104 8.4%
Operating eXPeNSES.....coveeverirerrirerneiresreseerasrasassnsrrereeneees 13,545 12,660 885 7.0%
OPperating INCOIME .......c.ovveireieee e 687 468 219 46.8%
Nonoperating income (EXPENSE} .....co.eveeverrierererreereens (120 (99) 22 22.2%
INCOME LAXES ...cvveireiiiie v cte et es e e e (107 - (107 NM
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..... - (26} _26 NM
NEL INCOMIE. c.cvveviereveivieriees e srsresess s en s eenenerenssrenesseneseass $_459 $.343 5_116 338%

NM - Not meaningful

Each of these items is discussed in the following sections.




Operating Revenue. The table below shows components of operating revenue for the year ended December
31, 2007 and period 1o period comparisons for operating revenue, passenger revenue per available seat mile ("RASM")
and available seat miles ("ASMs") by geographic region for our mainline and regional operations:

% Increase (Decrease)

Revenue in 2007 vs 2006
{in millions) __ Revenue RASM ASMs
Passenger revenue:
DOMESHC .cvvveeveieeeemvenisrinesnee e s $ 5,731 5.9 % 1.3% 45%
Trans-Atlantic........ooveververreenens 2,577 23.6% 10.4 % 11.9%
Latin AMErical..ovivvveevecineeveees 1,510 12.4 % 98% 24 %
PACIHIC et 974 9.7 % 8.6 % 1.1 %
Total Mainline ..o, 10,792 10.9 % 50% 5.6%
Regional........ccoeieiiiiien 2.203 (3.1)% 1.9 % {(4.9%
TOlal oo 12,995 8.3% 38% 43%
Cargo.. oo 453 (0.9Y%
OHNET e 784 17.4 %
Operaling revenue ........uvwveeeees £14,232 8.4 %

Passenger revenue increased due to increased traffic and several fare increases. Along with other domestic
airlines, we attemnpted to raise fares to offsel fuel price increases. The fare increases were successful in part due 1o less
capacity in domestic markets from reduced flying by competitors. Consolidated RASM increased year-over-year due
to higher yields and load factors. The improved RASM reflects our actions taken to improve the mix of local versus
flow traffic and reduce discounting. Consolidated RASM was adversely affected by our reduction in regional flying,
which historically has had significantly higher RASM than our mainline flying due to the shorter stage length of
regional flights.

Cargo revenue decreased due to a reduction in the volume of mail carried for the U.S. Postal Service. Other
revenue increased as a result of higher revenue associated with sales of mileage credits in our OnePass frequent flyer
program and $79 million of rental income on aircraft leased 1o Expresslet but not operated for us during 2007.

Operating Expenses. The table below shows period-to-period comparisons by type of operating expense
for our consolidated operations for the year ended December 31 (in millions, except percentage changes):

Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease) % Increase

Aircraft fuel and related 12XES .ooiviivvcer e $3.354 $3.034 $320 105 %
Wages, salaries and relaled Costs ..o, 3,127 2,875 252 88%
Regiconal capacity purchase, net...........cccovvvncnrvnnene. 1,793 1,791 2 0.1%
Adrcrafl rentals ..o...ooooiiiveiin 994 990 4 04 %
Landing fees and other rentals ........ccoccoovevniviciinins 790 764 26 3.4%
DiStIDULION COBLS «.vvreeeeeeecrecececeee e s 682 650 32 4.9%
Maintenance, materials and repairs.......c..oecociiiinn 621 547 74 13.5%
Depreciation and amortization ... 413 391 22 56%
Passenger SEEVICES c.oovurmreervvrrrriiernsisveeas e 389 356 33 93%
Special charges....viveeniineeree e 13 27 (14 NM
OUHED ... sn et 1,369 1,235 134 10.9 %

$13,543 $12.660 5883 7.0%




Operating expenses increased 7.0% primarily due {o the following:

Aircraft fuel and related taxes increased due to higher fuel prices and a 5.6% increase in mainline capacity.
The average jel fuel price per gallon including related taxes increased from $2.06 in 2006 to $2.18 in 2007.
Fuel expense includes gains related 1o our fuel hedging program of $31 million in 2007. There was a
negative impact of' $40 million to fuel expense related 1o losses from hedging activity in 2006,

Wages, salaries_and refated costs increased primarily due to a 3.7% increase in the average number of full
time equivalent employees necessary 1o supporl our growth and an increase of $72 million for profit
sharing and on-time performance incentive expenses.

Regional capacity purchase, net includes expenses related to our capacity purchase agreemems. Our most
significant capacity purchase agreement is with Expresslet. Regional capacity purchase, net includes all
fuel expense on flights operated for us under capacity purchase agreements and is net of our rental income
on aircraft leased to Expresslet and flown for us. The net amounts consisted of the following for the year
ended December 31 (in millions, except percentage changes):

Increase % Increase

2007 2006 {Decrease) {Decrease)
Capacity purchase expenses...........ccouere. $1,379 51,461 5(82) (5.6)%
Fuel and fuel taxes ..o, 680 663 17 26%
Aircrafl sublease income........c..oeccvveienes (266} (333) {67) (20.1)%
Regional capacity purchase, net ............ $1,793 5L791 5.2 0.1 %

The net expense was higher in 2007 than in 2006 primarily due to higher fuel expense. Fuel expense
increased 2.6% over the 2006 expense as a result of higher fuel prices. Sublease income was lower in 2007
as 67 aircraft were removed from our service. Sublease income of $79 million on aircraft operated by
ExpressJet outside the scope of the Expresslet CPA is recorded as other revenue. These factors were offset
by a decrease in regional capacity, which was atiributable to reduced flying by Expresslet, partially offset
by new capacity provided by Chautauqua.

Maintenance, materials and repairs increased primarily due to higher engine maintenance costs, driven by
increased flight activity and the timing of engine overhauls. In addition, contractual engine repair rates
escalated in accordance with their contracts due to the aging of our fleet. The costs of component repairs
and expendable materials increased primarily due to the aging of our fleet and the timing of overhauls for
more costly components, including landing gears.

Other operaling expenses increased primarily due to a greater number of international flights, which
resulted in increased air navigation fees and ground handling, security and related expenses.

Special charges in 2007 consisted of a $31 million non-cash settlement charge related to lump sum
distributions from our pilot-only defined benefit pension plan to pilots who retired and a $22 million gain
on the sale of three Boeing 737-500 aircrafi. Additionally, we recorded a $4 millien increase to the liability
for ihe long-term disability plan for our pilots related to 2 change in the mandatory retirement age for our
pilots from age 60 to 65. This change was signed into law on December 13, 2007. Special charges in 2006
consisted of $59 million of similar non-cash pension settlement charges, a $14 million credit related 1o our
officers' voluntary surrender of stock price based restricted stock unit ("RSU™) awards and an $18 million
credit atiributable to a reduction of our allowance for future lease payments and return conditions on
permanently grounded MD-80 aircraft following negotiated settlements with aircrafl lessors.

Nonoperating Income (Expense). Nonoperating income (expense) includes net interest expense (interest

expense less inlerest income and capitalized interest), income from other companies, gains from dispositions of




investments and any ineffectiveness of our derivative financial instruments. Total nonoperaling expense increased
$22 million in 2007 compared to 2006 due 1o the following:

e Net interest expense decreased $18 million primarily as a result of increased interest income on our higher
cash balances.

* Income from other companies, which included our equity in the earnings of Copa Holdings, S.A. ("Copa”)
and Expressyet Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings") and income related to our tax sharing agreement with Holdings
in 2006, was $43 million lower in 2007 as compared Lo 2006 as a resull of our reduced ownership inlerests
in Holdings and Copa and a decrease in income recognized from our tax sharing agreement with Holdings.

e Hedge ineffectiveness gains related 10 our fuel hedges totaled $14 million during 2007. This
ineffectiveness arose because our healing oil collars experienced a higher increase in value than the jet fuel
being hedged. Hedge ineffectiveness was not material in 2006.

e Gain on sale of invesiments in 2007 consisted of $30 million related to the sale of our interest in ARINC,
Inc. ("ARINC") and $7 million related to the sale of substantially all of our remaining interest in Holdings.
In 2006. we recognized a gain of $92 miltion related 10 the sale of 7.5 million shares of Copa's Class A
common stock.

Income Taxes. In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a special non-cash tax charge of $104 million to
increase the deferred tax asset valuation allowance to be fully reserved for certain NOLs, expiring in 2008 through
2011, which more likely than not will not be fully realized prior to their expiration. Additional income tax expense of
$3 million during 2007 is attributable to state and foreign income taxes. Because we have fully utilized NOLs that had
not been previously benefited during 2004 and 2005, we will begin recording income tax expense in 2008.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle. Stock price based RSU awards made pursuant to our
Long-Term Incentive and RSU Program can result in cash payments to our officers if there are specified increases in
our stock price over multi-year performance periods. Prior to our adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share Based Payment,” ("SFAS 123R™) on January 1, 2006, we had recognized
no liability or expense related 10 our stock price based RSU awards because the targets set forth in the program had
not been met. However. SFAS 123R requires these awards to be measured at fair value at each reporting date with
the related expense being recognized over the required service periods, regardless of whether the specified stock price
targets have been met. On January 1, 2006, we recognized a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle to
record our liability related 10 our outstanding stock price based RSU awards at that date, which reduced 2006 earnings by
$26 million, The final stock price based RSU awards were paid out in January 2008. Following this payout, there are no
stock price based RSU awards outstanding.

Segment Results of Operations

We have two reportable segments: mainline and regional. The mainline segment consists of flights 10
cities using larger jets while the regional segment currently consists of flights with a capacity of 50 or fewer seats
{for jets) or 79 or fewer seats (for turboprops). As of December 31, 2007, the regional segment was operated by
ExpressJet, Chautauqua and CommutAir through capacity purchase agreements. Under these agreements, we
purchase all of the capacity related 1o aircrafi covered by the contracts and are responsible for selting prices and
selling all of the related seat inventory. In exchange for the regional carriers' operation of the flights, we pay the
regional carriers for each scheduled block hour based on agreed formulas. Under the agreements, we recognize all
passenger, cargo and other revenue associated with each flight, and are responsible for all revenue-related expenses,
including commissions, reservations, catering and terminal rent at hub airports.

We evaluate segment performance based on several factors, of which the primary financial measure is
operating income (loss). However, we do not manage our business or allocate resources based on segment operating
profit or loss because (1) our flight schedules are designed to maximize revenue from passengers flying, (2) many
operations of the two segments are substantially integrated (for example, airport operations, sales and marketing,
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scheduling and ticketing), and (3) management decisions are based on their anticipated impact on the overall

network, not on one individual segment.

Mainline Results of Operations. Significant components of our mainline segment's operating resulis for the

year ended December 31 were as follows (in millions, except percentage changes):

2007 _2006
Operating TeVENUE. .........coccoieeeerievcecsnsraiieasnsaanss $12.018 510,907
Operating expenses:
Aircraft fuel and related taxes............o..cco. 3.354 3,034
Wages, salaries and related costs...................... 3,073 2,830
Alrcrafl rentals ..o 680 678
Landing fees and other remals..........ccooviviieenns 738 720
Distribulion CostS.....o.ooviiuienieeerreereeeeeree e 583 541
Maintenance, materials and repairs ... 621 547
Depreciation and amortization.............cceeu... 400 378
Passenger SeIvICes ... 374 341
Special Charges ..ooovoveeeve v 13 27
OMHET .t eresn s s ere e e s 1,335 1,218
11,174 10,314
Operating iNCOIME .....cocovveeeeesverereemsinisnrenenenees $_847 5593

% Increase

(Decrease)

10.2%

10.5%
8.6%
0.3%
2.5%
7.8%

13.5%
5.8%
9.7%

NM
9.6%
8.3%

42.8%

The variances in specific line items for the mainline segment were due to the same factors discussed under

consolidated results of operations.

Regional Results of Operations. Significant components of our regional segment's operating results for the

year ended December 31 were as follows (in millions, except percentage changes):

% Increase

2007 2006 (Decrease)
Operating revVenUE. .........cccccreeeieeereceeceeeoenes $2.214 $2,221 (0.37%
Operating expenses:
Wages, salaries and related costs.........cococo.. 54 45 9 200 %
Regiona!l capacity purchase, net..................... 1,793 1,791 2 0.1 %
Aircraft rentals....cocevee e 314 312 2 0.6 %
Landing fees and other rentals...................oc... 52 44 8 18.2 %
DisStribulion COSIS..coiiiiirrrrreerieereeirresr e erieneeeaes 99 109 (1m (9.2)%
Depreciation and amortization.......c..cceevveeennee. 13 13 - -
Passenger SErvices ..iiniiniieesrneninnnn 15 15 - -
(011 SN 34 17 17 100.0 %
2374 2,346 28 1.2%
Operaling loss ..o $(160) $_(125) 335 28.0%

The reported results of our regional segment do not reflect the total contribution of the regional segment 10
our system-wide operations. The regional segment generates revenue for the mainline segment as it feeds
passengers from smaller cities into our hubs. The variances in material line items for the regional segment reflect

generally the same factors discussed under consolidated results of operations.




Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2005
Consolidated Results of Operations

Significant components of our consolidated operating results for the year ended December 31 were as follows
(in millions. except percentage changes):

Increase % Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)  {Decrease)
OPEratiNg FEVEIUE.....crvevivererererrenrreseeserseeee e seeeeeeseenens $13,128 $11,208 $1,920 17.1%
Operating eXPENSES......coovvrerrrarrorisrmrssssessesseseeessanens 12,660 11.247 1.413 12.6%
Operating iNCOME ..o 468 (3% 507 NM
Nonoperating inCome (EXPense} .......ccovvvieevnniinneinnns {99 (29 70 NM
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..... (26) - (26) NM
NEUIMCOIME. ...c.vicreerireir e esesressasrasassesensaees §_343 S_(68) 3411 NM

Each of these items is discussed in the following sections.

Operating Revenue. The table below shows components of operating revenue for the year ended December
31, 2006 and period to period comparisons for operating revenue, RASM and ASMs by geographic region for our
mainline and regional operations:

% Increase (Decrease)

Revenue in_2006 vs 2005
{in_millions) Revenue RASM ASMs
Passenger revenue:
DOoMESLC....cceeieeeieeceteverereanen $5413 134% 7.9% 5.1%
Trans-Atlanlic.........ccceveeeeeeeene. 2,085 203 % 3.0% 16.9%
Latin America.......ooeeveeereenennns 1,343 23.7 % 9.5% 13.0%
Pacific ..o, 888 15.6 % 7.6% 7.4%
Total Mainline ..........c..ieeeeeeeee 9,729 16.4 % 6.9% R9%
Regional......oocovvviinvecniinnnn, 2274 21.2% 9.5% 10.7%
TOUAl eevvereeeerere e eerenes 12,003 17.3% 7.4% 9.1%
Cargo. e 457 9.9%
OLhET o e re e 668 19.9%
Operating revenue ............cc.c...... 513,128 17.1%

Passenger revenue increased due to increased capacity, increased traffic and several fare increases.
Consolidated RASM increased year-over-year due to higher yields and load factors. The improved RASM reflects our
actions taken to improve the mix of local versus flow (raffic and reduce discounting.

Cargo revenue increased due to higher freight and mail volumes and increases in freight fuel surcharges.

Other revenue increased due principally to higher revenue associated with sales of mileage credits in our OnePass
frequent flyer program and passenger service fees.
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Operating Expenses. The table below shows period-to-period comparisons by lype of operaling expense

for our consolidated operations for the year ended December 31 (in millions, except percentage changes):

Increase % Increase

2006 2005 (Decrease)  (Decrease)
Aircraft fuel and related taxes .ovvvevrviverrerre e $3.034 $2,443 ¥ 591 24.2%
Wages, salaries and related costs ......coeeivvienincee. 2,875 2,649 226 8.5%
Regional capacity purchase, nef........ccccocevveivinveevnnnn, 1,791 1,572 219 13.9%
Aidrcraft Tentals .....ccoevveeee i 990 928 62 6.7%
Landing fees and other rentals ............ccooevrvierveerinnns 764 708 56 7.9%
DiStribution COSIS .....cccvvrerirvrnrerversens e serssesensesessens 650 588 62 10.5%
Maintenance, materials and repairs.........cocooeceenneene. 547 455 92 20.2%
Depreciation and amortization ..........cccccovevieiienneennn, 391 389 2 0.5%
PASSENZET SEIVICES ..oucvvieirec e neeese e seneean s 356 332 24 1.2%

Special charges.........cooovieiiieirerre e 27 67 (40) NM

Oher oottt er s 1,235 Lil6 119 10.7%
$12,660 $11,247 $1.413 12.6%

Operating expenses increased 12.6% primarily due to the following:

Aircraft fuel and related taxes increased due 10 a significant rise in fuel prices combined with an 8.9%
increase in mainline ASMs. The average jet fuel price per gallon including related taxes increased from
51.78 in 2005 to $2.06 in 2006. Fuel expense includes losses related to our fuel hedging program of $40
million in 2006. We had no fuel hedges in place during 2005.

Wages, salaries and related costs increased primarily due to $115 million in profit sharing expense and
related payroll taxes, an increase in our average number of employees to support our growth and $83
million additional siock-based compensation expense in 2006 related to stock options and stock price based
RSU awards following the adoption of SFAS 123R and expense related to profit based RSU awards
granted in 2006, partially offset by pay and benefil reductions and work rule changes for flight attendants
and certain CMI work groups.

Regional capacity purchase, net consisted of the following for the year ended December 31 (in millions,
excepl percentage changes):

Increase % Increase

2006 _2005 (Decrease) {Decrease)
Capacity purchase expenses................... $1.,461 $1,351 SLIG 8.1%
Fuel and fuel taxes .....coooevvoveemeeeees 663 331 132 24.9%
Aircrafi sublease income............oovveveveees (333} 310 223 7.4%
Regional capacity purchase, net ............. 31791 3L572 5219 13.9%

Regional capacity purchase, net increased due to a 10.7% increase in regional ASMs and increased fuel
prices, offset in part by lower block hour rates.

Maintenance, malterials and repairs increased primarily due to a higher volume of scheduled airframe
maintenance overhauls, which is driven by aircraft age. In addition, contractual engine repair rates escalated in
accordance with their contracts due to the aging of our fleet. Componeni repair costs increased as a result of

aircrafl aging and increased flight hours.

Other operating expenses increased pnmarily due to a greater number of international flights, which

resulted in increased air navigation fees and ground handling, security and related expenses.
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e Special charges in 2006 consisted of $59 million related to lump sum distributions from our pilot-only
defined benefit pension plan. Additionally, on February 1, 2006, our officers voluntarily surrendered their
vested stock price based RSU awards with a performance period ending March 31, 2006, resulting in a $14
miliion reduction of special charges. The remaining balance of special charges recognized during 2006 is
attributable to our permanently grounded MD-80 aircrafi. We reduced our accruals for future lease
payments and return conditions by $18 million following negotiated settlements with aircraft lessors. In
2005. we recorded special charges of $67 million, which consisted primarily of a curtailment charge of $43
million related to the freezing of the portion of our defined benefit pension plan attributable to pilots, a 540
million settlement charge related (o lump-sum distributions from the pilot-only defined benefit pension plan
and a $16 million reduction of our accrual for exit costs related to permanently grounded aircraft.

Nonoperating_Income (Expense). Total nonoperating expense increased $70 million in 2006 compared to
2005 due to the following:

s Net interest expense (interest expense less interest income and capitalized interest) decreased $74 million in
2006 due to higher interest income resulting from higher interest rates and higher cash balances as well as lower
interest expense resulting from lower debt balances, partially offset by higher rates on variable-rate debt.

e Income from other companies was $29 million lower in 2006 as compared to 2005 as a result of our reduced
ownership interests in Copa and Holdings and less income from our tax sharing agreement with Holdings.

e Gain on sale of investments in 2006 was $92 million related to the sale of 7.5 million shares of Copa's
Class A common stock. In 2005, we recognized gains of $98 million related to the contribution of 12.1
million shares of Holdings common stock 1o our primary defined benefit pension plan and $106 million related
to the sale of a portion of our investment in Copa.

income Taxes. Beginning in the first quarter of 2004, we concluded that we were required to provide a
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets due 1o our continued losses and our determination that it was more likely
than not that such deferred tax assets would ultimately not be realized. As a result, our losses for 2005 were not
reduced by any tax benefit. Consequently, we also did not record any provision for income laxes on our pre-tax
income in 2006 because we utilized a portion of the NOLs for which we had not previously recognized a benefil.

Curmnulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle. We adopted SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006.
Upon adoption, we recognized a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle to record our liability related to our
outstanding stock price based RSU awards at that date, reducing 2006 earnings by 526 million.




Segment Results of Operations

Mainline Results of Operations. Significant components of our mainline segment's operaling results for the
year ended December 31 were as follows (in millions, except percentage changes):

Increase % Increase
2006 2005 {Decrease) {Decrease)
Operating reVENUE ..o sses e eeesenes $10,907 $9.377 $1.530 16.3%
Operating expenses:
Aircraft fuel and related 1axes........cccoovivvvvveines 3,034 2,443 591 24.2%
Wages. salaries and relaled costs........oviiiennes 2,830 2,605 225 8.6%
Adrerafl rentals. ..o 678 640 38 5.9%
Landing fees and other rentals..........ccccoooevil 720 667 33 79 %
DIStEBULION COSES ..evvvvireereee et 541 494 47 9.5%
Maintenance, materials and repairs ..o 547 455 92 20.2 %
Depreciation and amortization.,........................ 378 378 - -
PASSENEET SETVICES Loovinveercreecsnnninsirrrriniereeeeneeas 341 318 23 72%
Special charges ..., 27 67 (40) NM
OUHET e 1,218 1.095 _123 11.2%
10,314 9,162 1,152 126 %
Operaling INCOME .....ovevrrerneerecrcrrirrsrcsseesneseaeas $S_593 215 S 378 175.8%

The variances in specific line items for the mainline segment were due to the same factors discussed under
consolidated results of operations.

Regional Results of Operations. Significant components of our regional segment’s operating results for the
year ended December 31 were as follows (in millions, except percentage changes):

Increase % Increase

2006 2005 (Decrease) (Decrease)
OpPeraling reVeNUE. .......ccowewururrermcereecarssirsissins 52,221 $1.831 $390 21.3%

Operating expenses:

Wages, salaries and related costs..........ccoevenns 45 44 ] 23%
Regional capacity purchase, net.......ooovveininns 1,791 1,572 219 13.9%
Adrcraft rentals . .....oooeevviiiiereciin e 312 288 24 83%
Landing fees and other rentals.........coccoevvinnas 44 41 3 1.3 %
Distribution oSS ..o 109 94 15 16.0 %
Depreciation and amortization.............coeeeene. 13 11 2 18.2%
PasSenger SErvICES .....oovvveurriviserescsremeneeaeeans 15 14 ] 7.1 %
OUNET oo eeeeeer s eeeeeseseseeeeeeeeensens 17 _21 (4 (19.0)%
2,346 2,085 261 12.5%
Operating loss.........oocovreeenevenercnccnrrercececenenens $(125) $.(254) $(129) (50.8)%

The reported results of our regional segment do not reflect the total contribution of the regional segment to
our system-wide operations. The regional segment generates revenue for the mainline segment as it feeds passengers
from smaller cities into our hubs. The variances in specific line items for the regional segment reflect generally the
same factors discussed under consolidated results of operations. ASMs for our regional operations increased by
10.7% in 2006 compared to 2005.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2007, we had $2.8 billion in unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments, which is $319 million higher than at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007, we also had $179
million of restricted cash, which was primarily collateral for estimated future workers' compensation claims,
performance bonds, letters of credit and credit card processing contracts. Restricted cash at December 31, 2006 totaled
5265 million.

Sources and Uses of Cash

Qperating Activities. Cash flows provided by operations for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $1.1
billion, an increase of $75 million over 2006, The increase in cash flows provided by operations in 2007 compared to
2006 is primarily the result of an increase in operating income and advance ticket sales associated with increased
capacity, partially offset by $111 million of profit sharing paid to our employees in 2007 and $90 million more of
contributions to our defined benefit pension plans in 2007 as compared to 2006.

Investing Aclivities. Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities for the year ended December 31
were as follows (in millions):

Cash
Increase
2007 2006 {Decrease)

Capital expendifuIes ..o 5(445) $(300) S(145)
Purchase deposits paid in connection with fulure

aircrafl deliveries, Nl . ... rirs e e ren e rereserenne (219) (81) (138)

Purchase of short-lerm investments, Nel....ccvmeiervieernrnens (3i4) (127) {187)

Proceeds from sale of investments, Bel.........cooeevevevecnnnns ' 65 156 91

Proceeds from sales of property and equipment.................. 67 10 57

Decrease (increase) in restricled cash, net ... 86 24) 110

$(760) $(366) $(394)

Capital expenditures for 2007 were $445 million, or $664 million after considering aircraft purchase
deposits to be paid, net of purchase deposits o be refunded. Capital expenditures for 2007 consisted of $128 million
of fleet expenditures, $253 million of non-fleet expenditures and $64 million for rotable parts and capitalized
interest. The 2007 non-fleet expenditures included ground service equipment, terminal enhancements and 3116
million for summer slots we acquired at London's Heathrow Airport. Capital expenditures for 2008 are expected to
be in the range of $538 million to $688 million, which includes $93 million that we expect to pay for winter slots we
have agreed to acquire at Heathrow. While some of our projected capital expenditures are related to projects we
have committed to, a significant number of projects can be deferred. Should economic conditions warrant, we will
scale back our capital expenditures, and will be able 10 do so without materially impacting our operations.

We have substantial commitmenis for capital expenditures, including for the acquisition of new aircraft,
As of December 31, 2007, we had firm commitments for 91 new Boeing aircraft scheduled for delivery from 2008
through 2013, with an estimated aggregate cost of $5.1 billion including related spare engines. In addition to our
firm order aircraft, we had options to purchase a 1otal of 93 additional Boeing aircrafi as of December 31, 2007.

On February 20, 2008, we reached agreement with The Boeing Company to order additional Boeing 777
and 737 aircraft. With these additional orders, but excluding the five previously ordered Boeing 737 aircrafl
delivered to us in the period from January 1, 2008 through February 20, 2008, we have firm commitments for 111
new aircrafi (78 Boeing 737 aircraft, eight Boeing 777 aircraft and 25 Boeing 787 aircrafl) scheduled for delivery
between February 20, 2008 and the end of 2013, with an estimated aggregate cost of $6.3 billion including related
spare engines. We also have options to purchase a total of 102 additional Boeing aircrafi as of February 20, 2008.




Net purchase deposits paid were higher in 2007 than in 2006 as the result of higher refunds in 2006 due to
aircrafl deliveries, offset by the pre-funding of $103 million of purchase deposits on Boeing aircrafl in the first
quarter of 2006,

In January 2007, we sold substantially all of our shares of Holdings common stock to third parties for cash
proceeds of $35 million. We also sold our interest in ARINC in the fourth quarter of 2007 for cash proceeds of $30
million.

In July 2006, we sold 7.5 million shares of Copa's Class A common stock for $156 million in cash, net of
underwriting fees. This sale reduced our ownership of Copa's Class A common stock to 4.4 million shares, which
represented an approximate 10% interest as of such date.

Sales of property and equipment in 2007 included the sale of three aircraft. During 2007, we entered into
agreements to sell 15 owned Boeing 737-500 aircrafi. We also entered into an agreement to terminate the leases and
arranged for the sale of five leased Boeing 737-500 aircrafi. We delivered three of the owned aircrafi in the fourth
quarter and received cash proceeds of $44 million. The remaining 17 aircraft are scheduled for delivery to the
purchasers by the end of 2008.

The decrease in restricted cash is the result of the return of $67 mitlion cash collateral from our U.S. bank card
processor, discussed in "Other Liquidity Matters" below, and the return of 526 million of workers' compensation
colltateral in 2007.

Financing Activities. Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities for the year ended December 31
were as follows (in millions):

Cash
Increase
2007 2006__ (Decrease)
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obiigations........................... S (429) $ (948) §519
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debi...........coe..c.. 26 574 (548)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock pursuanl to slock pldns ............. _35 _82 47

S(368)  5292)  3.(79)

Cash flows used in financing activities increased due to lower issuances of debi in 2007, partially offset by
lower repayments in 2007. In January 2007, $170 million in principal amount of our 4.5% Convertible Notes due
on February I, 2007 was converied by the holders into 4.3 million shares of our Class B commen stock at a
conversion price of $40 per share. The remaining $30 million in principal amount was paid on February 1, 2007.

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt in 2007 relate to the refinancing of debt secured by three
Boeing 737-500 aircrafl. Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt in 2006 include $320 million retated to the
refinancing of foating rate debt secured by our spare parts inventory that was originally due to mature in 2007.

During 2007, we incurred $190 million of floating rate indebtedness pursuant (o existing finance
agreements secured by two Boeing 777-200ER aircraft that were delivered in March and April 2007, This
indebtedness consists of $156 million of senior notes due in 2019 and $34 million of junior notes due in 2014. The
loans bear interest a1 LIBOR plus a blended margin of approximately 1.9% per year. The commitments under these
finance agreements are now fully funded.

In April 2007, we obtained financing for 12 Boeing 737-800s and 18 Boeing 737-900ERs, which we expect
to apply to 30 of the 32 Boeing 737 aircraft scheduled to be delivered to us in 2008, although we may instead choose
to substitute certain Boeing 737-900ER aircraft scheduled to be delivered in the first quarter of 2009, Pass-through
trusts raised $1.1 billion through the issuance of three classes of pass-through certificates. Class A certificates, with
an aggregate principal amount of $757 million, bear interest at 5.983%, Class B certificates, with an aggregate
principal amount of $222 million, bear interest at 6.903% and Class C centificates, with an aggregate principal
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amount of $168 million, bear interest at 7.339%. The proceeds from the sale of the certificates are initially being
held by a depositary in escrow for the benefit of the certificate holders until we use such funds to purchase the
aircrafl. These escrowed funds are not guaranteed by us and are not reported as debt on our consolidated balance
sheet because the proceeds held by the depositary are not our assets and interest earned on the proceeds, as well as
any unused proceeds, will be distributed directly to the certificate holders.

As we take delivery of each of the 30 aircraft in 2008 or 2009, we will issue equipment notes to the trusts,
which will purchase such notes with a portion of the escrowed funds. We will use the proceeds to finance the
purchase of the aircrafl and will record the principal amount of the equipment notes that we issue as debl on our
consolidated batance sheet. As of February 20, 2008, we have 1aken delivery of five aircraft and recorded related
debt of $191 million. Principal payments on the equipment notes and the corresponding distribution of these
payments to certificate holders will begin in April 2010 and will end in April 2022 for Class A and B certificates and
April 2014 for Class C certificates. Additionally, the Class A and B certificates have the benefit of a liquidity
facility under which a third party agrees 1o make up lo three semiannual interesi payments on the certificates if a
default in the payment of interest occurs.

In addition, we have manufacturer backstop financing for up to 18 (depending on the model selected) of the
Boeing 737 aircraft scheduled to be detivered through the end of 2009 and not otherwise covered by the financing
described above. However, we do not have backstop financing or any other financing currently in place for the
balance of the Boeing aircraft on order, including the aircraft we ordered on February 20, 2008. Further financing
will be needed to satisfy our capital commitments for our firm aircrafl and other related capital expenditures. We
can provide no assurance that such further financing will be available.

In July 2006, our 5% Converiible Notes due 2023 with a principal amount of $175 million became
convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $20 per share. If a holder of the notes
exercises the conversion right, in lieu of delivering shares of our common stock, we may elect to pay cash or a
combination of cash and shares of our common stock for the notes surrendered. All or a portion of the notes are also
redeemable for cash at our option on or afier June 18, 2010 at par plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Holders
of the notes may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their notes at par plus any accrued and unpaid interest on
June 15 of 2010, 2013 or 2018. We may al our option choose to pay the repurchase price on those dates in cash,
shares of our common stock or any combination thereof. However, if we are required to repurchase all or a portion
of the notes, our policy is to selle the notes in cash. Holders of the notes may also require us to repurchase all or a
portion of their notes for cash at par plus any accrued and unpaid interest if certain changes in control of Continental
0oCCur.

Other Liquidity Matters

Financeable Assets. At December 31, 2007, we had approximately $5.0 billion (including current
maturities) of long-term debt and capital lease obligations. We do not currently have any undrawn lines of credit or
revolving credit facilities and most of our otherwise readily financeable assets are encumbered.  However, our
remaining interest in Copa, which had a market value of $164 million at December 31, 2007. is not pledged as
collateral under any of our debt, although there are contractual limitations on our ability 1o dispose of this asset.

Auction Rate Securities. We held $387 million of student loan-related auction rate securities at December 31,
2007 ($285 miliion in short-term investments and $102 million in restricted cash). These securities are variable-rate
debt instruments with contractual maturities generally greater than len years and whose interest rates are reset every 28
or 35 days, depending on the terms of the particular instrument. These securities are secured by pools of student loans
guaranteed by state-designated guaranty agencies and reinsured by the United States govemment. All of the auction
rate securilies held by us are senior obligations under the applicable indentures authorizing the issuance of such
securities.  While all of the auctions involving all of the securities were successful during January 2008, auctions
involving $128 million of these securities failed in February 2008, resulting in our continuing 10 hold such securities.
As of February 20, 2008, including the securities involved in failed auctions, we held 8314 million of these auction rate
securities ($237 million in short-term investments and $77 million in restricted cash).
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Debt Covenants. We and CMI have loans under a $350 million secured term loan facility. The loans are
secured by certain of our U.S.-Asia routes and related assets, all of the outstanding common stock of our wholly-
owned subsidiaries Air Micronesia, Inc, ("AMI") and CMI and substantially all of the other assets of AMI and CMI,
including route authorities and related assets. The loans bear interest at a rate equal to the London Interbank Offered
Rate ("LIBOR™} plus 3.375% and are due in June 2011, The facility requires us to maintain a minimum balance of
unrestricted cash and short-term investments of $1.0 billion at the end of each month. The loans may become due
and payable immediately if we fail 10 maintain the monthly minimum cash balance and upon the occurrence of other
customary events of default under the loan documents. If we fail to maintain a minimum balance of unrestricted
cash and shori-term investments of $1.125 billion, we and CMI will be required to make a mandatory aggregate
350 million prepayment of the loans.

In addition, the facility provides that if the ratio of the outstanding loan balance to the value of the
collateral securing the loans, as determined by the most recently delivered periodic appraisal, is greater than 52.5%,
we and CMI will be required 10 post additional collateral or prepay the loans to reestablish a loan-to-collateral value
ratio of not greater than 52.5%. We are currently in compliance with the covenants in the facility.

In connection with our $320 million notes secured by spare parts inventory, we entered into a collateral
maintenance agreemenl requiring us, among other things, to maintain a loan-to-collateral value ratio of not greater
than 45% with respect to the $190 millton senior series of equipment notes and a loan-to-collateral value ratio of not
greater than 75% with respect to both series of notes combined. We must also maintain a certain level of rotable
components within the spare parts collateral pool. These ratios are calculated semi-annually based on an
independent appraisal of the spare parts collateral pool. If any of the collateral ratio requirements are not met, we
must take action to meet all ratio requirements by adding additional eligible spare parts to the collateral pool,
redeeming a portion of the ouistanding notes, providing other collateral acceptable to the bond insurance policy
provider for the senior series of equipment notes or any combination of the above actions. We are currently in
compliance with these covenanits.

Credit Ratings. At December 31, 2007, our senior unsecured debt was rated B3 by Moody's and CCC+ by
Standard & Poor's. While Moody's upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating from Caal in March 2007, our credit
ratings remain significantly below investment grade. Although we obtained favorable terms in the April 2007 issuance
of $1.1 billion in pass through certificates (discussed above under "Sources and Uses of Cash"), our current credil ratings
increase the costs we incur when issuing debt, adversely affect the terms of such debt and limit our financing options.
Additional reductions in our credit ratings could further increase our borrowing costs and reduce the availability of
financing to us in the future. We do not have any debt obligations that would be accelerated as a result of a credit rating
downgrade. However, we would have 10 post additional collateral of approximately $152 million under our U.S. bank
card processing agreement if our senior unsecured debt rating falls below Caa3 as rated by Moody's or CCC- as rated by
Standard & Poor's. We would also be required to post additional collateral of up 1o $42 million under our worker's
compensation program if our senior unsecured debt rating falls below Caa2 as rated by Moody's or CCC+ as rated by
Standard & Poor’s.

Bank Card Processing Agreement. Our U.S. bank card processing agreement also contains financial covenants
which require, among other things, that we maintain a minimum EBITDAR (generally, eamings before interest, income
laxes, depreciation, amortization, aircrafi rentals, certain nonoperating income {(expense) and special items) to fixed
charges (interest and aircrafi rentals) ratio for the preceding 12 months of 1.1 10 1.0. The liquidity covenant requires us
1o maintain a minimum level of $1.0 billion of unrestricted cash and short-term invesiments and a minimum ratio of
unrestricted cash and short-term investments to current liabilities at each month end of .29 10 i.0. Although we are
currently in compliance with all of the covenants, failure to maintain compliance would result in our being required to
post up to an additional $565 million of cash collaieral, which would materially adversely affect our liquidity.
Depending on our unrestricled cash and short-term investments balance at the time, the posting of a significant amount
of cash collateral could cause our unrestricted cash and shor-term investments balance 10 fall below the $1.0 billion
minimum balance required under our $350 million secured term loan facility, resulting in a defautt under that facility.
During 2007, the bank card processor under this agreement returned $67 million of our collateral to us. If we cease to
comply with the financial covenants discussed above or if our unrestricted cash and short-term investmenis balance falls
below $2.0 billion, the bank card processor can require us to redeposit the collateral.
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Liquidity and Credit Support Providers. We have utilized proceeds from the issuance of pass-through
certificates to finance the acquisition of 228 leased and owned mainline jet aircrafi, certain spare engines and certain
spare parts. Typically, these pass-through certificates contain liquidity facilities whereby a third party agrees to make
payments sufficient to pay at least 18 months of interest on the applicable certificates if a payment default occurs. The
liquidity providers for these certificates include the following: CALYON New York Branch, Landesbank Hessen-
Thuringen Girozenirale, Morgan Stanley Capital Services, Morgan Stanley Bank, Westdeutsche Landesbank
Girozentrale, AIG Matched Funding Corp., ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Credit Suisse First Boston, Caisse des Depots et
Consignations, Bayerische Landesbank Girozentrale, ING Bank N.V., De Nationale Investeringsbank N.V. and RZB
Finance LLC.

We are also the issuer of pass-through certificates secured by 135 leased regional jet aircraft currently operated
by Expresslet. The liquidity providers for these certificates include the following: ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Chicago
Branch. Citibank N.A., Citicorp North America, [nc., Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg, RZB Finance LLC and WestLB
AG. New York Branch.

We currently utilize policy providers to provide credit support on three separate financings with an outstanding
principal balance of $485 million at December 31, 2007. The policy providers have unconditionalty guaranteed the
payment of interest on the notes when due and the payment of principal on the notes no later than 24 months afier the
final scheduled payment date. Policy providers on these notes are Ambac Assurance Corporation (a subsidiary of
Ambac Financial Group, Inc.) and Financial Guaranty Insurance Company {(a subsidiary of FGIC). Financial
jnformation for the parent company of Ambac Assurance Corporation is available over the intemnet at the SEC's website
al www.sec.gov or at the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C. and financial information for FGIC is
available over the internet at www.fgic.com. A policy provider is also used as credit support for the financing of certain
facilities at Houston Bush, currently subject to a sublease by us 1o the City of Houston, with an outstanding balance of
$50 miltlion at December 31, 2007.

Contractual Obligations. The following table summarizes the effect that minimum debt, lease and other
material noncancelable commitments listed below are expected to have on our future cash flows (in millions):

Payments Due Later
Contractual Obligations Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Years
Debi and leases:
Long-term debt {1) v, $ 6526 $926 § 796 $ 897  §$1.201 $ 563 $2,143
Capital lease obligations (1) ............. 524 46 16 16 16 16 414
Aircraft operating leases (2) ............. 9,809 1,082 1,023 997 946 898 4.863
Nonaircraft operating leases (3) ....... 6,513 443 423 390 383 474 4,400
Other:
Capacity purchase agreements (4}.... 2,816 1.273 953 180 82 63 263
Aircraft and other purchase
COMMIMENtS (5) .veeenereerererciranens 5472 1,180 1,185 987 740 725 655
Projected pension contributions {6).. 533 140 55 10 10 il 37
Tota] {7} eoveeeerrerrerorececreececieerecmsiiiens $32,193 $5090 $4,451  $3477  S3.378 82,752  S13,045
n Represents contractual amounts due, including interest. Interest on floating rate debt was eslimated using rates
in effect al December 31, 2007.
(2) Represents contractual amounts due and excludes $3.8 billion of projected sublease income to be received from
Expresslel.
3) Represents minimum contractual amounts.
4) Represents our estimates of future minimum noncancelable commitments under our capacity purchase

agreements and does not include the portion of the underlying obligations for aircraft leased to Expresslet or
deemed to be leased from Chautaugua, CommutAir or Colgan and facility rent thi are disclosed as part of
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aircraft and nonaircrafi operating leases. See Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements included in this
report for the significant assumptions used to estimate the payments.

(3) Represents contractual commitments for firm order aircraft only, net of previously paid purchase deposits, and
noncancelable commitments to purchase goods and services, primarily information technology support.
Amounts do not include commitments for aircrafi ordered on February 20, 2008. See Note I8 1o our
consolidated financial statements included in this report for a discussion of our purchase commitments.

() Represents our estimate of the minimum funding requirements as determined by government regulations.
Amounts are subject to change based on numerous assumptions, including the performance of the assels in the
plan and bond rates. See "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” for a discussion of our assumptions
regarding our pension plans.

(N Total contractual obligations do not include long-term contracts where the commitment is variable in nature,
such as credit card processing agreements and cost-per-hour engine mainienance agreements, or where shon-
term cancellation provisions exist.

We expect to fund our fulure capital and purchase commitments through internally generated funds, general
company financings and aircraft financing transactions. However, there can be no assurance that sufficient financing
will be available for all aircraft and other capital expenditures or that, if necessary, we will be able to defer or otherwise
renegoliate our capital commitments.

Operating Leases. At December 31, 2007, we had 482 aircraft under operating leases, including 226 mainline
aircrafl, 187 regional jels operated for us by Expresslet and 69 regional jets subleased to ExpressJet bul not operated
under the Expresslet CPA. These leases have remaining lease terms ranging up to 17 years. In addition, we have non-
aircrafl operating leases, principally relaied to airport and terminal facilities and related equipment. The obligations for
these operating leases are not included in our consolidated balance sheets. Our total rental expense for aircrafi and non-
aircrafl operating leases was $994 million and $535 million, respectively, in 2007.

Regional Capacity Purchase Agreements. Our most significant capacity purchase agreement is with
Expresslet. The Expresslet CPA provides that we purchase, in advance, available seat miles from Expresslel for a
negotiated price, and we are at risk for reselling the available seat miles at market prices. We are currently in
negotiations with Expresslet concerning the block hour rates for 2008 and other related matters.

In December 2005, we gave notice to ExpressJet that we would withdraw 69 of the 274 regional jet aircrafi
from the capacity purchase agreement because of our belief that the rates charged by Expresslet for regional
capacily were above the current market. On May 5, 2006, Expresslet notified us that it would retain all of the 69
regional jets (consisting of 44 ERJ-145XR and 25 ERJ-145 aircrafl) covered by our withdrawal notice, as permitted
by the Expresslet CPA, The withdrawal of the 69 aircrafl began in December 2006 and was completed in the third
quarter of 2007, Expresslet must retain each of those 69 regional jets for the remaining term of the applicable
underlying aircraft lease, although we remain responsible for all obligations under the head leases covering the 69
withdrawn aircraft, As each aircrafl was withdrawn from the Expressiet CPA, the implicit interest rate used to
calculate the scheduled lease paymenis that Expresslet makes to us under the applicable aircraft sublease was
automatically increased by 200 basis points to compensate us for our continued participation in Expresslet's lease
financing arrangements. We recognize the related rental income we receive from Expresslet as other revenue in our
consolidated statements of operations. See Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report for
details of our regional capacity purchase agreement.

During 2007, Chautauqua began providing and operating forty-four 50-seal regional jets as a Continental
Express carrier to be phased in during the year under the Chautauqua CPA. As of December 31, 2007, all 44 aircraft
are being flown by Chauwtauqua for us. Under the Chautauqua CPA, we schedule and market all of our Continental
Express regional jet service provided by Chautauqua. The Chautauqua CPA requires us to pay Chautauqua a fixed
fee, subject to annual escalations, for each block hour flown for its operation of the aircrafl. Chautauqua supplies
the aircraft that it operates under the agreement. The Chautauqua CPA has a five year term with respect 1o len
aircraft and an average term of 2.5 years for the balance of the aircrafi, with the first aircrafl exiting the agreement in
late 2008. In addition, we have the unilateral right 1o extend the Chautauqua CPA on the same terms on an aircrafi-
by-aircraft basis for a period of up to five years in the aggregate for 20 aircrafl and for up to three years in the
agpregate for 17 aircrafl, subject to the renewal terms of the related aircrafi lease.




in February 2006, we entered into a capacily purchase agreement with CommutAir 1o initially operate
fourteen 19-seat Beechcrafi B1900 twin-turboprop aircrafl as a Continental Connection carrier on short distance
routes from Cleveland Hopkins beginning in May 2006. In August 2006, the CommutAir CPA was amended to
require that the B1900 aircrafl be replaced with sixieen 37-seat Bombardier Q200 twin-turboprop aircraft beginning
in February 2007. The CommutAir CPA has a term of approximately six ycars and CommutAir supplies the aircrafi
that it operates under the agreement.

In February 2007, we selected Colgan to operate fifteen 74-seat Bombardier Q400 twin-turboprop aircrafl
on short and medium-distance routes from New York Liberty starting in February 2008. Colgan operates the flights
under a capacity purchase agreement with us with a term of ten years. Colgan supplies the aircrafi that it operates
under the agreement.

Guarantees and Indemnifications. We are the guarantor of approximately $1.7 billion in aggregate principal
amount of tax-exempt special facilities revenue bonds and interest thereon, excluding the US Airways contingent
liability discussed below. These bonds, issued by various municipalities and other governmental entities, are
payable solely from our rentals paid under long-term agreements with the respective governing bodies. The leasing
arrangements associated with approximately $1.5 billion of these obligations are accounted for as operating leases,
and the leasing arrangements associated with approximately $200 million of these obligations are accounted for as
capital leases.

We are contingently liable for US Airways' obligations under a lease agreement between US Airways and the
Port Authority of New York and New Jersey related to the East End Terminal a LaGuardia airport. These obligations
include the payment of ground rentals to the Port Authority and the payment of other renials in respect of the full
amounts owed on special facilities revenue bonds issued by the Port Authority having an outstanding par amount of $135
million at December 31, 2007 and having a final scheduled maturity in 2015, 1f US Airways defaults on these
obligations, we would be obligated to cure the default and we would have the right 10 occupy the terminal after US
Airways' interest in the lease had been terminated.

We also had letters of credit and performance bonds relating to various real estate and customs obligations
at December 31, 2007 in the amount of $33 million. These leiters of credit and performance bonds have expiration
dates through August 2011.

We are the lessee under many real estate leases. It is common in such commercial lease transactions for us as
the lessee to agree to indemnify the lessor and other retated third parties for tort liabilities that arise out of or refate 10 our
use or occupancy of the leased premises and the use or occupancy of the leased premises by regional carriers operating
flights on our behalf. In some cases, this indemnity extends to related habilities arising from the negligence of the
indemnified parties, but usually excludes any liabilities caused by their gross negligence or willful misconduct.
Additionally, we typically indemnify such parties for any environmental liability that arises out of or relates to our use of
the leased premises.

In our aircrafl financing agreements, we typically indemnify the financing parties, trustees acting on their behalf
and other related parties against liabilities that arise from the manufacture, design, ownership, financing, use, operation
and maintenance of the aircrafl and for tort Lability, whether or not these liabilities arise out of or relate 1o the negligence
of these indenmified parties, excepi for their gross negligence or willful misconduct.

We expect that we would be covered by insurance (subject to deductibles) for most tort liabilities and related
indemnities described above with respect to real estate we lease and aircrafl we operate.

In our financing transactions that include loans, we typically agree to reimburse lenders for any reduced returns
with respect to the loans due to any change in capital requirements and, in the case of loans in which the interest rate is
based on LIBOR, for certain other increased costs that the lenders incur in carrying these loans as a result of any change
in law, subject in most cases to certain mitigation obligations of the lenders. At December 31, 2007, we had $1.3 billion
of floating rate debt and $288 million of fixed rate debt, with remaining terms of up to 11 years, that is subject to these
increased cost provisions. In several financing transactions involving loans or leases from non-U.S. entities, with
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remaining terms of up to 11 years and an aggregate carrying value of $1.4 billion, we bear the risk of any change in tax
laws that would subject loan or lease payments thereunder to non-U.S. entities 1o withholding taxes, subject to customary
exclusions. In addition, in cross-border aircraft lease agreements for two Boeing 757 aircrafl, we bear the risk of any
change in U.S. tax laws that would subject lease payments made by us to a resident of Japan to withholding taxes,
subject to customary exclusions. These capital leases for iwo Boeing 757 aircrafl expire in 2008 and have a carrying
value of $26 million at December 31, 2007.

We may be required 10 make future payments under the foregoing indemnities and agreements due to unknown
variables related to potential government changes in capital adequacy requirements, laws governing LIBOR based loans
or tax laws, the amounts of which cannot be estimated at this time.

Environmental Matters. In 2001, the CRWQCB mandated a field study of the area surrounding our aircrafi
maintenance hangar in Los Angeles. The study was completed in September 2001 and identified jet fuel and solvent
contamination on and adjacent 1o this site. In April 2003, we began environmental remediation of jet fuel contamination
surrounding our aircrafi maintenance hangar pursuant to a workplan submitted to {and approved by) the CRWQCB and
our landlord, the Los Angeles World Airports. Additionally, we could be responsible for environmental remediation
costs primarily related to solvent contamination on and near this site,

In 1999, we purchased properly located near our New York Liberty hub in Elizabeth, New Jersey from
Honeywell with certain environmental indemnification obligations by us to Honeywell. We did not operate the
facility localed on or make any improvements to the property. In 2005, we sold the property to Catellus and, in
connection with the sale, Catellus assumed certain environmental indemnification obligations in favor of us. On
October 9, 2006, Honeywell provided us with a notice seeking indemnification from us in connection with the EPA
potentially responsible party notice to Honeywell involving the Newark Bay Study Area of the Diamond Alkali
Superfund Site alleging hazardous substance releases from the properly and seeking study costs. In addition, on
May 7, 2007, Honeywell provided us with a notice seeking indemnification from us in connection with a possible
lawsuit by Tierra Solutions relating to alleged discharges from the property into Newark Bay and seeking cleanup of
Newark Bay waters and sediments under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Acl. We have notified
Honeywell that, at this time, we have not agreed that we are required to indemnify Honeywell with respect 1o the
EPA and Tierra Solutions claims and Honeywell has invoked arbitration procedures under its sale and purchase
agreement with us. Catellus has agreed 10 indemnify and defend vs in connection with the EPA and Tierra Solutions
claims, including any arbitration with Honeywell.

At December 31, 2007, we had an accrual for estimated costs of environmental remediation throughout our
system of $36 million, based primarily on third-party environmenial studies and estimates as to the extent of the
contamination and nature of the required remedial actions. We have evaluated and recorded this accrual for
environmental remediation costs separately from any relaled insurance recovery. We did not have any receivables
related to environmental insurance recoveries at December 31, 2007. Based on currently available information, we
believe that our accrual for potential environmental remediation costs is adequate, although our accrual could be
adjusted in the future due to new information or changed circumstances. However, we do not expect these items 1o
maternially affect our results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

An off-balance sheet arrangement is any transaction, agreement or other contractual arrangement involving an
unconsolidated entity under which a company has (1) made guarantees, (2) a retained or a contingent interest in
transferred assets, (3) an obligation under derivative instruments classified as equity or {4) any obligation arising out of a
material variable interest in an unconselidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support
to the company, or that engages in leasing, hedging or research and development arrangements with the company.

We have no arrangements of the types described in the first three categories that we believe may have a
material current or future effect on our results of operations. Certain guarantees that we do not expect to have a material
current or future effect on our results of operations, financial condition or liquidity are disclosed in Note 18 to our
consolidated financial statements included in this report.

25




We do have obligations arising out of variable interests in unconsolidated entities. See Note 14 10 our
consolidated financial statements included in this repont for a discussion of our oft-balance sheet aircrafi leases, airport
leases (which inctude the US Airways contingent liability), subsidiary trust and our capacily purchase agreement with
Expresslet.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
al the date of our financial statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant judgments and uncertainties,
and potentially result in materially different resulls under different assumptions and conditions. We believe that our
critical accounting policies are limited 1o those described below. For a detailed discussion on the application of these and
other accounting policies, see Note | 1o our consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Pension Plans. We account for our defined benefit pension plans in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Siandards No. 87, "Employer’s Accounting for Pensions” ("SFAS 87") and SFAS No. 138, "Employers'
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No.
87, 88. 106 and 132(R)." Under SFAS 87, pension expense is recognized on an accrual basis over employees'
approximale service periods. Pension expense calculated under SFAS 87 is generally independent of funding
decisions or requirements. We recognized expense for our defined benefit pension plans totaling $191 million, $219
million and $280 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, including settlement charges and a curtailment loss,
We currently expect our expense related to our defined benefit pension plans to be approximately $90 million in
2008. This amount is lower than our expense in each of the past three years due to a reduction in the plans’ undes-
funded status {discussed below) and higher investment returns on higher plan asset balances.

Our plans' under-funded status was $536 million at December 31, 2007 and §1.2 billion at December 31,
2006. This decrease was primarily the result of a change in the mandatory retirement age for our pilots from age 60
to 63, signed into law on December 13, 2007 and increases in the discount rate (discussed below) and the lump sum
conversion interest rate used to determine our pension liability. as well as our contributions to the plans and returns
on plan assets. Funding requirements for defined benefit pension plans are determined by government regulations.
During 2007, we contributed $336 million to our defined benefit pension plans, which exceeded the minimum
funding requirement of $187 million during that calendar year, We have contributed an additional $60 million to
our defined benefit pension plans during the period from January 1, 2008 through February 20, 2008, We expecl to
contribute approximately $257 million to our defined benefit pension plans during 2008, but we have the flexibility
1o fund only the minimum requirement during that calendar year of approximately 3140 million.

The fair value of our plans' assets increased from $1.5 billion at December 31, 2006 10 $1.8 billion at
December 31, 2007. When calculating pension expense for 2007, we assumed that our plans' assets would generate
a long-term rate of return of 8.3%. We assumed a long-term rate of return for calculating pension expense in 2006
and 2005 of 8.5% and 9.0%, respectively. We adjusted our assumed long-term rate of return to reflect the impact
that higher plan expenses and a shorter duration of expecled paymenits in recent years has had on our long-lerm
expectations. We develop our expected long-term rate of retum assumption based on historical experience and by
evaluating input from the trustee managing the plans' assets. Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on a targel allocation of assets, which is based on our goal of earning the highest rate of return while
maintaining risk at acceptable levels. Qur projected long-term rate of return is slightly higher than some market
indices due to the active management of our plans' assets, and is supported by the historical returns on our plans’
assets. The plans strive 10 have assets sufficiently diversified so that adverse or unexpected results from one security
class will not have an unduly detrimental impact on the entire portfolio. We regularly review our actual asset
allocation and the pension plans' investments are periodically rebalanced to our targeted allocation when considered
appropriate. Our aliocation of assets was as follows at December 31, 2007:
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Expected Long-Term

Percent of Tolal Rate of Retun
U.S. equities .....ccocovveenrnnene. 49% 9%
Intemnational equities.......... 22 9
Fixed income...................... 22 7
L0 11111 U 7 12

Pension expense increases as the expecied rate of return on plan assets decreases. When calculating
pension expense for 2008, we will assume that our plans' asseis will generate a weighted-average long-lerm rate of
return of 8.5%. The increase of 20 basis points over the rate used to determine 2007 expense is due to a reduction of
plan expenses. Lowering the expected long-term rate of return on our plan assets by an additional 50 basis points
(from 8.5% to 8.0%} would increase our estimated 2008 pension expense by approximately $ 10 million.

We discounted our future pension obligations using a weighied average rate of 6.31% at December 31,
2007, compared to 5.92% at December 31, 2006. We determine the appropriate discount rate for each of our plans
based on current rates on high quality corporate bonds that would generate the cash flow necessary 1o pay plan
benefits when due. This approach can result in different discount rates for different plans, depending on each plan's
projected benefit payments. The pension hability and fulure pension expense both increase as the discount rate is
reduced. Lowering the discount rate by 50 basis points (from 6.31% 10 5.81%) would increase our pension liability
at December 31, 2007 by approximately $216 million and increase our estimated 2008 pension expense by
approximately $27 million.

At December 31, 2007, we have unrecognized net actuarial losses of $367 million related to our defined
benefit pension plans. Our estimated 2008 expense related to our defined benefit pension plans of $90 million
includes the recognition of approximaiely $31 million of these losses.

Future changes in plan assel returns, plan provisions, assumed discount rates, pension funding law and
various other factors related to the participants in our pension plans will impact our future pension expense and
liabilities. We cannot predict with certainty what these factors will be in the future.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize passenger revenue when transportation is provided or when the ticket
expires unused, rather than when a ticket is sold. Nonrefundable tickets expire on the date of intended flight, unless the
date is extended by notification from the customer in advance of the intended flight.

The amount of passenger ticket sales not yet recognized as revenue is included in our consolidated balance
sheets as air traffic and frequent flyer liability. We perform periodic evaluations of the estimated liability for passenger
ticket sales and any adjustments, which can be significant, are included in resulls of operations for the periods in which
the evaluations are completed. These adjustments relate primarily to differences between our statistical estimation of
certain revenue transactions and the related sales price, as well as refunds, exchanges, interline transactions and other
items for which final settlement occurs in periods subsequent to the sale of the related tickets at amounts other than the
original sales price.

Ticket change fees relate to non-refundable tickets, but are considered a separate transaction from the air
transportation because they represent a charge for our additional service 10 modify a previous order. Ticket change fees
are recognized as other revenue in our consolidated statement of operations at the time the fees are assessed.

Frequent Flyer Accounting. For those OnePass accounts that have sufficient mileage credits 1o claim the lowest
level of free travel, we record a liability for either the estimated incremental cost of providing travel awards that are
expected to be redeemed with us or the contractual rate of expected redemption on atliance carriers, Incremenial cost
includes the cost of fuel, meals, insurance and miscellaneous supplies. but does not include any costs for aircrafi
ownership, maintenance, laber or overhead allocation. A change to these cost estimates, the actual redemption activity,
the amount of redemptions on alliance carriers or the minimum award leve! could have a significant impact on our
liability in the period of change as well as future years. The liability is adjusted periodically based on awards earned,




awards redeemed, changes in the incremental costs and changes in the OnePass program, and is included in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as air traffic and frequent flyer liability. Changes in the liability are
recognized as passenger revenue in the period of change.

We also sell mileage credits in our frequent flyer program to participating entities, such as credit/debit card
companies, alliance carriers, hotels, car rental agencies, utilities and various shopping and gifi merchants. Revenue from
the sale of mileage credits is deferred and recognized as passenger revenue over the period when transportation is
expected to be provided, based on estimates of its fair value. Amounts received in excess of the expected transportation's
fair value are recognized in income currently and classified as other revenue. A change to the time period over which the
mileage credits are used (currently six to 28 months), the actual redemption activity or our estimate of the amount or fair
value of expected transportation could have a significant impact on our revenue in the year of change as well as future
years.

During the vear ended December 31, 2007, OnePass participants claimed approximately 1.5 million awards.
Frequent flyer awards accounted for an estimated 7.2% of our total RPMs. We believe displacement of revenue
passengers is minimal given our ability to manage frequent flyer inventory and the low ratio of OnePass award usage to
revenue passenger miles.

At December 31, 2007, we estimated that approximately 2.4 million free travel awards outstanding were
expecled to be redeemed for free travel on Continental, Continental Express, Continental Connection, CMI or alliance
airlines. Our total liability for future OnePass award redemptions for free travel and unrecognized revenue from sales of
OnePass miles 1o other companies was approximately $318 million at December 31, 2007, This liability is recognized as
a component of air traffic and frequent flyer liability in our consolidated balance sheets.

Stock-Based Compensation. We have stock option and restricted stock unit ("RSU") awards outstanding
which require management to make assumptions about the value of the awards in order lo recognize the expense
and, in the case of the RSU awards, the Liabilities associated with those awards.

The fair value of options is determined at the grant date using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing
model, which requires us to make several assumptions. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury
yield curve in effect for the expected term of the option at the time of grant. The dividend yield on our common
stock is assumed to be zero since we historically have not paid dividends and have no current plans to do so in the
future. The market price volatility of our common stock is based on the historical volatility of our common stock
over a time period equal to the expected term of the option and ending on the grant date. The expected life of the
options is based on our historical experience for various work groups. We recognize expense only for those option
awards expected to vest, using an estimated forfeiture rate based on our historical experience. The forfeiture rate
may be revised in future periods if actual forfeitures differ from our assumptions. A one percent decrease in the
estimated forfeiture rate at December 31, 2007 would not have resulted in a material increase 1o wages, salaries and
related costs.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during 2007 was determined to be $16.95 per share,
based on the following weighted-average assumptions:

RiSK-ITE8 INIEMESL TALE ..ottt e erns st e e e eee e bbb 4.9%
Dividend Yield ... %
Expected markel price volatility of our common S10CK.......c.cooommincrinnneincen. 57%
Expected life of oplions (YEars) ........ccocevvrnimiiincn st 19

At December 31, 2007, we had three outstanding awards of RSUs granted under our Long-Term Incentive and
RSU Program: (1} stock price based RSU awards with a performance period ending December 31, 2007, (2) profit
based RSU awards with a performance period commencing April 1, 2006 and ending December 31, 2009 and (3) proful
based RSU awards with a performance period commencing January 1, 2007 and ending December 31, 2009.

Stock price based RSU awards made pursuant 10 our Long-Term Incentive and RSU Program can result in cash
payments to our officers if there are specified increases in our stock price over mulli-year performance periods. At
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December 31, 2007, the liability and related payment amounts were calculated based on the average closing price of our
common stock for the 20 trading days immediately prior 10 the end of the performance period and an aggregate $29
million was paid out in January 2008. Following this payout, there are no stock price based RSU awards outstanding.

In 2006, we began 1o issue profit based RSU awards pursuant to our Long-Term Incentive and RSU Program,
which can result in cash payments to our officers upon the achievement of specified profit sharing-based performance
targets. The performance targets require that we reach target levels of cumulative employee profit sharing under our
enhanced employee profit sharing program during the performance period and that we have net income calculated in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for the applicable fiscal year. To serve as a retention
feature, payments related to the achievement of a performance target generally wili be made in one-third annual
increments to participanis who remain continuously employed by us through each payment date. Payments also are
conditioned on our having a minimum unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and shori-lerm invesiments balance at the end
of the fiscal year preceding the date any payment is made as set by the Human Resources Committee of our Board of
Directors. If we do not achieve such cash hurdle applicable 1o a payment date, the payment will be deferred until the
next payment date (March | of the next year), subject to a limit on the number of years payments may be carried
forward. Payment amounts will be calculated based on the average price of our common stock during the 20 trading
days preceding the payment date and the payment percentage sel by the Human Resources Committee of our Board of
Directors for achieving the applicable profit sharing-based performance target.

We account for the profit based RSU awards as liability awards. Once it 1s probable that a performance target
will be met, we measure the awards at fair value based on the current stock price. The related expense is recognized
ratably over the required service period, which ends on each payment date, after adjustment for changes in the then-
current market price of our common stock. Our determination of the probable cumulative profit sharing pool is highly
subjective and subject 10 change, due in large part 1o the risks and uncertainties inherent in our business. Moreover,
because of the subjective nature of the assessment and those risks and uncertainties, projected operating results are
heavily discounted n our probability analysis. As of December 31, 2007, we had achieved the highest cumulative profit
sharing target for the profit based RSU awards with a performance period commencing April 1, 2006 and were,
therefore, accruing expense based on a payment percentage of 337.5%. We had not achieved any of the cumulative
profit sharing targets for the profit based RSU awards with a performance period commencing January 1, 2007, but we
concluded that it was probable that we would achieve the entry level target for those awards dunng the performance
period, resulting in an estimated payment percentage of 100%. If we had concluded that it was probable at December
31, 2007 that we would not achieve the eniry level cumulative profit sharing target for those awards, wages, salaries and
related costs would have decreased by $4 million in 2007. Conversely, if we had concluded that it was probable that we
would achieve the next higher cumulative profit sharing target, wages, salaries and related costs atiributable to those
awards would have increased by $2 million in 2007. Holding the curmulative profit sharing pool target levels constant, a
one dollar increase or decrease in the price of our common stock at December 31, 2007 would have resulted in a 84
million increase or decrease, respectively, in wages, salaries and related costs in 2007 atiributable to all profit based RSU
awards.

As of December 31, 2007, $65 million of compensation cost attributable to future service related to unvested
employee stock options and profit based RSU awards that are probable of being achieved had not yet been recognized.
This amount will be recognized in expense over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years.

Property and Equipment. As of December 31, 2007, the net carrying amount of our property and equipment
was $6.6 billion, which represents 54% of our total assels, In addition to the original cost of these assets, the nel carrying
amount of our property and equipment is impacted by a number of accounting policy elections, including estimates,
assumptions and judgments relative to capitalized costs, the estimation of useful lives and residual values and, when
necessary, the recognition of asset impairment charges. Our property and equipment accounting policies are designed to
depreciate our assets over their estimated useful lives and residual values of our aircraft, reflecling both historical
experience and expectations regarding fuiure operations, utilization and performance of our assets.

In addition, our policies are designed to appropriately and consistenily capitalize costs incurred to enhance,
improve and extend the useful lives of our assets and expense those costs incurred to repair and maintain the existing
condition of our aircraft. Capitalized costs increase the carrying values and depreciation expense of the related assets,
which also impact our results of operations.

29




Useful lives of aircraft are difficult to estimate due to a variety of factors, including technological advances that
impact the efficiency of aircrafl, changes in market or economic conditions and changes in laws or regulations affecting
the airline industry. We evaluate the remaining useful lives of our aircrafi when centain events occur that directly impact
our assessment of the remaining useful lives of the aircrafl and include changes in operating condition, functional
capability and market and economic factors. Both depreciable lives and residual values are regularly reviewed for our
aircraft and spare parts to recognize changes in our fleet plan and other relevant information. Jet aircraft and rotable
spare parls are assumed o have estimated residual values of 15% and 10%, respectively, of original cost; other
categories of property and equipment are assumed o have no residual value. A one year increase in the useful lives of
our owned aircraft would reduce annual depreciation expense by approximately $9 million while a one year decrease
would increase annual depreciation expense by approximately $16 million. A one percent decrease in residual value of
our owned aircrafl would increase annual deprecialion expense by approximately $1 million.

Impairments of Long-Lived Assets. We record impairment losses on long-lived assets, consisting principally
of property and equipment and domestic airport operating rights, when events or changes in circumstances indicate, in
management’s judgment, that the assets might be impaired and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by
those assets are less than the carrying amount of those assets. Our cash flow estimates are based on historical results
adjusted 1o reflect our best estimate of future markel and operating conditions. The nel carrying value of assets not
recoverable is reduced to fair value if fower than the carrying value. In determining the fair market value of the assets,
we consider market trends, recent transactions involving sales of similar assets and, if necessary, estimates of future
discounted cash flows. There were no fleet impairment losses recorded during the three years ended December 31, 2007.

We also perform annual impairment tests on our routes and international airport landing slots, which are
indefinite life intangible assets. These tests are based on estimates of discounted future cash flows, using assumptions
consistent with those used for aircraft and airport operating rights impairment lests. We determined that we did not have
any impairmeni of our routes at December 31, 2007. Beginning in 2008, we will also perform annual impairment tests
on our slots at intemational airports, which have indefinite lives.

We provide an allowance for spare parts inventory obsolescence over the remaining useful life of the related
aircrafl, plus allowances for spare parts currently identified as excess. These allowances are based on our estimates and
industry trends, which are subject to change and, where available, reference to market rates and transactions. The
estimates are more likely to change when we near the end of a fleet life or when we remove entire fleets from service
sooner than originally planned.

Related Party Transactions

See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report for a discussion of related party
transactions.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and Positions

We are subject to certain market risks, including commodity price risk (i.e., aircrafi fuel prices), interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and price changes related to certain investmenits in debt and equity securities. The adverse
effects of potential changes in these market risks are discussed below. The sensitivity analyses presented do not consider
the effects that such adverse changes may have on overall economic activity nor do they consider additional actions we
may lake to mitigate our exposure 10 such changes. Actual results may differ. See the notes to our consolidated financial
statements included in this report for a description of our accounting pelicies and other information related 1o these
financial instruments. We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Aircraft Fuel. Our results of operations are significantly impacied by changes in the price of aircraft fuel.
During 2007 and 2006, mainline aircraft fuel and related taxes accounted for 30.0% and 29.4%, respectively, of our
mainline operating expenses. Based on our expected fuel consumption in 2008, a one dollar increase in the price of
crude oil will increase our annual fuel expense by approximately $45 million, holding the refining margin constant and
before considering the impact of our fuel hedging program.

Historically, we have from time 10 time entered into crude oil or refined products swap contracts, call option
contracts, collar contracts or jet fuel purchase commitments to provide some short-term hedge protection {(generally three
to six months) against sudden and signiftcant increases in jet fuel prices. As pari of our hedging strategy, we take into
account the volume and date of flight for the tickets sold comprising our current air traffic liability, the amount of jet
fuel that has been delivered or we have under contract and the volume of fuel required by us to complete the
itinerary for those tickets already sold. We then construct a hedge position that is designed to better hedge fuel
prices with respect o tickets already sold, for which we can no longer adjust our pricing. Implicit in this strategy is
our belief that, as to tickets not yet sold, the market will be efficient and that fare levels will adjust to keep pace with
fuel costs.

As of December 31, 2007, we had hedged approximately 20% and 5% of our projected fuel requirements
for the first and second quarters of 2008, respectively, using heating oil option contracts forming zero cost collars
with a weighted average call price of $2.44 per gallon and a weighted average put price of 52.28 per gallon. At
December 31, 2007, the fair value of our fuel hedges was $24 million and is included in prepayments and other current
assets in our consolidated balance sheet. We estimate that a 10% increase in the price of heating oil a1 December 31,
2007 would increase the fair value related 1o the fuel hedges outstanding at that date by $28 million.

At December 31, 2006, our fuel hedges outstanding were in a loss posilion. The fair value of our obligation
related to these contracts was $18 million and is included in accrued other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet.

Foreign Currency. We are exposed to the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on the U.S. dollar value of
foreign currency denominated operating revenue and expenses. We attempl to mitigate the effect of certain potential
foreign currency losses by entering into forward and option contracts that effectively enable us to sell Japanese yen,
British pounds, Canadian dollars and euros expected to be received from the respective denominated cash inflows over
the next 12 months at specified exchange rates.

At December 31, 2007, we had forward contracts outstanding to hedge the following cash inflows from
passenger licket sales in foreign currencies:

s Approximately 25% of our projected British pound-denominated cash flows in 2008

*  Approximately 39% of our projected Canadian dollar-denominated cash flows in 2008
+  Approximately 43% of our projected Japanese yen-denominated cash flows in 2008
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A uniform 10% strengthening in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to each foreign cusrency would have the
following impact on our existing forward contracts at December 31, 2007 (in millions):

Increase in Increase in Resulting

Fair Value Underlying Exposure Net Loss
British pound ................ £9 531 $(22)
Canadian dollar.............. 4 {(20) {16)
Japanese yen ......cc.oovenn 22 (35) (13)

At December 31, 2006, we had forward contracts outstanding to hedge the following cash inflows from
passenger ticket sales in foreign currencies:

e Approximately 48% of our projected British pound-denominated cash flows in 2007
s Approximately 32% of our projected euro-denominated cash flows in 2007

The fair value of these hedges was not material at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

Interest Rates. Our results of operations are affected by fluctuations in interest rates (e.g., interest expense on
variable-rate debt and interest income earned on short-term investments). We had approximately $1.8 billion of
variable-rate debt as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. If average interest rates increased by 100 basis
points during 2008 as compared to 2007, our projected 2008 interest expense would increase by approximately 518
million afier taking into account scheduled maturities.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we estimated the fair value of $2.0 billion and $2.5 billion (camrying value)
of our fixed-rate debt to be $1.9 billion and $2.8 billion, respectively, based upon discounted future cash flows using our
current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of instruments or market prices. [f market interest rates increased
100 basis points at December 31, 2007, the fair value of our fixed-rate debt would increase by approximately $35
million. Estimating the fair value of the remaining fixed-rate debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006, with a carrying value
of $929 million and $924 million, respectively, was not practicable due to the large number of remaining debt
instruments with relatively small carrying amounts.

A change in market interest rates would also impact interest income eamed on our cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments. Assuming our cash, cash equivalents and shori-lerm investments remain at their December 31,
2007 levels, a 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates would result in a corresponding increase or decrease
in interest income of approximately 328 miilion during 2008.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, The
Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
Company's management and Board of Directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial reporting and financial statement preparation and presentation.

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's inlernal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 was conducied. [n making this assessment, management used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework, Based on their assessment, managemeni conchided that, as of December 31, 2007,
the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.

The etfectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, has been
audited by Emst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm who also has audited the
Company's consolidated financial stalements included in this Annual Report. Emst & Young's report on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting appears below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Continental Airlines, Inc.

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Continental Airlines, Inc. (the "Company")
as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the "COSO criteria”). The Company's
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal conirol over financial reporting was maintained in all matenal respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, lesting and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) perlain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or delect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
conirols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinton, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated slatements of operations, common stockholders' equity, and cash flows of the Company for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated February 20, 2008 expressed an
ungualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 20, 2008




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Continental Airlines, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Continental Airlines, Inc. (the "Company™)
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, common stockholders' equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducied our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audil 10 obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U5,
generally accepled accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 8 and 10 to the consolidated financial sialements, the Company adopted, effective
January 1, 2006, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share Based Payment," and,
effective December 31, 2006, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statemenis No. 87, 88, 106 and
132(R)", respectively.

We also have audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the
Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 20, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 20, 2008




CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
| (In millions, except per share data)

| Year Ended December 31,

! 2007 2006 2005

1 Operaling Revenue:
Passenger (excluding fees and taxes of $1,499, §1,369 and $1,176) ............... $12,995  §12,003 $10,235
CUTO oo oeeeoeoee oo eeeevesss s ss e b 453 457 416
1T SO OO eSO USSP OTPOOTPOP PP 784 668 557

14,232 13.128 11.208
Operating Expenses:

Aircraft fuel and related LAXES ....vvove ettt crre e re e e ae s 3,354 3,034 2.443
Wages, salaries and related COSIS ..o 3,127 2.875 2,649
Regional capacity purchase, Nel. ..ot 1,793 1,791 1,572
ATRCraft TENMALS ..o s e e 994 990 628
Landing fees and olher remials. .. ..ot 790 764 708
DIStrIDULLON COBS 1.vvivrirrreeeerreee et e scin et ar b vt em e e et 682 630 588
Maintenance, materials and FEPAITS ......covviniininiiii s 621 547 455
Depreciation and amortization ........ciereeeiciimennsii s 413 391 389
PaSSENEET SEIVICES covvvveeieeeeeccece ettt st 389 356 332
Special ChATZES ......cvceeeeceee e csa b e 13 27 67
L8]] 1= U SUUSOEO U ST OO U OO RSOOSR O SRS 1,369 1,235 1.116
13,545 12,660 11.247
Operating, INCOME (LOSS) c-ceveerreiiiiiisisin st nsraseess e s s bt coe 687 468 (39)
Nonoperating Income (Expense):

TILETESE EXPENSE ..vevrrvierereicesaceneeermsit e int s sa e st s s e sa s s s b ea g8 es s mem e e e emeas s {383) (401) {410)
Interest CapItalzed .......ooveveoiee e e 27 18 12
INLETEST ITCOITIC Lovvaresieeieeersresnresee e e eneeee e mabt st e b st e e s s b b s s e pmean s e b s s e b e s b e s 160 131 72
Income from Olher COMPANIES .....coeiiiiieii s s 18 61 90
Gains on dispositions of iNVESIMENES ... 37 g2 204
OURET, MEL.u..iiiiitivirreereicrt st e e e oo mab bbb e b s e sasarmsa b o b ebab b e e s e e e amens 20 - 3
(121) (99) (29

Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle ... 566 369 {68)
INCOMNE TAXES....cuecveieeietnissesrieeeceaeeaseeeneenessesa et et et aeneraeaas sesrrssnesasesnsasesnsesnmnnnnnesnn (107) - -
Income {Loss) before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ....... 459 369 {68)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ..o - (26) -
NEl INCOME (LOSS) 1nreieiieie e eciieet e r et s st eas s b s s s s bbbt nnes $_439 5_343 S_(68)

(continued on next page)
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CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Earnings (Loss} per Share:
Basic:
Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ... $4.73 54.15 $(0.96)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ... - (0.29) -
NETINCOME {LOSS) -.ooiiminieecveceeeteee v tesastessssasesessrseseseeaesesbrssseararesannerasaseeseacas 54.73 $.3.86 5(0.96)
Diluted:
Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ... $4.18 $3.53 $(0.97)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ..o - (0.23) -
NEt INCOME (LOSS) c.viveiiieisieneiriesrmsererreiniersersessssassassssaseressnsessenseasesmsessssssnenns $4.18 $3.30 $00.97)
Shares Used for Computation:
5 TP O TPV 97 89 70
DHIBLEM. .. erneen e s sa e e e e s b sa e bbe s r e s e 114 111 70

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an inlegral part of these statements.




CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except for share data)

December 31,

ASSETS 2007 2006
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equIVAIENIS. ...t 52,128 $2.123
SHOPI-LEIT HIVESUTIENIS .ouevvesetees ettt srisns s sb s s aas e s e b e s neas 675 361
Total unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and short-lerm invesiments ................. 2,803 2,484
ReStricled €ash ..o ettt e 179 265
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful receivables of $7 and $7......... 606 582
Spare parts and supplies, net of allowance for obsolescence of $80 and $70 .......... 271 217
Deferred INCOME LAXES ....viciiereceerereerercerercc e te st s ss e s ans 259 165
Prepayments and other ... 443 416
TOtA] CUITENT BSSELIS cuvevrnrereeenrrserssrsressrmceseeecerecemermesasssass e sasessssesstesassbessssrerssaensasens 4.561 4.129
Property and Equipment:
Owned property and equipment:
FLZNt €QUIPINENL......vovvecirce et s ittt st 7,182 6,973
10111V O OO PO TS 1,548 1,430
8,730 8,403
Less: Accumulated depreciation.........ooooeiiiciiccniiniiminnsnrese e 2,790 2.539
5,940 5,864
Purchase deposits for flighl equipment ..o e 414 183
Capital 182SES ... 297 303
Less: Accumulated amoriZation ...t 93 87
204 216
Total property and eqUIPMENt, NEL......ccccccooiiirrriimissnn e 6,558 6,263
RIOULES ... ctvietiiiiiiieiiesi s enieasssaessan s ses o s e e e e e ibs b he s s ha bbb e s e s be s aR R e e b nen s e ease s e e saenessnes s sasananas 484 484
Airport operating rights, net of accumulated amortization of $362 and $348 ............. 222 120
investment in Other COMPANIES ......oovvireiecii it s s n 69 81
011 B Tt A 1 V=1 A OO U OO PP PSS S P PPOPPIS 21 231
TOLAE ASSELS .o.ovvvvivvieiesiseeesesecesesrasesssesesese e s b b n b s antaeseerar et et tsasssrsssemamemenanans 512,105 $11,308

(continued on next page)
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CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except for share data)

December 31,

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 2007 2006
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital leases..................... $ 652 $ 574
Accounts payable ... 1.013 938
Adir traffic and frequent flyer liability.......coooeeeiiiiiiccec 1,967 1,712
Accrued payroll. ... e e 545 387
Accrued other Habilities ........cveciiverireerinnreesesnee e 272 323
Total current Habililies ... 4,449 3.934
Long-Term Debt and Capilal Leases.........coooviiiivieiininrinieee s 4.366 4.859
Deferred InCome Taxes .......ccoccovvvevmneiininin et 359 165
Accrued Pension Liability ..ot 534 1,149
Accrued Retiree Medical Benefits............oooiiiiiiiee 235 203
OURET e csrresrrsrsie e s siae s e s s e s b e rsraesanssresssassrnernsnnnesrsaren 612 651

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock - $.01 par, 10,000,000 shares authorized; one share of

Series B issued and outstanding, stated at par value..........ccooceens - -
Class B common stock - 5.01 par, 400,000,000 shares authorized;

98,208,888 and 91.816,121 shares issued and outstanding .............. 1 1
Additional paid-in capital ... 1,606 1,370
Retained earnings {accumulated deficit) .............ccccivieniiiiinnenn, 448 {(n
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... (505} (1.,013)

Total stockholders' equity ..o 1,550 347
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUity ....o..ovcueeeceicvcecee, 512,105 $11,308

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activilies:
NEt INCOME (LOSS) cuviiviiiiiisierirrerirerrsrnaeeessee e e et ree s bsssrsstssinsassns snesrnsssanacmnases $ 459 $ 343 S (68)
Adjusiments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operaling activities:
Depreciation and amortization............coooimiiinineirisier s 413 391 389
SPecial ChATEES ..o s 13 27 67
Gains on dispositions of INVESIMENLS............c.cccoiim s 3N (92) (204)
Undistributed equity in income of other COMPANIEs .............cocviniiininininin (18) (36) (62)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..o - 26 -
Stock-based compensation relaled 10 equily awardS.....ooiiineneees 27 34 -
Deferred MCOME LAXES .ovvvvvriervrevriiiiesecrceic e re ettt ss e se e st sn s s smesrastens 101 - -
L0 11 ¢ =3 o 1 V=1 SO USSP PR 48 26 (18)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in acCounts reCeivable ......oooviviviicecee e s ees (29 (70 (56)
Increase in spare parts and SUPPHES ..ottt (66) (26) N
{Increase) decrease in prepayments and other assets ..o 16 (56) {59
Increase in accounts payable ... 71 104 B8
Increase in air traffic and frequent flyer ability..........ooiiomnieninens 255 237 318
{Decrease) increase in accrued pension liability and other .......o.ooovveeeeae (120) 150 69
Net cash provided by operating activities ... 1,133 1,058 457
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital eXPEnTilUreS .. ...ooverriiiiii e bbb s (445) (300) {185)
Purchase deposits paid in connection with aircraft deliveries, net......occoeee (219) (81) (3
(Purchase) sale of short-term Investments, NEl........eovvreroeeereaereee e (314) (127) 46
Proceeds from sale of InveStmEnts, NEL. ...ooveveenerencvienis e 65 156 172
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment..........ccooooieivennninin i 67 10 53
Decrease {(increase) in restricted cash...........ci 86 (24) (30)
L6111 SO OO OO U OO OO TP - - (2)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing aclivities ........oceeeviiiieenniiicininans {760) {366) 51
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payments on long-lerm debt and capital lease obligations......ccoooniiinenne. (429) (948) (662)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debl ... 26 574 436
Proceeds from issuance of common S10CK. ..o 35 82 227
L8 11 1V ST OO SO PO PP CUPP PO PSPPIt - - 36
Net cash (used in} provided by financing activities..........oonccvriiinnninns (368) (292) 37
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents..........cocoovvevniiiiiiiceciiicnn 5 400 545
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period ..o iesnenecnecas 2,123 1,723 1,178
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period ..., 54128 82,123 $1,723
Supplemental Cash Flows Information:
INLETESE PAI ..ottt et s emea st $ 383 $ 382 $ 385
Income taxes paid (refunded) .....c.cccoorrviciiinin e § 2 S () s 2
Investing and Financing Activities Not Affecting Cash:
Property and equipment acquired through the issuance of debt................ $190 5192 8-
Contribution of ExpressJet Holdings stock 1o pension plan.............cceceee. § - s - £ 130
Common stock issued upon conversion of 4.5% Convertible Notes.......... $170 s - s -

The accompanying Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

40




CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
{In millions)

Retained Accumutated
Class B Additional Eamnings Other Treasury
Common Stock Paid-In (Accumulated Comprehensive Stock,
Shares  Amount Capital Deficit) Loss At Cost Total
December 31,2004 ..o 66 1 £1.408 $_474 B(587) $(1,141) $155
INELLOSS .ooceee et - - - {68) - - (68)
Other Comprehensive Loss:
Increasce in additional minimum
pension Hability ....ooereeeconecenns - - - - (96) - (96)
Unrealized gain on derivative
INSITUMETIES ccvovv v enscnrenssseenas - - - - g - _8
Total Comprehensive Loss ......... (156)

Issuance of common stock
pursuant to stock offering .............. 18 - 203 - - - 203
Issuance of common stock

pursuant to stock plans 2 _- _ 24 _ - - - _24
December 31, 2005, 86 1 1,635 _406 (675) 1.141) 226
Net Income ..o - - - 343 - - 343
Other Comprehensive Income:

Decrease in additional

minimum pension liability ............. - - - - 68 - 68

Unrealized loss on derivative

INSIRITIENIS o oovevv e rersrererrssarrarranes - - - - (21 - _2h

Total Comprehensive Income ....... 390
Issuance of common stock

pursuant to stock plans................... 6 - 82 - - - 82
Stock-based compensation................ - - 34 - - - 34
Retirement of treasury stock ............. - - (381 (760) - 1,141 -
Impact of adoption of SFAS 158 ...... _- - - - (385) - {38%)
December 31, 2006........cccocvreirnnnn 92 A 1,370 an (1.013) - 347
Net Income ..o - - - 459 - - 459
Other Comprehensive [ncome:

Unrealized gain on derivative
INSLIUMENTS.c.ceeeiieecrace e racnernens - - - - 45 - 45
Net change related to employee
benefit plans.......ccvvvveiirrinecninnns - - - - 463 - _463
Total Comprehensive Income ..... 967

Conversion of 4.5%

convertible notes.....ovvvvcvievenviernans 4 - 174 - - - 174
Issuance of common stock

pursuant 10 stock plans........c..o..e... 2 - 35 - - - 35
Stock-based compensation................ - _- 23 - - - _27
December 31, 2007 ......cocovcvrervivens 98  S_1 $1.606 $.448 $4505) $___- SL550

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of thesc statements.
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CONTINENTAL AIRLINES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continental Airlines, Inc., a Delaware corporation, 1s a major United States air carrier engaged in the
business of transporting passengers, cargo and mail. Including our wholly-owned subsidiary, Continenial
Micronesia, Inc. ("CMI1"), and regional flights operated on our behalf under capacity purchase agreements with other
carriers, we are the world's fifth largest airline as measured by the number of scheduled miles flown by revenue
passengers in 2007. Qur primary regional capacity purchase agreements are with Expresslet Airlines, Inc.
("ExpressJet”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ExpressJet Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings"), and Chautauqua Airlines, Inc.,
("Chautauqua™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Republic Airways Holdings, Inc. Our regional operations using
regional jet aircrafi are conducled under the name "Continental Express" and those using turboprop aircraft are
cenducted under the name "Continental Connection.”

As used in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the terms "Continental,” "we," "us," "our"
and similar terms refer to Continental Airlines, Inc. and, unless the context indicates otherwise, its consolidated
subsidiaries.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Principles of Consolidation. Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Continental and
all wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

(b) Investments_in_Other Companies. Invesiments in unconsolidated other companies that are not variable
interest entities (see Note 14) are accounted for by the equity method when we have the ability 1o exercise
significant influence over the operations of the companies.

(c) Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuits could differ from
those estimates.

(d) Cash _and Cash Equivalents. We classify short-term, highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into cash and have a maturity of three months or less when purchased as cash and cash
equivalents. Restricted cash includes restricied short-term investments and is primarily collateral for
estimated future workers' compensation claims, credit card processing contracts, letters of credit and
performance bonds.

(e) Short-Term Investmenis. We invest in commercial paper. money market securities, asset-backed securities,
auction rate securities and U.S. government agency securities, which are classified as available-for-sale and
are stated at fair value. Asset-backed securities have an average maturity of twelve months or less. At
December 31, 2007, $398 million principal amount was due to mature within the next twelve months, a
portion of which was reported as cash and cash equivalents, and $21 miilion principal amount was due to
mature afler twelve months but before two years. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
securilies are reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss and were not material at
December 31, 2007,

We held $387 million of student loan-related auction rate securities at December 31, 2007 ($285 million in
short-term investments and $102 million in restricted cash). These securities are variable-rate debt
instruments with contractual maturities generally greater than ten years and whose interest rales are reset
every 28 or 35 days, depending on the terms of the particular instrument. These securities are secured by
pools of student loans guaranteed by state-designated guarantly agencies and reinsured by the United States
government. All of the auction rate securities held by us are senior obligations under the applicable indentures
authorizing the issuance of such securities. While all of the auctions involving all of the securities were
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successful during January 2008, auctions involving $128 million of these securities failed in February 2008,
resulting in our continuing 1o hold such securities. As of February 20, 2008, including the securities involved
in failed auctions, we held $314 million of these auction rate securities ($237 million in shor-term
investments and $77 million in restricted cash).

Spare Parts and Supplies. Inventories, expendable parts and supplies related to flight equipment are carried
at average acquisition cost and are expensed when consumed in operations. An allowance for obsolescence
is provided over the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the related aircrafi, as well as to
reduce the carrying cost of spare parts currently identified as excess to the lower of amortized cost or net
realizable value. We recorded additions to this allowance for expense of $11 million in the year ended
December 31, 2007 and $7 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. The
allowance was reduced by 81 million, $32 million and 35 million in the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 20035, respectively, due primarily to the sale of surplus parts. Spare parts and supplies are
assumed 1o have an estimated residual value of 10% of original cost. These allowances are based on
management estimates, which are subject to change.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated 1o estimated
residual values over their estimaled useful lives using the siraight-line method. Jet aircraft and rotable
spare paris are assumed to have estimated residual values of 15% and 10%, respectively, of original cost;
other categories of property and equipmeni are assumed 1o have no residual value. The estimated useful
lives of our property and equipment are as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Jet aircraft and SIMUIBLOTS ..covvviiiiiiiiiiecc s 2510 30 years
Rotable Spare parts ..o Average lease term or

useful life for related aircraft
Buildings and IMprovements...........cvviveieviieeerniesiesinsssnsisisssissssssasenssens 10 10 30 years
Food service eqUIPMENt .......coooiiinieinein e 6 to 10 years
Maintenance and engineering equipment .........cccoovveiiieereneeeesneinssnens 8 years
Surface transportation and ground equipment............... 6 to 8 years

Communication and meteorological equipment 5 years
Computer SOFIWATE .....c.coieiciiiiieiiiie e srietee e e 310 10 years
Capital leases...........ccoeuee. Shorter of lease
term or useful life
Leasehold improvemenis.. ... i inrerssnierminsenssssssssssesseeereres Shorter of lease
term or useful life

Amortization of asseis recorded under capital leases is included in depreciation expense in our consolidated
statement of operations.

The carrying amount of computer sofiware was $77 million and $76 million at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Depreciation expense related to computer software was 328 million for each of the
three years ended December 31, 2007.

Routes and Airport Operating Rights. Routes represent the right to fly between cities in different countries.
Routes are indefinite-lived intangible assets and are not amortized. We perform a test for impairment of
our roules in the fourth quarter of each year.

Airport operating rights represent gate space and slots {the right to schedule an arrival or departure within
designated hours at a particular airport). Airport operaling rights al domestic airports totaled 3106 million
and $120 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These assets are amortized over the stated
term of the related lease (for gates) or 20 years (for slots). Amortization expense related to domestic airport
operating rights was $14 million, $13 million and $i% million for the years ended December 31, 2007,
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2006 and 2005. respectively, We expect annual amortization expense related to domestic airport operating
rights to be approximately $14 million in each of the next five years.

Our international slots are indefinite-lived intangible assets and are not amortized. During 2007, we
acquired summer slots at London’s Heathrow Airport for $116 million. We have reached agreements to
acquire winter slots at Heathrow and expect to pay $93 million for these slots in 2008. We perform a test
for impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets in the fourth quarter of each year.

Measurement of Impairment of Long-Lived Assels. We record impairment losses on long-lived assets,
consisting principally of property and equipment and domestic airport operaling rights, when evenis or
changes in circumstances indicate, in management's judgment, that the assets might be impaired and the
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amount of
those assets. The net carrying value of assets not recoverable is reduced to fair value if lower than the
carrying value. In determining the fair market value of the assets, we consider market trends, recent
transactions involving sales of similar assets and, if necessary, estimates of future discounted cash flows.

Revenue/Air Traffic Liability. Passenger revenue is recognized either when transportation is provided or
when the ticket expires unused, rather than when a ticket is sold. Nonrefundable tickets expire on the date
of intended flight, unless the date is extended by notification from the customer in advance of the ntended
flight.

We are required to charge certain taxes and fees on our passenger tickets. These taxes and fees include U.S.
federal transportation taxes, federal security charges, airport passenger facility charges and foreign arnval and
departure taxes. These taxes and fees are legal assessments on the customer. As we have a legal obligation
to act as a collection agent with Tespect to these taxes and fees, we do not include such amounts in
passenger revenue. We record a liability when the amounts are coliected and relieve the liability when
payments are made to the applicable government agency.

Under our capacity purchase agreements with regional carriers, we purchase all of the capacity related to
aircrafi covered by the contracts and are responsible for selling all of the related seat inventory. We record the
related passenger revenue and related expenses, with payments under the capacity purchase agreements
reflected as a separate operating expense in our consolidated statement of operations.

The amount of passenger ticket sales not yet recognized as revenue is included in our consolidated balance
sheets as air traffic and frequent flyer liability. We perform periodic evaluations of the estimated liability
for passenger ticket sales and any adjustments, which can be significant, are included in results of
operations for the periods in which the evaluations are completed. These adjustments relate primarily to
differences between our statistical estimation of certain revenue transactions and the related sales price, as well
as refunds, exchanges, interline transactions and other items for which final settlement occurs in periods
subsequent to the sale of the related tickets at amounts other than the original sales price.

Revenue from the shipment of cargo and mail is recognized when transportation is provided. Other
revenue includes revenue from the sale of frequent flyer miles (see (k) below), ticket change fees, charter
services, sublease income on aircraft leased to Holdings but not operated for us and other incidental
services. Ticket change fees relate to non-refundable tickets, but are considered a separate transaction from
the air transportation because they represent a charge for our additional service to modify a previous order.
Ticket change fees are recognized as other revenue in our consolidated statement of operations at the time
the fees are assessed.

Frequent Flyer Program. For those OnePass accounts thal have sufficient mileage credits to claim the
lowest leve! of free travel, we record a liability for either the estimated incremental cost of providing travel
awards that are expected to be redeemed with us or the contractual rate of expected redemption on alliance
carriers. Incremental cost includes the cost of fuel, meals, insurance and miscellaneous supplies, but does
not include any costs for aircrafl ownership, maintenance, labor or overhead allocation. A change 1o these
cost estimates, the actual redemption activity, the amount of redemptions on alliance carriers or the

44




minimum award level could have a significant impact on our liability in the period of change as well as
future years, The liability is adjusted periodically based on awards earned, awards redeemed, changes in
the incremental costs and changes in the OnePass program, and is included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets as air traffic and frequent flyer liability. Changes in the liability are recognized
as passenger revenue in the period of change.

We also sell mileage credits in our frequent flyer program to participating entities, such as credit/debit card
companies, alliance carriers, hotels, car rental agencies, utilities and various shopping and gift merchants.
Revenue from the sale of mileage credits is deferred and recognized as passenger revenue over the period
when transportation is expected to be provided, based on estimates of its fair value. Amounts received in
excess of the expected transportation's fair value are recognized in income currently and classified as other
revenue. A change to the time period over which the mileage credits are used (currently six to 2& months),
the actual redemption activity or our estimate of the amount or fair value of expecied transpertation could
have a significant impact on our revenue in the year of change as well as future years.

At December 31, 2007, we estimated that approximately 2.4 million free travel awards outstanding were
expected to be redeemed for free travel on Continental, Continental Express, Continental Connection, CMI or
alliance airlines. Qur total liability for future OnePass award redemptions for free travel and unrecognized
revenue from sales of OnePass miles to other companies was approximately $318 million at December 31,
2007. This liability is recognized as a component of air traffic and frequent flyer liability in our consolidated
balance sheets.

H Maintenance and Repair Costs. Maintenance and repair costs for owned and leased flight equipment,
including the overhaul of aircraft components, are charged 1o operatling expense as incurred. Maintenance
and repair cosis also include engine overhaul costs covered by cosl-per-hour agreements, a majority of
which are expensed on the basis of hours flown.

{m) Advertising Costs. We expense the costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense was $106
million, $95 million and $91 million for the years ended December 3§, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,

(n) Regional Capacity Purchase, Net. Payments made to regional carriers under capacity purchase agreemenis are
reported in regional capacity purchase, net, in our consolidated statement of operations. Regional capacity
purchase, net, includes all fuel expense on flights operated for us under capacity purchase agreements and is net
of our rental income on aircraft leased to ExpressJet and flown for us.

(0) Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made in the prior years' consolidated financial
statements and related note disclosures 1o conform to the current year’s presentation,

NOTE 2 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

SFAS 157. In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement No.
157, "Fair Value Measuremenis” ("SFAS 157™), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies to other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, but does not require any new fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for us as of January 1, 2008; however, in February 2008, the FASB issued a
FASB Siaff Position that defers the effective date for us 1o January 1, 2009 for all nonfinancial assets and labilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis (that is, at
least annually). We adopted the required provisions of SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008. The adoption did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements,

SFAS 159. In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities" ("SFAS 159™). SFAS 159 permits entities to measure at fair value eligible financial
instruments that are not currently measured at fair value. This election, which may be applied on an instrument by
instrument basis, is typically irrevocable once made. SFAS 159 is effective for us as of January 1, 2008; however,
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we do not intend to measure any additional financial instruments at fair value as a result of this statement.
Therefore, the adoption of SFAS 159 is not anticipated to have an effect on our consolidated financial statements,

SFAS 141R. In December 2007, the FASB issued Siatement No. 141(R), "Business Combinations”
("SFAS 141R"). SFAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer (a} recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling
interest in the acquiree; (b) recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain
from a bargain purchase; and (c) determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements
to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141R applies prospectively to all
business combination transactions for which the acquisition date is on or afier January 1, 2009,

NOTE 3 - EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the components of basic and diluted earnings {loss) per share (in millions):

2007 2006 2005

Numerator:

Numerator for basic earnings (loss) per share - net income (loss).. $459 $343 3(68)
Effect of dilutive securities - interest expense on:

5% Convertible NOES......oove it 7 7 -

6% Convertible Junior Subordinated Debentures

Held by Subsidiary TTust..........occiiei i 12 11 -

4.53% Convertible NOLES.......ococireriiiecrrie e 7 -
Reduction in our proporiionate equity in Holdings

resulting from the assumed conversion of Holdings'

CONVETBIE SECUTIHES oo
Numerator for diluted earnings (loss) per share - net

income (loss) afler assumed conversions and effect

of dilutive securities of equity investee ..., 3478 8367 $(69)

.
=
e

Denominator:
Denominator for basic eamings (loss) per share -
weighted average shares ..., 97 89 70

Effect of dilutive securities:
5% Convertible NOES.....ovvvr et s s
6% Converlible Junior Subordinated Debentures
Held by Subsidiary TTUSE ..o
4.5% Convertible NOLES..cooovviiiicciee e niee e
Employee stock Opions. ... ..o
Dilutive potential common shares ..., ]

o
o
'

"-..'I|-l=~| s
SN
]

Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share -
weighted-average shares afler assumed conversions.................... 11

=

The adjustments to nel income to determine the numerator for diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are net of the related effect of profit sharing.

Approximately 18 million potential shares of common stock related to convertible debt securities were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share in the year ended December 31, 2005 because they
were antidilutive. In addition, approximately 1 million, I million and 12 million weighted average options to
purchase shares of our common stock were excluded from the computation of diluled earnings per share for the
vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, because the options’ exercise prices were greater than
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the average market price of the common shares during the relevant period or the eftect of including the options
would have been antidilutive.

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 3| consisted of the following (in millions):

2007 2006
Secured
Notes payable, interest rates of 5.0% to 8.5% (weighted average rate of 7.1%

as of December 31, 2007}, payable through 2019 ..o $2,226 $2,422
Floating rate notes, with indicated inlerest rates:

LIBOR (4.7% on December 31, 2007) plus 0.35% 10 1.95%, payable

Through 2019 ... s 1,095 1,042

LIBOR plus 3.3753%, payable in 201 | ... e, 350 350

LIBOR plus 3.125% to 3.25%, payable through 2004 ......ccovvevririerieiinininn, 196 166

LIBOR plus 2.5% to 4.5%, payable through 2016 .....ceviiviniiniiiiinn, 174 193
L 11 1 T OO PO PP OO RO O USRS TOPON 38 33
Unsecured
Convertible junior subordinated debentures, interest rate of 6.0%,

Payable in 2030, ..o e s 248 248
Note payable, interest rate of 8.75%, payable in 2011 ... 200 200
Convertible notes, interest rate of 5.0%, callable beginning in 2010.................... 175 175
Note payable, interest rate of 8.125%, payable in 2008 ..o 39 112
Convertible notes, interest rate of 4.5%, payable in 2007 ........ooovinnineinen - _200

4,791 5,191
Less: CUTTENU MAIIFILIES ..ovr e eieeee et et e ec e et etsbeebb et a s _620 _ 558
TOMAL e e e $4,171 54,633

Maturities of long-term debt due over the next five years are as follows (in millions):

Year ending December 31,

2008 et e e b 3 620
2009 ..o e 492
2000 it et 635
2011 o e 1,009
2012 e e e s 445

Most of our property and equipment, spare parts inventory, certain routes, and the outstanding common
stock and substantially all of the other assets of our wholly-owned subsidiaries Air Micronesia, Inc. ("AMI") and
CMI are subject 1o agreements securing our indebtedness. We do not have any debt obligations that would be
accelerated as a result of a credit rating downgrade.

At December 31, 2007, we also had letters of credit and performance bonds relating 1o various real estate
and customs obligations in the amount of $53 million with expiration dates through August 2011,

Financing of New Aircrafi Deliveries. On April 10, 2007, we obtained financing for 12 Boeing 737-800s
and 18 Boeing 737-900ERs, which we expect to apply 1o 30 of the 32 Boeing 737 aircrafi scheduled to be delivered
to us in 2008, although we may instead choose 10 substitute certain Boeing 737-900ER aircraft scheduled 10 be
delivered in the first quarter of 2009. Pass-through trusts raised $1.1 billion through the issuance of three classes of
pass-through certificates. Class A certificates, with an aggregate principal amount of $757 million, bear interest at
5.983%, Class B certificates, with an aggregate principal amount of $222 million, bear interest at 6.903% and Class
C certificates, with an aggregate principal amount of $16& million, bear interest a1 7.339%. The proceeds from the
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sale of the certificates are initiatly being held by a depositary in escrow for the benefit of the certificate holders until
we use such funds to purchase the aircraft. These escrowed funds are not guaranteed by us and are not reported as
debt on our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2007 because the proceeds held by the depositary are not
our assets and interest earned on the proceeds, as well as any unused proceeds, will be distributed directly to the
certificate holders.

As we take delivery of each of the 30 aircraft in 2008 or 2009, we will issue equipment notes to the trusts,
which will purchase such notes with a portion of the escrowed funds. We will use the proceeds to finance the
purchase of the aircraft and will record the principal amount of the equipment notes that we issue as debt on our
conselidated balance sheet. As of February 20, 2008, we have taken delivery of five aircraft and recorded related
debt of $191 million. Principal payments on the equipment notes and the corresponding distribution of these
payments to cerlificate holders will begin in April 2010 and will end in April 2022 for Class A and B certificates and
April 2014 for Class C certificates. Additionally, the Class A and B certificates have the benefit of a liquidity
facility under which a third party agrees to make up 1o three semiannual interest payments on the certificates if a
default in the payment of interest occurs.

Secured Term Loan Facility. We and CMI have loans under a $350 million secured term loan facility. The
loans are secured by certain of our U.S.-Asia routes and related assets, all of the outstanding common stock of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries AMI and CMI and substantially all of the other assets of AMI and CMI, including route
authorities and related assets. The loans bear interest at a rate equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR™) plus 3.375% and are due in June 2011. The facility requires us to maintain a minimum balance of
unrestricted cash and shori-term investments of $1.0 billion at the end of each month. The loans may become due
and payable immediately if we fail 1o maintain the monthly minimum cash balance and upon the occurrence of other
customary events of default under the loan documents. If we fail to maintain 2 minimum balance of unrestricted
cash and shor-term investments of $1.125 billion, we and CMI will be required to make a mandatory aggregate
$50 million prepayment of the loans.

In addition, the facility provides that if the ratio of the outstanding loan balance to the value of the
collateral securing the loans, as determined by the most recently delivered periodic appraisal, is greater than 52.5%,
we and CMI will be required to post additional coltateral or prepay the loans to reestablish a loan-to-collateral value
ratio of not greater than 52.5%. We are currently in compliance with the covenants in the facility.

Notes Secured by Spare Parts Inventory. We have two series of notes secured by the majority of our spare
parts inventory. The senior equipment notes, which total $190 million in principal amount, bear interest at the three-
month LIBOR plus 0.35%. The junior equipment notes, which total $130 million in principal amount, bear interest
at the three-month LIBOR plus 3.125%. A portion of the spare parts inventory that serves as collateral for the
equipment noles is classified as property and equipment and the remainder is classified as spare parts and supplies,
net.

In connection with these equipment notes, we entered into a collateral maintenance agreement requiring us,
among other things, 1o maintain a loan-to-collateral value ratio of not greater than 45% with respect to the senior
series of equipment notes and a loan-to-coliateral value ratio of not greater than 75% with respect 10 both series of
notes combined. We must also mainlain a certain level of rolable components within the spare pans collateral pool.
These ratios are calculated semi-annually based on an independent appraisal of the spare parts collateral pool. If any
of the collateral ratio requirements are not met, we must take action to meet all ratio requirements by adding
additional eligible spare parts to the collateral pool, redeeming a portion of the outstanding notes, providing other
collateral acceptable to the bond insurance policy provider for the senior series of equipment notes or any
combination of the above actions, We are currently i compliance with these covenants.

Convertible Debt Secunties. On July 1, 2006, our 5% Convertible Notes due 2023 with a principal amount
of $175 million became converlible into shares of our common stock al a conversion price of 820 per share. 1f a
holder of the noles exercises the conversion right, in lieu of delivering shares of our common stock, we may elect to
pay cash or a combination of cash and shares of our commeon stock for the notes surrendered. All or a portion of the
notes are also redeemable for cash at our option on or after June 18, 2010 at par plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any. Holders of the notes may require us to repurchase all or a pertion of their notes at par plus any accrued and
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unpaid interest on June 15 of 2010, 2013 or 2018. We may at our option choose to pay the repurchase price on those
dates in cash, shares of our common stock or any combination thereof. However, if we are required to repurchase
all or a portion of the notes, our policy is to settle the notes in cash. Holders of the notes may also require us 10
repurchase all or a portion of their notes for cash at par plus any accrued and unpaid interest if certain changes in
conirol of Continental occur. ’

In November 2000, Continental Aitlines Finance Trust 11, a Delaware statutory business trust (the "Trust")
of which we own all the common trust securities, completed a private placement of five million 6% Convertible
Preferred Securities, Term Income Deferrable Equity Securities or "TIDES." The TIDES have a liquidation value of
$50 per preferred security and are convertible at any time at the option of the holder into shares of common stock at
a conversion rate of $60 per share of common stock (equivalent to approximately 0.8333 share of common stock for
each preferred security). Distributions on the preferred securities are payable by the Trust at an annual rate of 6% of
the liquidation value of $50 per preferred security.

The sole assets of the Trust are 6% Convertible Junior Subordinated Debentures ("Convertible
Subordinated Debentures™) with an aggregate principal amount of $248 million as of December 31, 2007 issued by
us and which mature on November 15, 2030. The Convertible Subordinated Debentures are redeemable by us, in
whole or in part, on or afler November 20, 2003 at designated redemption prices. If we redeem the Convertible
Subordinated Debentures, the Trust must redeem the TIDES on a pro rata basis having an aggregate liquidation
value equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Convertible Subordinated Debentures redeemed. Otherwise,
the TIDES will be redeemed upon maturity of the Convertible Subordinated Debentures, unless previously
converted.

Taking into consideration our obligations under (i) the Preferred Securities Guarantee relating to the
TIDES, (ii) the Indenture relating to the Convertible Subordinated Debentures 1o pay all debt and obligations and all
costs and expenses of the Trust (other than U.S. withholding taxes) and (iii) the Indenture, the Declaration relating to
the TIDES and the Convertible Subordinated Debentures, we have fully and unconditionally guaranieed payment of
(i) the distributions on the TIDES, (ii) the amount payable upon redemption of the TIDES and (iii) the liquidation
amount of the TIDES.

In January 2007, $170 million in principal amount of our 4.5% convertible notes due on February 1, 2607
was converted by the holders into 4.3 million shares of our Class B common stock at a conversion price of $40 per
share. The remaining $30 million in principal amount was paid on February 1, 2007.

Credit Card Marketing Apreement. We have an agreement with Chase Bank USA, N.A. ("Chase") to
jointly market credit cards. In April 2005, Chase purchased $75 million of mileage credits under the program,
which are being redeemed for mileage purchases in 2007 and 2008 and recognized consistent with other mileage
sales in 2007 and 2008. In consideration for the advance purchase of mileage credits, we have provided a security
interest to Chase in certain transatlantic routes. The $75 million purchase of mileage credits has been treated as a
loan from Chase and is being reduced ratably in 2007 and 2008 as the mileage credits are redeemed. The agreement
expires at the end of 2009.

NOTE 5 - LEASES

We lease certain aircraft and other assets under long-term lease arrangements. Other leased assets include
real property, airport and terminal facilities, maintenance facilities, training centers and general offices. Most
aircrafi leases include both renewal options and purchase options. Because renewals of our existing leases were not
considered to be reasonably assured at the inception of the each lease, rental payments that would be due during the
renewal periods were not included in the determination of straight-line rent expense. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the related lease term or their useful life. The purchase options are generally effective
at the end of the lease term at the then-current fair market value. Our leases do not include residual value

guarantees.




At December 31, 2007, the scheduled future minimum lease payments under capital leases and the
scheduled future minimum lease rental payments required under operating leases were as follows (in millions):

Capital Operating Leases
Leases Aircrafi Non-aircrafi
Year ending December 31,
2008 ... e 46 $ 1,082 § 443
2009 ..o 16 1,023 423
20010 16 997 390
2011 o 16 946 383
2012 e i6 898 474
LALET YEATS .ot 4i4 4,863 4.400
Total minimum lease payments ..., 524 $9,809 $6,513
Less: amount representing interest ........oceveeveriireasennns 297
Present value of capital leases ......ccccoovvoirvvnveenniiinininens 227
Less: current malurities of capital leases........coovevvenn, 32
Long-term capital leases.........cccovviiiivnicnneninninrcrcnvnnnn, 5195

At December 31, 2007, we had 482 aircrafl under operating leases and two aircraft under capital leases,
including aircrafi subleased to Expresslet. These operating leases have remaining lease terms ranging up o 17
years. Projected sublease income 1o be received from ExpressJet through 2022, not included in the above table, is
approximaitely $3.8 billion. The operating lease amounts for aircrafi presented above include a portion of our
minimum noncancelable payments under capacity purchase agreements with our other regional carriers which
represents the deemed lease commitments on the related aircraft. See Note 15 for a discussion of our regional
capacity purchase agreements. Rent expense for non-aircraft operating leases totaled $535 million, $501 million and
$466 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

As part of our risk management program, we use a variety of derivative financial instruments (o help
manage our risks associated with changes in fuel prices and foreign currency exchange rates. We do not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

We are exposed to credit losses in the event of non-performance by issuers of financial instruments. To
manage credil risks, we select issuers based on credit ratings, limit our exposure to any one issuer under our defined
guidelines and monitor the market position with each counterparty.

The notional amounts of derivative financial instruments summarized below do not represent amounts
exchanged between parties and, therefore, are not a measure of our exposure resulting from our use of derivatives.
The amounts exchanged are calculated based upon the notional amounts as well as other terms of the instruments,
which relate to interest rates, exchange rates or other indices.

Fuel Price Risk Management. Historically, we have from time to lime entered into crude oil or refined
products swap coniracts, call option contracts, collar contracts or jet fuel purchase commitments to provide some short-
term hedge protection (generally three to six months) against sudden and significant increases in jet fuel prices.

As part of our hedging sirategy, we take into account the volume and date of flight for the tickets sold
comprising our current air traffic liability, the amount of jet fuel that has been delivered or we have under contract
and the volume of fuel required by us to complete the itinerary for those tickets already sold. We then construct a
hedge position that is designed to better hedge fuel prices with respect to tickets already sold, for which we can no
longer adjust our pricing. Implicit in this strategy is our belief that, as to tickets not yet sold, the market will be
efficient and that fare levels will adjust to keep pace with fuel costs.
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As of December 31, 2007, we had hedged approximately 20% and 5% of our projected fuel requirements
for the first and second quarters of 2008, respectively, using heating oil option contracts forming zero cost collars
with a weighted average call price of $2.44 per gallon and a weighted average put price of $2.28 per gallon. At
December 31, 2007, the fair value of our fuel hedges was $24 million and is included in prepayments and other current
assets in our consolidated balance sheet.

At December 31, 2006, our fuel hedges outstanding were in a loss position. The fair value of our obligation
related to these contracts was $18 million and is included in accrued other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet.
We had no fuel hedges ouistanding at December 31, 2005 or at any time during 2005,

We account for our fuel hedges as cash flow hedges. They are recorded at fair value in prepaymenis and other
current assets or accrued other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets with the offset to
accumulated other comprehensive income {loss), net of applicable income taxes and hedge ineffectiveness, and
recognized as a component of fuel expense when the underlying fuel being hedged is used. The ineffective portion of
the heating oil options is determined based on the correlation between heating oil prices and jet fuel prices. Hedge
ineffectiveness included in other nonoperating income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated stalement of
operations was income of $14 million in 2007 and was not material in 2006. Our gain (loss) related to fuel hedging
instrumenis included in aircrafi fuel and relaied taxes in our statement of operations was $3]1 million in 2007 and $(40)
million in 2006. An additional $6 million and S(8) million was recognized in regional capacity purchase, net in 2007 and
20006, respectively, representing the fuel hedge gain (loss) allocated 10 our regional operations.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Managemeni. We use foreign currency average rate options and forward
contracts to hedge against the currency risk associated with our forecasted Japanese yen, British pound, Canadian
dollar and euro-denominated cash flows. The average rate options and forward contracts have only nominal
intrinsic value at the date contracted.

We account for these instruments as cash flow hedges. They are recorded at fair value in prepayments and
other current assets or other accrued other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets with the oftset
10 accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable income taxes and hedge ineffectiveness, and
recognized as passenger revenue when the underlying service is provided. We measure hedge effectiveness of
average rate options and forward contracts based on the forward price of the underlying currency.  Hedge
ineffectiveness, if any, is included in other nonoperating income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations. We had no ineffectiveness related 10 foreign currency hedges for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, Our net gain (loss) on our foreign currency average rate option and forward
contracts was $(2) million, $2 million and 35 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. These gains (losses) are included in passenger revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations.

At December 31, 2007, we had forward contracts outstanding 1o hedge the following cash inflows from
passenger ticket sales in foreign currencies:

+  Approximately 25% of our projected British pound-denominated cash flows in 2008
Approximately 39% of our projected Canadian dollar-denominated cash flows in 2008
Approximately 43% of our projected Japanese yen-denominated cash fiows in 2008

At December 31, 2006, we had forward contracts outstanding to hedge the following cash inflows from
passenger ticket sales in foreign currencies:

e Approximately 48% of our projected British pound-denominated cash flows in 2007
e Approximately 32% of our projected euro-denominated cash flows in 2007

The fair value of these hedges was not material at December 31, 2007 or 2006,

Other Financial Instruments. Judgment is required in interpreting market data and the use of different

market assumptions or estimation methodologies may affect the estimated fair value amounts.
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e Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash. Cash equivalents and restricted cash are carried at cost and consist
primarily of U.S. Government and Agency money market funds and other AAA-rated money market funds
with original maturities of three months or less. These assets approximate fair value due to their shori~term
maturity.

e  Short-term Investments. Shor-term investments classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value.

e Investment in Other Companies. Shares of Copa Holdings, S.A. ("Copa"), the parent company of Copa
Airlines of Panama and Aero Republica of Colombia, are publicly traded. At December 31, 2007, based on
market prices, our investment in Copa shares, with a carrying value of $63 million, had a fair value of $164
million. See Note 13 for further discussion of investments in other companies.

e Debt. The fair value of our debt with a carrying value of $3.8 billion at December 31, 2007 and $4.3
billion at December 31, 2006 was approximately $3.8 billion and $4.6 billion, respectively. These
estimates were based on the discounted amount of future cash flows using our current incremental rate of
borrowing for similar liabilities or market prices. The fair value of the remaining debt at December 31,
2007 and 2006, with a carrying value of $929 million and $924 million, respectively, was not practicable to
estimate due to the large number of remaining debt instruments with relatively small carrying amounts.

e Investment in COLI Products. In connection with certain of our supplemental retirement plans, we have
company owned life insurance policies on certain of our employees. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
the carrying vatue of the underlying investments was $45 million and $42 million, respectively, which
approximated fair value.

»  Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable. The fair values of accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximated carrying value due to their short-term maturity.

NOTE 7 - PREFERRED AND COMMON STOCK

Preferred Stock. We have ten million shares of authorized preferred stock. The only preferred stock
outstanding at December 31, 2007 or 2006 was one share of Series B preferred stock, which is held by Northwest
Airlines, Inc. ("Northwest"). The Series B preferred stock ranks junior 1o all classes of capital stock other than our
common stock upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company. No dividends are payable on the Series
B preferred stock.

The holder of the Series B preferred stock has the right to block certain actions we may seek to take,
including:

e Certain business combinations and similar changes of control transactions involving us and a third
party major air carrier;
Certain amendments to our rights plan (or redemption of those rights);

e  Any dividend or distribution of all or substantially all of our assets; and
Cerlain reorganizations and restructuring transactions involving us.

The Series B preferred stock is redeemable by us at a nominal price under the following circumstances:

e Northwest Airlines, Inc. or certain of its affiliates transfers or encumbers the Series B preferred slock;

» Northwest Airlines Corporation or certain of its affiliates experiences, or enters into a definitive
agreement that will resull in, a "change of control” as defined by the certificate of designations
establishing the Series B preferred stock;

s  Our alliance with Northwest Airlines Corporation terminates or expires (other than as aresult of a
breach by us); or

»  Northwest Airlines Corporation or certain of its affiliates materially breaches its standstill obligations
10 us or triggers our rights agreement.

52

R



Common Stock. We currently have one class of common stock issued and outstanding, Class B common
stock. Bach share of common stock is entitled to one vole per share. On October 24, 2005, we completed a public
offering of 18 million shares of common stock, raising $203 million in cash. At December 31, 2007, approximately
26 million shares were reserved for future issuance related to the conversion of convertible debt securities and the
issuance of stock under our stock incentive plans.

As discussed in Note 4, $170 million in principal amount of our 4.5% convertible notes was converted by
the holders into 4.3 million shares of our Class B common stock in January 2007 at a conversion price of $40 per
share.

Treasury Stock. In December 2006, we retired 25.5 million shares of common stock held as treasury stock,
which represented all treasury stock held at that date. Upon retirement of the shares, we decreased additional paid-
in capital by $381 million and retained earnings by $760 million. The retirement had no effect on total stockholders’

equily.

Stockholder Rights Plan. We have a Rights Plan that was adopted effective November 20, 1998 and
expires on November 20, 2008, unless extended or unless the rights are earlier redeemed or exchanged by us.

The rights become exercisable upon the earlier of (1) the tenth day following a public announcement or
public disclosure of facts indicating that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons has acquired beneficial
ownership of 15% (or 25% in the case of an "institutional investor") or more of the total number of votes entitled to
be cast generally by holders of our common stock then outstanding, voting together as a single class (such person or
group being an "Acquiring Person™), or (2) the tenth business day (or such later date as may be determined by action
of our Board of Directors prior to such time as any person becomes an Acquiring Person) following the
commencement of, or announcement of an intention to make, a tender offer or exchange offer the consummation of
which would result in any person becoming an Acquiring Person. Certain entities related to us are exempt from the
definition of "Acquiring Person;" however, Northwest Airlines is not an exempt entity.

Subject to certain adjustments, if any person becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a right, other
than rights beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person and its affiliates and associates (which rights will thereafter
be void), will thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise thereof, that number of shares of common stock
having a market value of two times the exercise price ($200, subject to adjustment) of the right.

If at any time after a person becomes an Acquiring Person, (1) we merge into any other person, (2) any
person merges into us and all of our outstanding common stock does not remain outstanding afier such merger, or
(3) we sell 50% or more of our consolidated assets or earmning power, each holder of a right (other than the Acquiring
Person and its affiliates and associates) will have the right 1o receive, upon the exercise thereof, that number of
shares of common stock of the acquiring corporation (including us as successor thereto or as the surviving
corporation) which at the time of such transaction will have a market value of two times the exercise price of the
right.

At any time after any person becomes an Acquiring Person, and prior to the acquisition by any person or
group of a majority of our voting power, our Board of Directors may exchange the rights (other than rights owned
by such Acquiring Person, which will have become void), in whole or in part, at an exchange ratio of one share of
common stock per right (subject to adjustment).

At any time prior 10 any person becoming an Acquiring Person, our Board of Directors may redeem the
rights at a price of $.001 per right, subject to the approval of Northwest if the Series B preferred stock is
outstanding. This approval right does not apply to any redemption of the rights by our Board of Directors in
connection with certain specified transactions involving one or more parties that are not major catriers (or affiliates
of major carriers). The Rights Plan may be amended by our Board of Directors without the consent of the holders of
the rights, except that from and after the time that any person becomes an Acquiring Person, no such amendment
may adversely affect the interests of the holders of the rights (other than the Acquiring Person and its affiliates and
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associates). Untif a right is exercised, its holder, as such, will have no rights as one of our stockholders, including
the right to vote or to receive dividends.

Restrictions on Dividends and Share Repurchases. Our agreement with the union representing our pilots
provides that we will not declare a cash dividend or repurchase our outstanding common stock for cash until we
have contributed at least $500 million to the pilot defined benefit pension plan, measured from March 30, 2005.
Through February 20, 2008, we have made $445 million of contributions to this plan.

NOTE 8 - STOCK PLANS AND AWARDS

We have two equity incentive plans for management level employees and non-employee directors that
permit the issuance of shares of our common stock or settlement in cash based in part upon changes in the market
price of our common stock. One of the plans provides for awards in the form of stock options, restricted stock,
performance awards and incentive awards. The other plan, which expires in March 2008, permits awards of either
stock options or restricted stock. In addition, we also have two equity incentive plans pursuant to which stock
options were granted to employees in connection with our 2005 pay and benefit cost reductions; however, no further
stock options may be granted pursuant to these plans withou! stockholder approval. Approximately 2.8 million
shares remained available for award under all of these plans as of December 31, 2007, although stockholder
approval would be required before 1.2 million of such shares could be awarded.

Adoption of SFAS 123R. We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {"SFAS") No. 123R,
"Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS 123R") effective January 1, 2006. This pronouncement requires companies to
measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments (1ypically stock
options) based on the grant-date fair value of the award or at fair value of the award at each reporting date,
depending on the type of award granted. The fair value is estimated using option-pricing models. The resulting cost
is recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award,
which is usually the vesting period. For those awards issued subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123R that allow
for acceleration of vesting upon retirement, total compensation cost is recognized over the period ending on the first
eligible retirement date.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, this accounting treatment was optional with pro forma disclosures
required. Through December 31, 2005, we accounted for our stock-based compensation plans using the intrinsic
value method. Under this method, no expense related to our stock option plans was reflected in our results of
operations as all options granted under our plans have an exercise price equal 10 the fair market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant,

SFAS 123R is effective for all stock options we grant beginning January 1, 2006. Stock oplions granted
prior to January 1, 2006, but for which the vesting period is not complete, have been accounted for using the modified
prospective transition method provided by SFAS 123R. Under this method, we account for such options on a
prospectlive basis, with expense being recognized in our statement of operations beginning January 1, 2006 using the
grani-date fair valves previously calculated for our pro forma disclosures. We recognize the related compensation cost
not previously recognized in the pro forma disclosures over the remaining vesting periods. Our options typically vest in
equal annual installments over the required service period. Expense related to each portion of an option grant is
recognized over the specific vesting period for those options,

The adoption of SFAS 123R also changed the accounting for the restricted stock units ("RSUs") awarded
under our Long-Term Incentive and RSU Program, as discussed below. Additionally, it changed the accounting for
our employee stock purchase plan, which did not have a material impact on our statement of operations.

Stock Options. Stock options are awarded with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the stock
on the date of granl. Employee stock options typically vest over a three to four year period and generally have five
to eight year terms. Outside director stock options vest in full on the date of grant and have ten year terms. Under
the terms of our management incentive plans, a change in control would result in options outstanding under those
plans becoming exercisable in full. Options granted under our other plans do not automatically vest upon a change
in control.
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The table below summarizes stock option transaclions pursuant to our plans (share data in thousands):

2007 2006 20035
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Outstanding al
beginning of

VEAT i 8,901 $15.12 12,710 $13.57 6,175 S17.10

Granted................. 728 $35.72 1,853 $24.11 8,648 $11.91

Exercised ............. (1,699) $13.39 (5.118) $14.33 (1,178) $15.52

Cancelled ............. (203} $17.29 (454) $17.15 (935) $19.12
Outstanding at

end of year......... 817 $17.36 8,991 $15.12 12,710 813.57
Exercisable at

end of year......... 3,393 $15.45 1,764 $15.95 3,896 $17.17

As of December 31, 2007, stock options outstanding at the end of the period had a weightled average
contractual life of 3.8 years and an aggregate intrinsic value of $56 million. Options exercisable at the end of the
year had a weighted average contractual life of 3.7 years and an aggregate intrinsic value of $28 million.

The fair value of options is determined at the grant date using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing
model, which requires us 10 make several assumptions. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury
yield curve in effect for the expected term of the option al the time of grant. The dividend yield on our common
stock is assumed to be zero since we historically have not paid dividends and have no current plans to do so in the
future. The market price volatility of our common stock is based on the historical volatility of our common stock
over a time period equal to the expected term of the option and ending on the grant date. The expected tife of the
options is based on our historical experience for various work groups. We recognize expense only for those option
awards expected to vest, using an estimated forfeiture rate based on our historical experience. The forfeiture rate
may be revised in future periods if actual forfeitures differ from our assumptions. The weighted-average fair value
of options granted during the year ended December 31 was determined based on the following weighted-average

assumptions:
2007 2006 2005
RiSk-1Tee INtEreSH FALE ......c.coiviererieeeeccece s 4.9% 4.7% 3.4%
Dividend yield ... s 0% 0% 0%
Expected market price volatlity of our common stock ... 57% 63% 74%
Expected life of options (YEars).........cocnnnnieiincveeen e 39 34 3.7
Fair value of options granted..........ccooineeneninininnneenecninenns $16.95 $11.52 $6.47

The total mtrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $45
million and $81 million, respectively, and was immaterial during the year ended December 31, 2005,
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The following tables summarize the range of exercise prices and the weighted average remaining
contractual life of the options outstanding and the range of exercise prices for the options exercisable at December
31, 2007 (share data in thousands):

Options Quitstanding

Weighted
Range of Average Remaining Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life (Years) Exercise Price

£5.96-511.87 282 1.5 $11.64
$11.89 4,807 39 $11.89
$11.96-820.31 1,142 3.8 $19.43
$21.24-356.81 1,586 4.1 $33.49
$5.96-556.81 7,817 3.8 $17.36

Options Exercisable

Range of Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Exercisable Exercise Price
$5.96-511.87 159 S11.55
§11.89 2,401 S11.89
$11.96-520.31 428 S18.64
$21.24-556.81 405 $34.70
$5.96-$56.81 3,393 $15.45

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. All of our employees (including CMI employees) are cligible to
participate in the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. At the end of each fiscal quarter, participants may purchase
shares of our common stock at a discount of 15% off the fair market value of the stock on either the first day or the
tast day of the quarter (whichever is lower), subject 10 a minimum purchase price of $10 per share. This discount is
reduced 10 zero as the fair market value approaches $10 per share. If the fair market value is below the $10 per
share minimum price on the last day of a quarter, then the participants will not be permitted to purchase common
stock for such guarterly purchase period and we will refund to those participants the amount of their unused payroll
deductions. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, approximately 0.4 million, 0.5 million and 0.6 million shares,
respectively, of common stock were issued 1o participants at a weighted-average purchase price of 527.84, $17.77
and $10.06 per share. respectively. In the aggregate, 3.0 million shares may be purchased under the plan; 1.2
million shares remained available for purchase at December 31, 2007.

Restricted Stock Units. At December 31, 2007, we had three outstanding awards of restricted stock units
("RSUs") granted under our Long-Term Incentive and RSU Program: (1) stock price based RSU awards with a
performance period ending December 31, 2007, (2) profit based RSU awards with a performance period commencing
April 1, 2006 and ending December 31, 2009 and (3) profit based RSU awards with a performance period commencing
January 1, 2007 and ending December 31, 2009.

Stock Price Based RSU Awards. Stock price based RSU awards made pursuant to our Long-Term Incentive
and RSU Program can result in cash payments to our officers if there are specified increases in our stock price over
multi-year performance petiods. Prior to our adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1. 2006, we had recognized no hability
or expense related to our stock price based RSU awards because the targets set forth in the program had not been met.
However, SFAS 123R requires these awards 10 be measured at fair value at each reporting date with the related expense
being recognized over the required service periods, regardless of whether the specified stock price targets have been met.
The fair value was determined using a pricing model until the specified stock price target had been met, and was
determined based on the current stock price thereafier. On January 1, 2006, we recognized a cumulative effect of change
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tn accounting principle to record our liabilily related to the stock price based RSU awards at that date, which reduced
2006 earnings by $26 million (50.29 per basic share and $0.23 per diluted share).

In February 2006, in light of the sacrifices made by their co-workers in connection with pay and benefit
cost reduction initiatives, our officers voluntarily surrendered their stock price based RSU awards for the
petformance period ending March 31, 2006, which had vested during the first quarter of 2006 and would have
otherwise paid out $23 million at the end of March 2006. Of the $26 million total cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle recorded on January 1, 2006, $14 million related to the surrendered awards. Accordingly, upon the
surrender of these awards, we reported the reversal of the $14 million as a reduction of special charges in our statement
of operations. The remaining $12 million of the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle was related to the
stock price based RSU awards with a performance period ending December 31, 2007, discussed below, which were not
surrendered.

During the first quarter of 2006, our stock price achieved the performance target price per share for 1.2 million
stock price based RSU awards with a performance period ending December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, the
liability and related payment amounts were calculaled based on the average closing price of our common stock for the 20
trading days immediately prior to the end of the performance period and an aggregate $29 million was paid out in
January 2008. Following this payout, there are no stock price based RSU awards outstanding.

Profit Based RSU Awards. In 2006, we began to issue profit based RSU awards pursuani to our Long-Term
Incentive and RSU Program, which can result in cash payments to our officers upon the achievement of specified profii-
sharing based performance targets. The performance targets require that we reach target levels of cumulative employee
profit sharing under our enhanced employee profit sharing program during the performance period and that we have net
income calculated in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for the applicable fiscal year. To
serve as a retention feature, payments related 1o the achievement of a performance target generally will be made in one-
third annual increments to participants who remain continuously employed by us through each payment date. Payments
also are conditioned on our having a minimum unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmenis balance at
the end of the fiscal year preceding the date any payment is made as set by the Human Resources Commitiee of our
Board of Directors. 1f we do not achieve the cash targel applicable 10 a payment date, the payment will be deferred until
the next payment date (March 1 of the next vear), subject to a limit on the number of years payments may be carried
forward. Payment amounts will be calculated based on the average closing price of our common stock during the 20
trading days preceding the payment date and the payment percentage set by the Human Resources Committee of our
Board of Direclors for achieving the applicable profit-sharing based performance target.

The following table sets forth information about the profit based RSU awards outstanding at December 31,

2007
2006 Grant 2007 Grani
Grant date ... June 2006 February 2007
Number of awards ... 1.6 million 0.6 million
Performance period.........ccoooveccnercnccneccineenens April 1, 2006~ January 1 2007-
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2009
Cumulative profit sharing argets (range) ......... 30-5225 million 50-3350 million
Payment percentages (range) ........cocecorennienens 0%-337.5% (%-200%
Cash burdle ... $1.125 billion $2.0 billion
First possible payment date..........ccccoovreernennee. March 1, 2008 March 1, 2009

We account for the profit based RSU awards as hability awards. Once it is probable that a profit-sharing based
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performance target will be met, we measure the awards at fair value based on the current stock price. The relaied
expense is recognized ratably over the required service period, which ends on each payment date, afier adjustment for
changes in the then-current market price of our common stock. As of December 31. 2007, we had achieved the highest
cumulative profit sharing target for the profit based RSU awards with a performance period commencing April 1, 2006
and were, therefore, accruing expense based on a payment percentage of 337.5%. We had not achieved any of the
cumulative profit sharing targets for the profit based RSU awards with a performance period commencing January 1,
2007, but we concluded that it was probable that we would achieve the entry level target for those awards during the
performance period, resulting in an estimated payment percentage of 100%.

Impact of SFAS 123R. The impact of adopting SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, including the effects of the vesting and surrender of stock price based RSU awards subsequent
to January 1, 2006, was as follows (in millions, except per share data):

Income
(Expense)

Wages, salaries and related COSIS.....c.oviiiiiiiimre e $ (60)

SPECIAL CHETEES ... .vcvevreseiiet et h s bbb r s s LR ra e _ 14

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle................ {46)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..., _(26)

DIECIEASE QM TIEE IMCOITIE ..oeviiveiisuiaseasseessnrerrrrssseeaseaaeeamceectesibesas s b e s s e ar s e en b e s s e s annsamnenans st e st e sanesnness $_(72)
Decrease in earnings per share:

BASIC o veeeeeeeeeeeeeeueteestseeassamee e ot eseeeeinaabe s fes e s abeeR e e AR RS SE SRR R b Ae AR AR e RS e e R b e pt e n e $(0.80)

DHIUEEA 1ottt st et ere e s e s s eb s s e e e Reanen e b s e seam st as e s s b s s s es s b e sE e A s ann R et en e na et g e 3(0.64)

Total stock-based compensation expense included in wages, salaries and related costs for the years ended
December 3 1. 2007 and 2006 was $75 million and $83 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, $65 million of
compensation cost attributable to future service related to unvested employee stock options and profit based RSU awards
that are probable of being achieved had not yet been recognized. This amount will be recognized in expense over a
weighted-average period of 1.5 years.

The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share for
the year ended December 31, 2005 had we applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
*Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” (in millions, except per share data):

2005

Net 1088, @5 TEPOTtd......ccoov it s $ (68)
Deduct total stock-based employee compensation expense delermined under

SFAS 123t et e et et et (29
INEL 1085, PIO fOFMNA ....veveececemieecerer ettt 5_(97)
Basic loss per share: .

AB TEPOTLEd ..ovvviiiee et s $(0.96})

|32 (o3 (5 w117 DUUTUTURUUUUOUTU U OO U O SR UU SO TUP PP $(1.38)
Diluted loss per share:

ASTEPOTIEA 1.veeeeceeceieiisit it $0.97)

PrO fOFITIA c..ooeeeeeee et ceee ettt e ste st e e s sms e s n e s s e s an s s e mee bbb e s e mane e rar e e aas $(1.39)
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NOTE 9 - ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss (which are ail net of applicable income taxes)
were as follows (in millions):

Defined Benefit Pension and

Retiree Medical Benefits Plans Unrealized
Minimum Unrecognized Unrecognized Gain (Loss)
Pension  Prior Service  Actuarial Gains  on Derivative
Liability Cost (Losses) Instruments Total
Balance at December 31, 2004 ..... $(584) s - 5 - S(3) S (587)
Net change in accumulated other
comprehensive loss................... _(98) - —- _8 {88)
Balance at December 31, 2005..... (680) - - 5 (673)
Net change in accumulated other
comprehensive 10ss........c.co.o. 68 - - (21) 47
Impact of adoption of SFAS 158 .. _b6i2 (237 (760) - {385)
Balance at December 31, 2006 ..... - (237) (760) (16) (1,013)
Derivative financial instruments:
Reclassification into earnings..... - - - 18 18
Change in fair value................... - - - 27 27
Employee benefit plans:
Reclassification of unrecognized
net actuarial loss into
CAMUNES..eevvvvivenrrrerseanereneeneeeas - - 97 - 97
Reclassification of prior service
cost Into eamings ..o - 30 - - 30
Current year prior service cosl.... - (18) - - (18)
Current year actuarial gain.......... - - _354 _ - 354
Balance at December 31, 2007 ..... - 3(22% 3(309) 529 S_(505)

We adopted SFAS No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans, an amendment of FASB Stalements No. 87, 88, 106 and [32(R)" ("SFAS 158"), on December 31, 2006.
Under SFAS 158, unrecognized prior service cost and actuarial gains (losses) related to our defined benefit pension
and retiree medical benefits plans are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss. The prior service cost and
actuarial losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss before applicable income taxes were $250
million and $520 million, respectively, at December 31, 2007 and $262 million and $971 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2006. The minimum pension lability recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss was $914
million before applicable income taxes al December 31, 2005.

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Our employee benefits plans include defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution (inciuding 401(k)
savings) plans and a consolidated welfare benefit plan, which includes retiree medical benefits. Substantially ail of
our domestic employees are covered by one or more of these plans.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans. Benefits under our defined benefit pension plans are based on a
combination of years of benefit accrual service and an employee's final average compensation. Under the collective
bargaining agreement with our pilots ratified on March 30, 2005, which we refer 1o as the "pilot agreement,” future
defined benefil accruals for pilots ceased and retirement benefits accruing in the future are provided through two
pilot-only defined contribution plans. As required by the pilot agreement, defined benefit pension assets and
obligations related to pilots in our primary defined benefit pension plan (covering substantially all U.S. employees
other than Chelsea Food Services ("Chelsea") and CMI employees) were spun out into a separate pilot-only defined
benefit pension plan, which we refer to as the "pilot defined benefit pension plan." On May 31. 2005, future benefit
accruals for pilots ceased and the pilot defined benefit pension plan was "frozen.” As of that freeze date, all existing
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accrued benefits for pilots (including the right to receive a lump sum payment upon retirement) were preserved in
the pilot defined benefit pension plan. Accruals for non-pilot employees under our primary defined benefit pension
plan continue,

Retiree Medical Benefits Plans. Our retiree medical programs are self-insured arrangements that permit
retirees who meet cerlain age and service requirements to continue medical coverage between retirement and
Medicare eligibility. Eligible employees are required to pay a portion ot the costs of their retiree medical benefits,
which in some cases may be offset by accumulated unused sick time at the time of their retirement. Plan benefits
are subject to co-payments, deductibles and other limits as described in the plans. We account for the retiree
medical benefits plan under SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits other than
Pensions,” which requires recognition of the expected cost of benefits over the employee's service period.

Obligation and Funded Status. Our pension and retiree medica! benefits obligations are measured as of
December 31 of each year. The following table sets forth the changes in projected benefit obligation of the defined
benefit pension and retiree medical benefits plans at December 31 (in millions):

Defined Retiree
Benefit Pension Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Accumulated benefit obligation.........occovovvciicccne 52,180 $2.510 N/A N/A
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ................... $2,697 $2,630 5216 8250
SEIVICE COSLo..niiniiiiiiiiccci it sae e eeae s sreeas 6l 59 11 12
INIETESE COSL.cuuirirrinerireirrere et sercnrs 158 146 14 14
Plan amendments........cccooiimicn e - - 18 -
Actuarial (gains) 108S€5....ccvvniiiiivesnnirrcninii, (347) 163 8 {49)
Participant contributions...........cooivviiiiinnnies - - 1 1
Benefits Paid.....ccoovceicieeccecee e (39 (90 (16) (12)
SEHIBIMEIMS 1.ueveeereivrirrreeeeeesessmeseeeereeenee e e e cresieens (157) 210 _ - -
Benefit obligation at end of year ... $2.353 32,697 $252 $216

Congress enacted, and the president signed into law on December 13, 2007, a change in the mandatory
retirement age for our pilots from age 60 to 65. We have, for actuarial purposes, made the assumption that the
majority of our pilots will work beyond age 60 and will not begin receiving their pension payments (or lump-sum
distribution} at the previously assumed age 60. When combined with year-over-year increases in the discount rate
and the lump sum conversion inlerest rate used to determine our pension liability, as well as our contributions to the
plans and returns on plan assets, we recorded a decrease in our unfunded pension liabilities as of December 31,
2007.

The retiree medical benefits plan and certain supplemental defined benefit pension plans are unfunded,
although we have investments in COLI products that support our obligations under certain of the supplemental plans
(see note 6). The following table sets forth the change in the fair value of the defined benefit pension plans’ assets at
December 31 (in millions):

2007 2006
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year................. $1,545 §1.421
Actual gain on plan assets..........cocvvvcinriin i, 150 180
Employer contributions, including benefits

paid under unfunded plans.........cocooviiiiiniiniinnns 338 249

Benefits paid.......c.occceeeverereeneerreirmecnc e (59) (90)
Lump sum settlements ..., (157) (215)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year..........ccovvvennennee 51817 51,545
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The unfunded portion of the defined benefit pension and retiree medical benefits liabilities were recognized
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31 as follows (in millions):

Defined Retiree
Benefit Pension Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Accrued payroll ... 5 2 $ 3 $ 17 $ 13
Accrued pension liability ... 534 1,149 - -
Accrued retiree medical benefits ... - - 235 203
Funded status of the plans - net underfunded ............... $336 31,152 $252 $216

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as components of
net periodic benefit expense at December 31, 2007 were as follows (in millions):

Defined Retiree

Benefit Pension Medical Benefits
PriOT SEIVICE COSL vereeeeee e e ceeeiitasts st aesis srerasasassvessrenanenanenas $ 41 $209
Actuanial (gaing) 108SeS.......oo s 8567 (47

Unrecognized prior service cost is expensed using a straight-line amortization of the cost over the average
future service of employees expected to receive benefits under the plans. The following table sets forth the amounts
of unrecognized prior service cost and net actuarial loss recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss expected
to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit expense during 2008 (in millions):

Defined Retiree
Benefit Pension Medical Benefits
PriOT SEIVICE COSE oot iiiisenasssssiesesesesenessareesrraneen 310 $21
Actuarial (£ain) LosS........oovevievieririneieecci e $31 (1)

The following actuarial assumptions were used to determine our benefit obligations at December 31:

Defined Retiree
Benefit Pension Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted average assumed
AISCOUNL FALE....ovivivieereeenre e emeneaes 6.31% 5.92% 6.02% 5.76%
Weighted average rate of
COMPENSALioN INCTEASE ..o 2.30% 2.30% - -
Health care cost trend rate (1)..ccooooveeiiiniinicicnnn - - 8.00% 8.00%

(1) The December 31, 2007 health care cost trend rate is assumed to decline gradually to 5% by 2014.
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Net periodic defined benefit pension and retiree medical benefits expense for the year ended December 31
included the following components (in millions):

Defined Benefit Pension Retiree Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

ServICe COSLrnininnirrerrrernernereerereenns $ 6l 559 $ 86 $11 $12 58
Interest Cost.......oocviin e 158 146 151 14 14 13!
Expected return on plan assets.......... (137) (122} (124) - - -
Amortization of unrecognized

net actuarial 1oss ...o...cvveeeveviviiniennnn 68 68 73 (2) - -
Amortization of prior service cost .... _10 _ 9 _ 11 20 20 15
Net periodic benefit expense ............ 160 160 197 43 46 34
Settlement charges (included in

special charges)......o..cooovvnieeccnnnn 31 59 40 - - -
Curtailment loss (included in

special charges).......ooooieiivieeeeene - - .43 - _- _-
Net benefil eXpense ........ccoceceveveeenee. $.191 $219 $.280 $43 546 $34

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recorded non-cash settlement charges totaling $31 million, $59 miilion
and $40 mitlion, respectively, related to lump sum distributions from our benefit pension plans to pilots who retired.
SFAS No. 88 , "Employer's Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits" ("SFAS 88"), requires the use of settlement accounting if, for a given year, the cost of all
seltlements exceeds, or is expected to exceed, the sum of the service cost and interest cost components of net
periodic pension expense for a plan. Under settlement accounting, unrecognized plan gains or losses must be
recognized immediately in proportion to the percentage reduction of the plan's projected benefit obligation.

In March 2005, we recorded a $43 million non-cash curtailment charge in accordance with SFAS 88 in
connection with freezing the portion of our defined benefit pension plan related to our pilots, SFAS 88 requires
curtailment accounting if an event eliminates, for a significant number of employees, the accrual of defined benefits
for some or all of their future services. In the event of a curtailment, a loss must be recognized for the unrecognized
prior service cost associated with years of expected future service thai will no longer be recognized for benefit
accrual purposes.

The following actuarial assumptions were used to delermine our net periodic benefit expense for the year
ended December 31:

Defined Benefit Pension Retiree Medical Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Weighted average assumed

discount Fate. ..o 5.95% 5.78% 5.91% 5.76% 5.37% 5.75%
Expected long-term rate of retumn

on plan assets......i e 8.26% 8.30% 9.00% - - -
Weighted average rate of

COMPENSAlion MCIEase . ....ccevurrrirniscreenes 2.30% 2.25% 2.48% - - -
Health care cost trend rate (1)................. - - - 8.00% 9.00% 9.00%

{1) The 2007 health care cost trend rate is assumed 1o decline gradually to 5% by 2010.
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A one percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following effect
(in millions):

One Percent One Percent
Increase Decrease
Impact on 2007 retiree medical benefils expense................. $3 $(3)
Impact on accrued retiree medical benefits as of
December 31, 2007 ... e $23 $(22)

The defined benefit pension plans' assets consist primarily of equity and fixed-income securities. As of
December 31, the asset allocations by category were as follows:

2007 2006
S, @QUILIES. et 49% 50%
International equIties ..........cooooiriiie e 22 22
Fixed INCOME 1ot et 22 22
L0 1] T2 O RSOOSR SRR 7 _6
TOtL ..o s 100% 100%

We develop our expected long-term rate of return assumption based on historical experience and by
evaluating input from the trustee managing the plans' assets. Our expected Jong-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on a target allocation of assets, which is based on our goal of earning the highest rate of return while
maintaining risk al acceptable levels. The plans strive 10 have assets sufficiemly diversified so that adverse or
unexpected results from one security class will not have an unduly detrimental impact on the entire portfolio. We
regularky review our actual asset allocation and the pension plans’ invesiments are periodically rebalanced to our
targeted allocation when considered appropriate. Plan assets are allocated within the following guidelines:

Expected Long-Term

Percent of Total Raite of Return
U.S. equilies ovvivneceeeeenenee 35-55% 9%
International equities.............. 15-25 9
Fixed income........ccorvvrisirnnns 15-25 7
OhEr .o 0-15 12

Funding requirements for defined benefit pension plans are determined by government regulations. During
2007, we contributed $336 million to our defined benefil pension plans, which exceeded the minimum funding
requirement of $187 million during that calendar year, We expect o contribute approximately $257 miilion to our
defined benefit pension plans during 2008, but we have the flexibility to fund only the minimum requirement during
that calendar year of approximately $140 million.
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We project that our defined benefit pension and retirce medical plans will make the foliowing benefit
payments, which reflect expected future service and include expected lump sum distributions, during the year ended
December 31 {in millions):

Defined Retiree
Benefit Pension Medical Benefits
2008 e S 102 $17
2000 .. e 129 17
2010 e e e ene 156 18
2011 e nee s 182 19
2002 oo e s 191 20
2013 through 2017 ... 1,067 121

Defined_Contribution Plans for_Pilots. As required by the pilot agreement, two pilot-only defined
contribution plans were established effective September 1, 2005. One of these plans is a money purchase pension
plan -- a type of defined contribution plan subject to the minimum funding rules of the Internal Revenue Code.
Contributions under this plan are generally expressed as a percentage of applicable pilot compensation, subject to
limits under the Internal Revenue Code. The initial employer contribution to this plan was based on applicable
compensation for a period beginning July 1, 2005. The other pilot-only defined contribution plan is a 401(k) plan
that was established by transferring the pilot accounts from our pre-existing primary 401(k) plan (covering
substantially all of our U.S. employees other than CMI employees) to a separate pilot-only 401(k) plan. Pilots may
make elective pre-tax and/or post-tax contributions 10 the pilot-only 401(k) plan. In addition, the pilot agreement
calls for employer contributions to the pilot-only 401(k) plan based on pre-iax profits during a portion of the term of
the pilot agreement. To the extent the Internal Revenue Code limits preclude employer contributions called for by
the pilot agreement, the disallowed amount will be paid directly 10 the pilots as current wages under a corresponding
nonqualified arrangement. Our expense related to the defined contribution plans for pilots was $69 million, $49
million and $20 million in the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Other 401(k) Plans. We have two other defined contribution 401 (k) employee savings plans in addition to
the pilot-only 401(k) plan, one 401{(k) plan covering substantially all domestic employees except for pilots
(beginning in 2005) and one 401(k) plan covering substantially all of the employees of CMI. During the second
quarter of 2005, company matching contributions were terminated for substantially all employees in these plans
other than flight atiendants, mechanics and CMI employees subject to collective bargaining agreements. Company
matching contributions for flight attendants were subsequently terminated in the first quarter of 2006. Company
matching contributions are made in cash. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, total expense for
these defined contribution plans was $5 million, $4 million and 522 million, respectively.

Profit Sharing Program. Our profit sharing program. which will be in place through December 31, 2009,
creates an award pool for employees of 30% of the first $250 million of annual pre-tax income, 25% of the next
$250 million and 20% of amounts over $500 million. For purposes of the program, pre-tax net income excludes
unusual or non-recurring items and is calculated prior to any costs associated with incentive compensation for
executives with performance targets determined by the Human Resources Committee of our Board of Directors.
Payment of profit sharing 1o participating employees occurs in the fiscal year following the year in which profit
sharing is earned and the related expense is recorded. Substantially all of our employees participate in this program
except for officers and management directors. We recognized $172 million and $115 million of profit sharing
expense and related payroll taxes in 2007 and 2006, respectively. This amount is included in wages, salaries and
related costs in our consolidated siatements of operations.
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

Income tax benefit {expense) for the year ended December 31 consisted of the following (in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Federal:
CUITEN o1 eene et ae e e aenes $ (3) S 5 -
Deferred ...coovev e (198) (132) (5)
State:
CUITENH 1.eoevcvee e (2) 2 -
Deferred .......cooiivivmvnnieeeeeeesieinae (17) (10 {3
Foreign:
CUITENL oveee e (N (nH -
Deferred .....coovirivinevnvencccecce e - - (1)
Valuation allowance ..........cocoevevvvvvcvecseeceenens _114 142 _9
Total income tax benefit (expense) .............. 3(107) S__- S__-

The reconciliations of income tax computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate 1o income 1ax
benefit (expense) for the years ended December 31 are as follows (in millions):

Amount Percentage
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Income tax benefit (expense)

al United States statutory rates ............ $(198) $(129) $24 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax benefit (expense),

net of federal benefit.........oocveeeeerncennens (12) 4) 2 2.1 1.1 34
Non-deductible loss on contribution

of Holdings stock to defined benefit

PENSION Plan.. ..o - - (27 - - (39.6)
Meals and entertainment disallowance.. (6) (6) (N I.1 1.6 (11.0)
Valuation allowance ........cceocvivicinicnnne 114 142 9 (20.1) (38.4) 13.8
OLNEE coev e e _5 _(3 _( 0.7 07 (1.6)
Income 1ax benefit (expense).........cco..... $(107) S__- $_ - 18.8% _0.0% 0.0%

For financial reporting purposes, income tax benefits recorded on losses result in deferred tax assets.
Beginning in the first quarter of 2004, we concluded that we were required to provide a valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets due to our continued losses and our determination that it was more likely than not that such
deferred tax assets would ultimately not be realized. As a result, our losses subsequent to thal point were not
reduced by any tax benefit. Consequently, we also did not record any provision for income taxes on our pre-lax
income in 2006 or 2007 because we utilized a portion of the net operating loss carryforwards ("NOLs") for which
we had not previously recognized a benefit. In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a special non-cash tax charge
of $104 million o increase the valuation allowance to be fully reserved for certain NOLs, expiring in 2008 through
2011, which more likely than not will not be realized prior to their expiration. We have approximately $3.4 billion
of additional NOLs, which expire between the years 2020 and 2025, available for use to offset future cash income
taxes.

In 2005, we contributed shares of Holdings common stock, valued at $130 million, to our primary defined
benefit pension plan. For tax purposes, our deductions were limited to the market value of the shares contributed. Since
our tax basis in the shares was higher than the market value at the time of the contributions, the nondeductible portion
increased our tax expense by $27 million,

65



Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the related amounts used for income tax purposes.
Significant components of our deferred tax liabilities and assets as of December 31 were as follows (in millions):

2007 2006
Fixed assets, inlangibles and spare pars ..., 51,789 $1.627
OUREE, MEL i et b e st e sanasas s 21 173
Gross deferred 1ax Habilllies .. ...ccovvveernoriene e 1,810 1.800
Net operating 10ss carryforwards.......cccooovviiniiiinenniinicniiececnns (1,384) (1.503)
Pension Hability ...t (1531 (452)
Accrued BabilIEs. ... e (349) (293)
Basis in substdiary StOCK.......ooevceiiire e - (21)
Gross deferred taX @S5S ..o e (1.884) (2,269)
Valuation allOWaNEE ...ccccoevrver e ccrnnereessvnransscsreesnessnesaesassemcceceeecenne 174 469
Net deferred tax Hability ....ocoocooiveviiiecre e 100 -
Less: current deferred tax @sS€1.......cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiciiieicriecinrsiciiressis e venesasens (259) (165)
Non-current deferred tax liablity ..o $_359 5165

Section 382 of the internal Revenue Code ("Section 382") imposes limitations on a corporation's ability to
utilize NOLs if it experiences an "ownership change." In general terms, an ownership change may result from
transactions increasing the ownership of certain stockholders in the stock of a corporation by more than 50
percentage poinis over a three year period. In the event of an ownership change, utilization of our NOLs would be
subject to an annual limitation under Section 382 determined by multiplying the value of our stock at the time of the
ownership change by the applicable long-term tax-exempt rate {which is 4.49% for December 2007). Any unused
annual limitation may be carried over to later years. The amount of the limitation may, under certain circumstances,
be increased by built-in gains held by us at the time of the change that are recognized in the five year period after the
change. If an ownership change had occurred as of December 31, 2007, our annual NOL utilization would have
been limited to approximately $97 million per year, before consideration of any built-in gains.

Activity in our deferred lax asset valuation allowance for the year ended December 31 was as follows (in
millions):

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of YEar .........cocoovveeicinmenervcnres s § 469 $478 $388
Valuation allowance (utilized) provided for taxes related to:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ..o (114) (142) (N
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..., - 10 -
ltems recorded directly to accumulated other
COMPTERenSIVE J0SS ..o vemieree e et (187 (18) 35
Adoption of SFAS 158 ...t - 142 -
Increase in net deferred tax assets upon settlement of
IRS EXAMINALIONS oo eetirieie e eeee e sc e ee e e e e s e sese s b s - - 59
L6111 =1 TS U T OTOUTUPOURO PO _6 _(h _5
Balance at end of year ... S_174 $.469 5478




To the extent deferred tax assets are ultimately realized, $160 million of the deferred tax valuation
allowance will be allocated 10 reduce routes and airport operating rights or credited directly to additional paid-in
capital.

During 2006, we resolved all matters raised by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") during its examination
of our federal income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001. The settlement of these matters
did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial condition or liquidity. Our federal income tax
returns for years afier 2003 remain subject to examination by the IRS. Our state income tax returns for the same periods
generally remain subject to examination by state authorities.

We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 48"), effective January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in the financial statements and requires the impact of a tax position 10 be recognized in the
financial statements if that position is more likely than not of being sustained by the taxing authority. The adoption of
FIN 48 did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Our unrecognized tax benefits were primarily related o state tax issues in various jurisdictions and were not
material at December 31, 2007 or 2006. We do not expect a material change in these unrecognized tax benefits during
2008. We recognize interest and penalties related 1o unrecognized tax benefits within interest expense and other non-
operating income (expense), respectively, in our consolidated statement of operations. Such amounts were not material
in any of the three years ended December 31, 2007.

NOTE 12 - SPECIAL CHARGES

Special charges for the year ended December 31 were as follows (in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Gain on sale of aircraft and aircrafi-related credits ...t $(22) 5(18) $(16)
Pension setilement charges (see Note F0) ..., 3l 59 40
Pension curtaitment loss (see Note 10)....ooooiiiiinens - - 43
Pilot long-term disability charge ..o 4 - -
Surrender of stock price based RSU awards (see Note 8} ............ _ - 4 -
Total special Charges ... s $13 3 27 567

Gain _on sale of aircraft and aircrafl-related credits. During 2007, we entered into agreements lo sell 15
owned Boeing 737-500 aircrafl. We also entered into an agreement to terminate the leases and arranged for the sale
of five leased Boeing 737-500 aircrafl. We delivered three of the owned aircraft in the fourth quarter and received
cash proceeds of $44 million, resulting in gains of $28 million. The remaining 17 aircraft are scheduled for delivery
10 the purchasers by the end of 2008. We will operate each aircrafl until shortly before its delivery date. These
transactions are subject to customary closing conditions, some of which are outside of our control, and we cannot
give any assurances that the closing of these transactions will occur. Based on the terms of these transactions, we do
not believe that there is any impairment of these aircrafl, 1n 2005 and 2006, we reduced our accruals for future lease
payments and return conditions related to permanently grounded aircraft following negotiated settiements with the
aircraft lessors in an improved aircraft market.

Pilot Long-Term Disability Charge. Congress enacled, and the president signed inlo law on December 13,
2007, a change in the mandalory retirement age for our pilots from age 60 1o 65. Because of the extension of the
mandalory retirement age, we recorded an additional 34 million liability for the long-term disability plan for our
pilots.

NOTE 13 - INVESTMENT IN OTHER COMPANIES

At December 31, 2007, investment in other companies included our investment in Copa. We also previously
had investments in Holdings and ARINC Incorporated ("ARINC").
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Copa. At December 31, 2007. we held 4.4 million shares of Copa Class A common stock with a carrying value
of $63 millton and a market value of $164 miliion, although there are contractual limitations on our ability to dispose of
this asset. This investment represents a 10% interest in Copa. The carrying amount of our invesiment exceeds the
amount of underlying equity in Copa's net assets by $8 million. This difference is treated as goodwill and is not
amortized.

In July 2006, we sold 7.5 million shares of the Class A common stock of Copa for $156 million in cash. We
recognized a gain of $92 milhion on this sale. The sale decreased our percentage ownership in Copa from 27% to 10%,
resulting in a $14 million decrease in the associated goodwill balance.

In December 2005, we sold 9.1 million shares of Class A common stock in the initial public offering ("IPO") of
Copa. The sale decreased our percentage ownership in Copa from 49% to 27%. resulting in a $17 million decrease in the
associated goodwill balance. We received $172 million in cash from the IPQ and recognized a gain of $106 million.

We account for our interest in Copa using the equity method of accounting because of our continued ability to
significantly influence Copa's operations through our alliance agreements with Copa and our representation on Copa's
Board of Directors. We record our equity in Copa's earnings on a one-quarter lag. Copa's results of operations on a
stand-alone basis for the year ended December 31 were as follows (in millions):

2006 2005
REVENUE .ooieieieeccceeeee st rese v b tsnerensassassrasassasseans $851 $609
Operating income 166 109
NEUINCOIMIC oottt e bbb na b sreasans 134 83

Copa's balance sheet information a1 December 31, 2006 was as follows (in millions):

Current aSSEIS. .....eoemeeee s eireasies $ 291
Total ASSELS ...ceerer e rerirerverarerrinasnrnens 1,255
Current liabilities......ccocvevervvnrrernvirnrens 340
Stockholders’ equity ........ccovvivicrinne. 372

Holdings. In January 2007, we sold substantially all of our shares of the common stock of Holdings, the
parent company of Expressfet, 1o third parties for cash proceeds of $35 million. We recognized a gain of $7 million
in the first quarter of 2007 as a result of these sales. We sold the remaining shares of Holdings common stock in
April 2007 and no longer own any shares of Holdings common stock.

During 20035, we contributed 12.] million shares of Holdings common stock to our defined benefit pension
plan, We recognized gains of $98 related to these transactions. Following these transactions through the January
2007 transactions, we held an 8.6% interest in Holdings. During this period, we continued to account for our
interest in Holdings using the equity method of accounting because of our continued ability to significantly
influence Holdings' operations through our capacity purchase agreement with ExpressJet (the "Expresslet CPA").

Holdings' results of operations on a stand-alone basis for the year ended December 31 were as follows (in
millions):

2006 2005
REVEIUE ...ooeeieecrei et e s esmaes e vr e e srne s s anbanenes $1,680 $1.563
Operating INCOME ......oooiveeiiiriinrr s 141 157
NELINCOME. ...oeceeeiieeeerecvtestrs et s st serne e sses e s eenre s 93 98
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Holdings' balance sheet information at December 31, 2006 was as follows (in millions):

CUITEIL ASSEES. .. .viiriiriirriiti it e siesiesiiessstasassss s esssssesserssabssasssatessnsnsnns s $349
TOLAL ASSELS ...eveieeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeee et e e e e e e e ee e e me e eeeeeaneseeeenns 637
Current liabilities 135
Stockholders' equity..... 304

ARINC, In July 2007, six major carriers, including us, collectively holding more than 90% of the common
stock of ARINC, entered into a definitive agreement to sell all of such ARINC common stock to an affiliate of The
Carlyle Group, a global private equity firm. ARINC develops and operates communications and information
processing systems and provides systems engineering and other services to the aviation industry and other
industries. The transaction closed in the fourth quarier of 2007 and we received cash proceeds of $30 million. Our
investment in ARINC had no carrying value, resulting in a gain of $30 million.

NOTE 14 - VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Certain types of entities in which a company absorbs a majority of another entity’s expected losses, receives
a majorily of the other entity's expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other
financial interests in the other entity are required to be consolidated. These entities are called "variable interest
entities." The principal characteristics of variable interest entities are (1) an insufficient amount of equity to absorb
the entity's expected losses. (2) equity owners as a group are not able 10 make decisions about the entity's activities,
or {3) equity that does not absorb the entity's losses or receive the entily's residual returns. "Variable interests” are
contractual, ownership or other monetary interests in an entity that change with fluctuations in the entity's net asset
value, As a result, variable interest entities can arise from items such as lease agreements, loan arrangements,
guarantees or service contracls.

If an enlity is determined to be a "variable interest entity,” the enlity must be consolidated by the "primary
beneficiary.” The primary beneficiary is the holder of the variable interests that absorbs a majority of the variable
interest entily's expected losses or receives a majority of the enlity's residual returns in the event no holder has a
majority of the expected losses. There is no primary beneficiary in cases where no single holder absorbs the
majority of the expected losses or receives a majority of the residual returns. The determination of the primary
beneficiary is based on projected cash flows at the inception of the variable interests.

We have variable interests in the following types of variable interest entities:

Aircraft Leases. We are the lessee in a series of operating leases covering the majority of our leased
aircraft. The lessors are trusts established specifically e purchase, finance and lease aircrafl to us. These leasing
entities meet the criteria for variable interest entities. We are generally not the primary beneficiary of the leasing
entities if the lease terms are consistent with market terms at the inception of the lease and do not include a residual
value puarantee, fixed-price purchase option or similar feature thai obligates us 1o absorb decreases in value or
entitles us to participale in increases in the value of the aircraft. This is the case for many of our operating leases;
however, leases of approximately 75 mainline jet aircraft contain a fixed-price purchase option that allows us to
purchase the aircraft at predetermined prices on specified dates during the lease term. Additionally, leases of
substantially all of our 256 leased regional jet aircrafl contain an option to purchase the aircrafi at the end of the
lease term at prices thal, depending on market conditions, could be below fair value. We have not consolidated the
related trusts because, even taking into consideration these purchase options, we are still not the primary beneficiary
based on our cash flow analyses. Our maximum exposure under these leases is the remaining lease paymenis, which
are reflected in future lease commitments in Note 5.

Airport Leases. We are the lessee of real property under long-term operating leases at a number of airports
where we are also the guarantor of approximately $1.7 billion of underlying debt and interest thereon. These leases
are typically with municipalities or other governmental entities, which are excluded from the consolidation
requirements concerning variable interest entities, To the extent our lease and related guaranice are with a separate
legal entity other than a governmental entity, we are not the primary beneficiary because the lease terms are
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consistent with market terms at the inception of the lease and the lease does not include a residual value guarantee,
fixed price purchase option or similar feature as discussed above.

Subsidiary Trust. We have a subsidiary trust that has Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities
outstanding with a liquidation value of $248 million. The trust is a variable interest entity because we have a limited
ability to make decisions about its activities. However, we are not the primary beneficiary of the trust. Therefore,
the trust and the Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities issued by the trust are not reported on our balance
sheets. Instead, we report our 6% Convertible Junior Subordinated Debentures held by the trust as long-term debt
and interest on the notes is recorded as interest expense for all periods presented in the accompanying financial
stalements.

Expresslet CPA. Holdings and Expresslet each meet the criteria for a variable interest entity because the
economic interests we hold in these entities are disproportional to our obligations 1o absorb expected losses or
receive expected residual returns. The variable interests in Holdings and Expresslet include our capacity purchase
agreement, a tax sharing agreement between Holdings and us, a note payable from Holdings to us (which was paid
in full during 2006), converlible debentures issued by Holdings and held by third parties and Holdings common
stock. Our assessment indicated that we were nol the primary beneficiary of Holdings and Expressiet unless our
equily interest in Holdings were 1o be above 41%. Accordingly, we do not consolidate Holdings, See Note 15 for
further discussion of our capacity purchase agreement with Holdings and Expresslet.

NOTE 15 - REGIONAL CAPACITY PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Capacity Purchase Agreement with Expresslet

General. Under (he Expresslet CPA (or the "agreement”), Expresslet flies regional jet aircraft on our
behalf, and we handle scheduling. tickel prices and seat inventories for these flights. In exchange for Expresslet's
operation of the flights and performance of other obligations under the agreement, we pay them for each scheduled
block hour based on an agreed formula. Under the agreement, we recognize all passenger, cargo and other revenue
associated with each flight, and are responsible for all revenue-related expenses, including commissions,
reservalions, catering and passenger ticket processing expenses.

Compensation_and Operational Responsibilities. Under the agreement, we pay Expresslet a base fee for
each scheduled block hour based on a formula that was in place through December 31, 2007. The formula was
designed to provide Expresslet initially with an operating margin of approximately 10% before taking into account
variations in some cosls and expenses that are generally controllable by them, the most significant of which is
wages, salaries and benefits. In addition, Expresslet’s prevailing margin, which is the operating margin excluding
certain revenues and cosls as specified in the agreement, is capped at 10% before cerlain incentive payments.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the block hour rate portion of the compensation we pay to ExpressJet is re-
negotiated annually.

Our future payments under the Expresslet CPA are dependent on numerous variables, and are therefore
difficult to predict. The most important of those variables is the number of scheduled block hours, which takes nto
account the number of Expresslet aircraft and our utilization rates of such aircraft. Set forth below are estimates of
our future minimum noncancelable commitments under the Expresslet CPA. These estimates of our future
minimum noncancelable commitments under the Expresslet CPA do not include the portion of the underlying
obligations for aircraft and facility rent that are disclosed as part of our consolidated operating lease commitments.
For purposes of calculating these estimates, we have assumed (1) that applicable expenses include a 10% margin, (2)
a constant fuel rate of 71.2 cents per galton, including fuel taxes, (3) that we exercise our right to initiate termination
of the capacity purchase agreement on March 31, 2008 with a wind-down beginning in April 1, 2009, (4) an average
daily utilization rate of 10.05 for 2008 through 2010, (5) that cancellations are at historical levels resulting in no
incenlive compensation payable 1o Expresslet and (6) that inflation is 1.7%-1.9% per year. Based on these
assumptions, our future minimum noncancelable commitments under the Expresslet CPA at December 31, 2007
were estimated as follows (in millions):
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$1,929

It is important to note that in making the assumptions used to develop these estimates, we are atlempting to
estimate our future minimum noncancelable commitments and not the amounts thal we currently expect to pay to
ExpressJet. In addition, our actual minimum noncancelable commitments 1o Expresslet could differ materially from
the estimates discussed above, because actual events could differ materially from the assumptions described above.
For example. a 10% increase or decrease in scheduled block hours (whether a result of change in withdrawal dates
of aircrafl or average daily utilization) in 2008 would result in a corresponding increase or decrease in cash
obligations under the Expresslet CPA of approximately 7.8%. or $84 million.

Expresslet's base fee includes compensation for scheduled block hours associated with some cancelled
flights, based on historical cancellation rates constituting rolling five year monthly averages. To the extent that
Expresslet's actual block hours exceed scheduled block hours or its rate of controllable or uncontroliable
cancellations is less than its historical cancellation rate, ExpressJet is entitled 1o additional payments. Expresslet is
also entitled to receive a small per-passenger fee and incentive payments for first flights of a day departing on time
and baggage handling performance. Alternatively, Expresslet is penalized if it does nol meet cerlain performance
levels. Expresslet was charged $1 million in 2007 refated to these factlors. Expresslet earned an additional $3
million and $7 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, as a resuli of betier-than-expected completion rales and other
incentives.

If a change of control (as defined in the agreement) of Expresslet occurs without our consent, the block
hour rates that we will pay under the agreement will be reduced by an amount approximately equal 1o the operating
margin built into the rates.

In accordance with the agreement, Expresslet has agreed 1o meet with us each year to review and sel the
block hour rates to be paid in the following year, in each case based on the formula used L0 set the original block
hour rates (including an initial 10% targeted operating margin). If we and Expresslet cannot come Lo an agreement
on the annual adjustments, we have agreed to submit our disagreement lo arbitration. Since we and Expressiet
could not come to an agreement on the 2007 block hour rates, our disagreement was submitted to binding
arbitration. In July 2007, the arbitration panel rendered its decision, which did not have a material effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations. In addition, the agreement gives each party the right 10
"meet and confer” with the other regarding any material change in the underlying assumptions regarding the cost of
providing services under the agreement and whether the compensation provisions of the agreement should be
changed as a result, but does not require any party (o agree to any change in the compensation provisions. We are
currently in negotiations with Expresslet concerning the block hour rates for 2008 and other related matters.

Capacily and Fleet Matters. Under the Expresslet CPA, we have the right every three years, upon no less
than 12 months' notice to Expresslet, to withdraw 25% of the then-remaining aircrafl covered by the contract, In
December 2005, we gave nolice to Expresslet that we would withdraw 69 of the 274 regional jet aircraft from the
Expresslet CPA because of our belief that the rates charged to us by Expresslet for regional capacity were above the
current market. On May 5, 2006, Expresslet notified us that it would retain all of the 69 regional jets (consisting of
44 ERJ-145XR and 25 ERJ-145 aircrafl) covered by our withdrawal notice, as permitted by the Expresslet CPA.
The withdrawal of the 69 aircrafi began in December 2006 and was completed in the third quarter of 2007.
Expresslet must retain each of those 69 regional jets for the remaining term of the applicable underlying aircrafi
lease, although we remain responsible for all obligations under the head leases covering the 69 withdrawn aircrafi.
As each aircrafl was withdrawn from the Expresslet CPA, the implicit interest rate used to calculate the scheduled
lease payments that Expressjet makes to us under the applicable aircraft sublease was automatically increased by
200 basis points 1o compensale us for our continued participation in Expresslel's lease financing arrangements. We
recognize the related rental income we receive from Expresslet as other revenue in our consolidated statements of
operations.
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Under the ExpressJet CPA, Expresslet has the option to fly any of the withdrawn aircraft it retains for
another airline or under Expresslet's own flight designator code (in either case subject Lo its agreement with us
prohibiting Expresslet from flying under its or another carrier's code in or out of our hub airports during the term of
the Expressiet CPA). So long as we are Expresslet's largest customer, if ExpressJet enters into an agreement with
another major carrier (as defined in the Expresslet CPA) to provide regional airline services on a capacity purchase
or other similar economic basis for more than ten aircrafi, we are entitled to the same or comparable economic terms
and conditions,

Term of Agreement. The Expresslet CPA currently expires on December 31, 2010, but allows us 10
terminate the agreement at any time upon 12 months’ notice, or at any time without notice for "cause” (as defined in
the agreement). We may also terminate the agreement at any time upon a material breach by Expresslet thal does
not constitute cause and continues for 90 days after notice of such breach, or without notice or opportunity to cure if
we determine that there is a material safety concern with Expresslet’s flight operations. We have the unilateral
option to extend the term of the agreement with 24 months’ notice for up to four additional five-year terms through
December 31, 2030.

Service Agreements, We provide various services 10 Expressiel and charge them at rates in accordance
with the Expresslet CPA. The services provided to ExpressJet by us include loading fuel into aircraft, certain
customer services such as ground handling and infrastructure services, including insurance, technology, real estate
and environmental affairs. Prior 10 2007, we also provided treasury, human resources, internal corporate
accounting, tax, payroll, accounts payable and certain risk management services to Expresslet. For providing these
services, we charged Expresslet approximately $88 million, $105 million and $101 million in 2067, 2006 and 2005,
respeclively.

Leases. As of December 31, 2007, Expresslet leased all 274 of its aircraft under long-lerm operating leases
from us. Expressletl's lease agreements with us have substantially the same terms as the lease agreements between
us and the lessors and expire between 2013 and 2022. Expresslet leases or subleases, under various operating
leases, ground equipment and substantially all of its ground facilities, including facilities at public airports, from us
or the municipalities or agencies owning and controlling such airports. [f Expresslet defaults on any of ils payment
obligations with us, we are entitled to reduce any payments required to be made by us to Expresslet under the
ExpressJet CPA by the amount of the defaulied payment. Our total rental income related to all leases with
Expresslet was approximately $360 million, $349 million and $323 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The 2007 total includes $79 million related to the 69 regional jets operated by ExpressJet outside of the Expresslet
CPA and reported as other revenue. Qur aircraft rental income on aircraft flown for us is reported as a reduction to
regional capacity purchase, net.

Income Taxes. In conjunction with Holdings' IPO, our tax basis in the stock of Holdings and the tax basis
of Expresslet's tangible and intangible assets were increased to fair value. The increased tax basis should result in
additional tax deductions available to Expresslet over a period of 15 years. To the extent Expresslet generates
taxable income sufficient to realize the additional tax deductions, our tax sharing agreement with Expresslet
provides that it will be required to pay us a percentage of the amount of tax savings actualiy realized, excluding the
effect of any loss carrybacks. ExpressJel is required to pay us 100% of the first third of the anticipated tax benefit,
90% of the second third and 80% of the last third. However, if the anticipated benefits are nol realized by the end of
2018, Expresslet will be obligated 1o pay us 100% of any benefits realized afier that date. We recognize the benefit
of the tax savings associated with ExpressJet's asset step-up for financial reporting purposes in the year paid to us by
Expresslet due to the uncertainty of realization. We recognized no income from the tax sharing agreement in 2007.
Income from the tax sharing agreement totaled $26 million and $28 mitlion in 2006 and 2003, respectively, and is
included in income from other companies in the accompanying stalement of operalions.

Capacity Purchase Agreement with Chautaugua

During 2007, Chautaugua Alirlines, Inc. ("Chautauqua™). a wholly-owned subsidiary of Republic Airways
Holdings Inc., began providing and operating forty-four 50-seat regional jets as a Continental Express carrier to be
phased in during the year under a new capacily purchase agreement ("the Chautauqua CPA™). As of December 31,
2007, all 44 aircraft were being flown by Chautauqua for us, Under the Chautauqua CPA, we schedule and market
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all of our Continental Express regional jet service provided by Chautauqua. The Chautauqua CPA requires us to pay
Chautauqua a fixed fee, subject to annual escalations, for each block hour flown for its operation of the aircrafl.
Chautauqua supplies the aircraft that it operates under the agreement. The Chautauqua CPA has a five year term
with respect 1o ten aircraft and an average term of 2.5 years for the balance of the aircraft, with the first aircrafl
exiting the agreement in late 2008. In addition, we have the unilateral right 10 extend the Chautauqua CPA on the
same terms on an aircrafi-by-aircraft basis for a period of up to five years in the aggregate for 20 aircrafl and for up
to three years in the aggregate for 17 aircrafl, subject to the renewal terms of the related aircrafi lease.

Capacity Purchase Agreement with CommutAir

In February 2006, we entered into a capacity purchase agreement with Champlain Enterprises, Inc., doing
business as CommutAir (the "CommutAir CPA"), to initially operate fourteen 19-seat Beechcrafi B1900 twin-
turboprop aircraft as a Continental Connection carrier on short distance routes from Cleveland Hopkins beginning in
May 2006. In August 2006, the CommutAir CPA was amended 1o require that the B1900 aircrafl be replaced with
sixteen 37-seat Bombardier Q200 twin-turboprop aircraft beginning in February 2007. The CommutAir CPA has a
term of approximately six years and CommutAir supplies the aircraft that it operates under the agreement.

Capacity Purchase Agreement with Colgan

In February 2007, we selected Pinnacle Airlines Corp.’s subsidiary, Colgan Air, Inc. ("Colgan”), to operate
fifleen 74-seat Bombardier Q400 twin-turboprop aircrafi on short and medium-distance routes from Newark Liberty
International Airport ("New York Liberty") starting in February 2008. Colgan operates the flights as a Continental
Connection carrier under a capacity purchase agreement with us with a term of ten years. Colgan supplies the
aircraft that it operates under the agreement,

NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions that occurred during 2007, 2006 and
2005. other than those discussed elsewhere in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The payments to and
from related parties in the ordinary course of business were based on prevailing market rates and do not include
interline billings, which are common among airlines for transportation-related services.

Northwest Airlines. Northwest Airlines, Inc. holds the sole share of our Series B Preferred Stock. We
have a long-term global alliance with Northwest involving extensive codesharing. frequent flyer reciprocity and
other cooperative activities. The other cooperative activities are considered normal to the daily operations of both
airlines. As a result of these other cooperative activilies, we paid Northwest 528 million, $27 million and $28
millien in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively, and Northwest paid us $13 million, $20 million and 326 million in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Copa Airlines. As of December 31, 2007, we had a 10% interest in Copa. We have a long-term alliance
with Copa Airlines involving extensive codesharing, frequent flyer reciprocity and other cooperative activities. The
other cooperative activities are considered normal to the daily operations of both airlines. As a result of these other
cooperative activities, we paid Copa $1 million in each of 2007, 2006 and 2003, and Copa paid us $10 million, 38
million and $6 million in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT REPORTING

We have two reportable segments: mainline and regional. The mainline segment consists of flights to cities
using larger jets while the regional segment currently consists of flights with a capacity of 50 or fewer seats (for jets)
or 79 or fewer seats (for turboprops). As of December 31, 2007, the regional segment was operated by Expresslet,
Chautauqua and CommutAir through capacity purchase agreements. See Note 15 for further discussion of the
capacity purchase agreements.

We evaluate segment performance based on several factors, of which the primary financial measure is
operating income (loss). However, we do not manage our business or allocate resources based on segment operating




profit or toss because (1) our flight schedules are designed to maximize revenue from passengers flying, (2) many

operations of the two segments are substantially integrated (for example, airport operations, sales and markeling,
scheduling and ticketing) and (3) management decisions are based on their anticipated impact on the overall
network, not on one individual segment.

Financial information for the year ended December 31 by business segment is set forth below (in millions):

Operating Revenue:

Mainline ......ccooveveereisimiemeeeerceeeeenes
Regional ....ccavvveeriiimenrieicrccnns
Total Consotidated ........cccccocvvveennnn.

Depreciation and amortization expense:
Mainling ..o
Regional ...
Total Consolidated ..............ccc.......

Special Charges (Note 12):

Mainhine .......ccoonmin s
Regional ...
Total Consolidated ...............ccoeine

Operating Income (Loss):

Mainlineg ....oovvvevvvrirrecceceecceeeeeene,
Regional ...
Total Consolidated ......cccocoveenvennnn,

Interest Expense:

Mainline .......cccovvviievvvvverrieee s
Regional ........coeeocniiniinivninncnnnnens
Total Consolidated......cccoveeeenneeen.

Interest Income:

Mainline ..o
Regional ......coocevviiiininiiinee,
Total Consolidated ..........ccccccvvennnee.

Income Tax Expense:

Mainhne ...o.ooooviiieeeevr e
Regional ......ocooeviiiec i
Total Consolidated ......ccccoveeeeeeeee.

Net Income (Loss):

Mainling ..o ccreree e
Regional .........covnevvvvnnnniininnninnns
Total Consolidated ..o

The amounts presented above are presented on the basis of how our management reviews segment results.
Under this basis, the regional segment's revenue includes a pro-rated share of our ticket revenue for segments flown
by regional carriers and expenses include all activity related to the regional operations, regardless of whether the
costs were paid directly by us or to the regional carriers. Net income (loss) for the mainline segment includes our
equity in Copa's earnings and gains on the sale of Copa shares and disposition of Holdings shares. Net loss for the
regional segment includes our equity in Holdings' eamings.

2007 2006 2005
............................................. $12.018 $10.907 $ 9.377
............................................. 2214 2.221 1,831
............................................. $14,232 $13,128 S11,208
............................................. S 400 s 378 S 378
............................................. 13 13 {1
............................................. $_413 $_391 S__389
............................................. $ 13 s 27 § 67
e s_13 5_27 S__67
............................................. $ 847 $ 593 $ 215
............................................. (160) (125) (254)
............................................. $_687 S_468 $__(39)
............................................. $ 369 $ 385 $ 393
............................................. 14 16 17
............................................. $_383 $_40] $_410
............................................. $160 S 131 $ 69
............................................. —_ - 3
............................................. 5160 $131 sS__12
............................................. $(139) $ - s -
............................................. 32 - ;
............................................. $(107) S__- S__ -
............................................. $ 601 $ 476 S 189
............................................. (142) (133) (257)
............................................. $_459 S_343 $__(68)
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Information concerning operaling revenue by principal geographic area for the year ended December 31 is
as follows (in millions):

2007 2006 2005

Domestic....cuvvieivivirineens $8,217 $ 7.897 S 6,846
Trans-Atlantic................. 2.969 2,445 2,029
Latin America........counn. 1,931 1,757 1,437
Pacific...oooeeeeeeeeeae i.115 1,029 896
$14,232 $13,128 $11,208

We attribute revenue among the geographical areas based upon the origin and destination of each flight
segment. Our tangible assets and capital expenditures consist primarily of flight and related ground support
equipment, which is mobile across geographic markets and. therefore, has not been allocated.

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Aircraft Purchase Commitments. As of December 31, 2007, we had firm commitments for 91 new Boeing
aircraft scheduled for delivery from 2008 through 2013, with an estimated aggregate cost of $5.1 billion including
related spare engines. In addition to our firm order aircrafl, we had options to purchase a total of 93 additional
Boeing aircraft as of December 31, 2007.

On February 20, 2008, we reached agreement with The Boeing Company to order additional Boemg 777
and 737 aircraft. With these additional orders, but excluding the five previously ordered Boeing 737 aircraft
delivered 10 us in the period from January 1, 2008 through February 20, 2008, we have firm commitments for 111
new aircraft (78 Boeing 737 aircrafi, eight Boeing 777 aircrafl and 25 Boeing 787 aircraft) scheduled for delivery
between February 20. 2008 and the end of 2013, with an estimated aggregate cost of $6.3 billion including related
spare engines. We also have options to purchase a total of 102 additional Boeing aircraft as of February 20, 2008.

As discussed in Note 4, we have obtained financing for 12 Boeing 737-800s and |18 Boeing 737-900ERs,
which we expect to apply to 30 of the 32 Boeing aircrafl scheduled to be delivered to us in 2008, although we may
instead choose to substitute certain Boeing 737-900ER aircraft scheduled 10 be delivered in the first quarter of 2009.
In addition, we have manufaciurer backstop financing for up to 18 (depending on the model selected) of the Boeing
737 aircraft scheduled to be delivered through the end of 2009 and not otherwise covered by the financing described
above. However, we do not have backstop financing or any other financing currently in place for the balance of the
Boeing aircraft on order, including the aircraft we ordered on February 20, 2008. Further financing will be needed
to satisfy our capital commitments for our firm aircrafi and other related capital expenditures. We can provide no
assurance that such further financing will be available.

Heathrow Airporl. We have reached agreements to acquire winter slots at London's Heathrow Airport and
expect 10 pay 393 million in 2008 for these slots. We are also seeking additional slots.

Financings and Guaraniees. We are the guarantor of approximately $1.7 billion in aggregate principal
amount of tax-exempt special facilities revenue bonds and interest thereon, excluding the US Airways contingent
liabitity described below. These bonds, issued by various airport municipalilies, are payable solely from our rentals
paid under long-term agreements with the respective governing bodies. The leasing arrangements associated with
approximately $1.5 billion of these obligations are accounted for as operating leases, and the leasing arrangements
associated with approximately $200 million of these obligations are accounted for as capital leases.

We are contingently liable for US Airways’ obligations under a lease agreement between US Airways and
the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey related to the East End Terminal at LaGuardia airporl. These
obligations include the payment of ground rentals 1o the Port Authority and the payment of other rentals in respect of
the full amounts owed on special facilities revenue bonds issued by the Port Authority having an outstanding par
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amount of $135 miilion at December 31, 2007 and a final scheduled maturity in 2015. If US Airways defaults on
these obligations, we would be obligated to cure the defauli and we would have the right to occupy the terminal after
LiS Airways' interest in the lease had been terminated.

We also had letters of credit and performance bonds relating to various real estate and customs obligations
at December 31, 2007 in the amount of $53 million. These letters of credit and performance bonds have expiration
dates through August 2011.

General Guarantees and Indemnifications. We are the lessee under many real estale leases. It is common in
such commercial lease transactions for us as the lessee 10 agree to indemnify the lessor and other related third parties for
tort liabilities that arise out of or relate 10 our use or occupancy of the leased premises and the use or occupancy of the
leased premises by regional carriers operating flights on our behalf. In some cases, this indemnity extends to related
liabilities arising from the negligence of the indemnified parties, but usually excludes any liabilities caused by their gross
negligence or willful misconduct. Additionally, we typically indemnify such parties for any environmental liability that
arises out of or relates to our use of the leased premises.

In our aircrafi financing agreements, we typicatly indemnify the financing parties, trustees acting on their behalf
and other related parties against liabilities that arise from the manufacture, design, ownership, financing, use, operation
and maintenance of the aircraft and for tort liability, whether or not these liabilities arise out of or relate to the negligence
of these indemnified parties, except for their gross negligence or willful misconduct.

We expect that we would be covered by insurance (subject to deductibles) for most tort liabilities and related
indemnnities described above with respect to real estate we lease and aircrafl we operate.

In our financing transactions that include loans, we typically agree to reimburse lenders for any reduced retums
with respect to the loans due to any change in capital requirements and, in the case of loans in which the interest rate is
based on LIBOR, for certain other increased costs that the lenders incur in carrying these loans as a result of any change
in law, subject in most cases to certain mitigation obligations of the lenders. At December 31, 2007, we had $1.3 billion
of floating rate debt and $288 million of fixed rate debt, with remaining terms of up to 11 years, that is subject to these
increased cost provisions. In several financing transactions involving loans or leases from non-U.S. entities, with
remaining lerms of up to 11 years and an aggregate carrying value of $1.4 billion, we bear the risk of any change in tax
laws that would subject loan or lease payments thereunder to non-U.S. entities to withholding taxes, subject to customary
exclusions. In addition, in cross-border aircraft lease agreements for two Boeing 757 aircraft, we bear the risk of any
change in U.S. tax laws that would subject lease payments made by us to a resident of Japan to withholding taxes,
subject to customary exclusions. These capital leases for two Boeing 757 aircraft expire in 2008 and had a carrying
value of $26 million at December 31, 2007.

We may be required 10 make future payments under the foregoing indemnities and agreements due to unknown
variables related 1o potential government changes in capital adequacy requirements, laws governing LIBOR based loans
or tax laws, the amounts of which cannot be estimated at this time.

Credit Card Pracessing Agreement. Our U.S. bank-issued credit card processing agreement contains financial
covenants which require, among other things, that we maintain a minimum EBITDAR (generally, earnings before
interest, income taxes, depreciation, amortization, aircraft rentals, certain nonoperating income (expense) and special
items) 1o fixed charges (interest and aircrafi rentals) ratio for the preceding 12 months of 1.1 to 1.0. The liquidity
covenant requires us 10 maintain a minimum level of $1.0 billion of unrestricted cash and shori-lerm investments and a
minimum ratio of unrestricted cash and short-term investments to current iabilities at each month end of 0.29 to 1.0.
The agreement also requires us to maintain a2 minimum senior unsecured debt rating of Caa3 as rated by Moody's or
CCC- as rated by Standard & Poor's. Although we are currently in compliance with all of the covenants, failure to
maintain compliance would resuli in our being required to post up to an additional $565 million of cash collateral, which
would materially adversely affect our liquidity. Depending on our unresiricted cash and short-term investments balance
at the time, the posting of a significant amount of cash collateral could cause our unresiricted cash and short-term
investments balance to fall below the $1.0 billion minimum balance required under our $350 million secured term loan
facility, resulting in a default under that facility. During the first quarter of 2007, the bank card processor under this
agreement returned $67 million of our collateral to us. If we cease to comply with the financial covenants discussed
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above or if our unrestricied cash and short-term investments balance falls below $2.0 billion, the bank card processor can
require us to redeposit the collateral.

Employees. As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 42370 full-time equivalent employees.
Although there can be no assurance that our generally good labor relations and high labor productivity will continue,
the preservation of good relations with our employees is a significant component of our business strategy.
Approximately 44% of our employees are represenied by unions. None of our coliective bargaining agreements
become amendable before December 2008.

Environmental Matters. In 2001, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board ("CRWQCB")
mandated a field study of the area surrounding our aircrafi maintenance hangar in Los Angeles. The study was
completed in September 2001 and identified jet fuel and solvent contamination on and adjacent to this site. In April
2005, we began environmental remediation of jet fuel contamination surrounding our aircrafi maintenance hangar
pursuant to a workplan submitted to {and approved by) the CRWQCB and our landlord, the Los Angeles World
Airports.  Additionally, we could be responsible for environmental remediation costs primarily related to solvent
contamination on and near this site.

In 1999, we purchased property localed near our New York Liberty hub in Elizabeth, New Jersey from
Honeywell international, Inc. {"Honeywell") with certain environmenta! indemnification obligations by us 1o
Honeywell. We did not operate the facility located on or make any improvements to the property. In 2005, we sold
the property to Catellus Commercial Group, LLC ("Catellus™) and, in connection with the sale, Catellus assumed
certain environmental indemnification obtigations in favor of us. On October 9, 2006, Honeywell provided us with
a nolice seeking indemnification from us in connection with a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA™)
potentially responsible parly notice to Honeywell involving the Newark Bay Study Area of the Diamond Alkali
Superfund Site alleging hazardous substance releases from the property and seeking study costs. In addition, on
May 7, 2007, Honeywell provided us with a notice seeking indemnification from us in connection with a possible
lawsuit by Tierra Solutions, Inc. ("Tierra Solutions”) against Honeywell relating to alleged discharges from the
property into Newark Bay and seeking cleanup of Newark Bay waters and sediments under the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act. We have notified Honeywell that, at this time, we have not agreed that we are
required to indemnify Honeywell with respect 1o the EPA and Tierra Solutions claims and Honeywell has invoked
arbitration procedures under its sale and purchase agreement with us. Catellus has agreed to indemnify and defend
us in connection with the EPA and Tierra Solutions claims, including any arbitration with Honeywell.

At December 31, 2007, we had an accrual for estimated costs of environmental remediation throughout our
system of $36 million, based primarily on third-party environmental studies and estimates as to the extent of the
contaminalion and nature of the required remedial actions. We have evaluated and recorded this accrual for
environmental remediation costs separately from any related insurance recovery. We did nol have any receivables
related to environmental insurance recoveries at December 31, 2007, Based on currently available information, we
believe that our accrual for potential environmental remediation costs is adequate, although our accrual could be
adjusted in the future due to new information or changed circumstances. However, we do not expect these items 1o
materially affect our results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

Legal Proceedings. During the period between 1997 and 2001, we reduced or capped the base
commissions that we paid to domestic travel agents, and in 2002 we ¢liminated those base commissions. These
aclions were similar 1o those also taken by other air carriers, We are a defendant. along with several other air
carriers, in two lawsuits brought by travel agencies thal purportedly opted out of a prior class action entitled Sarah
Futch Hall d/b/a/ Travel Specialisis v. United Air Lines, et al. (U.S.D.C., Eastern District of North Carolina), filed
on June 21, 2000, in which the defendant airlines prevailed on summary judgment that was upheld on appeal. These
similar suits against Continental and other major carriers allege violations of antitrust laws in reducing and
ultimately eliminating the base commissions formerly paid to travel agents. The pending cases are Tam Travel, Inc.
v. Delia Air Lines, Inc., et al. (U.S.D.C., Northern District of California), filed on April 9, 2003 and Swope Travel
Agency, et al, v, Orbitz LLC et al. (U.5.D.C., Eastern District of Texas), filed on June 5, 2003. By order dated
November 10, 2003, these actions were transferred and consolidated for pretrial purposes by the Judicial Panel on
Multidistrict Litigation to the Northern District of Ohio. On September 14, 2006, the judge for the consolidated
lawsuit issued an order dismissing 28 plaintiffs in the Swope case for their failure to properly opt-out of the Hall
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case. Consequently, a total of 90 travel agency plaintiffs remained in the two cases. On October 29, 2007. the judge
for the consolidated lawsuit dismissed the case for failure to meet the heightened pleading standards established
earlier in 2007 by the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly. The plaintiffs have filed a
motion for reconsideration in the lower court as well as a notice of appeal with the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals.
In each of these cases, we believe the plaintiffs’ claims are without merit, and we intend to vigorously defend any
appeal. Nevertheless, a final adverse court decision awarding substantial money damages could have a material
adverse effect on our resulis of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

We and/or certain of our subsidiaries are defendants in various other pending lawsuits and proceedings and are
subject to various other claims arising in the normal course of our business, many of which are covered in whole or in
part by insurance. Although the outcome of these lawsuits and proceedings (including the probable loss we might
experience as a result of an adverse outcome) cannot be predicted with certainty at this time, we believe, afier consulting
with outside counsel, that the ultimate disposition of such suits will not have a material adverse effect on us.




NOTE 19 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Unaudited summarized financial data by quarter for 2007 and 2006 is as follows (in millions, excepl per
share data):

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2007
Operating revenue..........ocovvvecveeeeeeresrerereeneens 83.179 53,710 33,820 $3.523
Operating income .......co..oveevereneerineeceeeeennenne 64 263 280 8O
Nonoperating expense, Net...........covvverermrrvecnes (42) 3h {39 9
Netincome (1085)......ccceierriciieiniireenierceirsseneesnns 22 228 241 (32)
Earnings (Loss) per share:
BaSIC ..o 5.0.23 $2.35 3247 $(0.33)
Diluted ..o 5021 §2.03 52,13 $(0,33)
2006
OPErating revVenUE......ocoveveeeverrreeesvrnesereenes 52,947 $3,507 83,518 $3,157
Operating inCOME ....occcvvenrierioriraneiereisessrnnns 11 244 192 20
Nonoperaling income (expense), net............. 30 (46) 45 (46)
income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle........cccoeveee. (40) 198 237 (26)
Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle ... {26) - - -
Net Income (LOSS) civvviiiineiiiccverreercersieeeas {66) 198 237 (26)
Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Basic:
Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle.............. 5(0.46) $2.24 $2.64 $(0.29)
Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle .......cocoovviininiinnn {0.30) - _ - _ -
Net Income (LOSS) cvcceceiccrerersienerenseienens $(0.76) $2.24 $2.64 S(1.29
Diluted:
Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle............... 5(0.46) S1.84 $2.17 $(0.29)
Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle ........coovercinenenene (0.30) - - -
Net Income (LOSS) .o cerivsesineine 5(0.76) 5184 $2.117 $(0.29)
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The quarterly operating income amounts were impacled by the following special charges:

2007

Gain on sales of aircraft and aircrafi-related
charges (credits)...........ccceiininiinns
Pension settlement charges

Pilot long-term disability

Total special charges ..........ccovveeiieenn.

2006

Pension settiement charges..............
Surrender of stock price based RS1J
Adircrafi-related charges {credits)
Total special charges ...

March 31

June 30

Three Months Ended
September 30

$ - $ -
7 i2
S_7 $12
S14 $ 8
4) D
$i0 s_1

December 31

$(28)
$(17)

$22

$22

Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a $104 million increase 10 our deferred tax asset
valuation allowance and a gain of $30 million related to the sale of ARINC common stock. In the first quarter of
2007, we recognized a gain of $7 million related 1o the disposition of Holdings common stock. In the third quarter
of 2006, we recorded a gain of $92 million related to the sale of Copa Class A common stock.
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION
Common Stock Information
Our Class B common stock, which we refer 1o as our common stock, trades on the New York Stock Exchange

(“*NYSE™) under the symbol “CAL.” The table below shows the high and low sales prices for our common stock as
reporied in the consolidated transaction reporting system during 2007 and 2006.

Class B
Common Stock
High Low
2007 Fourth Quarter.............c.ccooevvveene $37.79 $21.59
Third QUAEF......vvrvreereeeeereee e $38.79 $26.21
Second Quarter..........ovovrrveeeececeees S44.10 $32.00
First QUArter ......ccoeveveeencrerrrenerane $52.40 $35.22
2006 Fourth QUarter.......c...oooveeeeneeenenene $46.29 $28.56
Third Quarter..........coooeeveieniennae $32.04 $22.03
Second Quarter........oovveeeeeeeeeieane $31.03 §22.51
First Quarter .........coveeeeeeeeeevenecaine $28.90 516.74

As of February 11, 2008, there were approximately 19,510 holders of record of our common stock. We have
paid no cash dividends on our common stock and have no current intention of doing so. Our agreement with the union
representing our pilots provides that we will not declare a cash dividend or repurchase our outstanding common stock for
cash unti] we have contributed at least $500 million to the pilots' defined benefit pension plan, measured from March 31,
2005. Through February 20, 2008, we have made $445 million of contributions to this plan.

Our centificate of incorporation provides that no shares of capital stock may be voted by or at the direction of
persons who are not U.S. citizens unless the shares are registered on a separate stock record. Our bylaws further provide
that no shares will be registered on the separate stock record if the amount so registered would exceed U.S. foreign
ownership restrictions. United States law currently limits the voting power in us (and other U.S. airlines) of persons who
are not citizens of the United States to 25%.

Headquarters Financial Infermation
Continental Airlines, Inc. To obtain a Form 10-K or other financial information,
1600 Smith Street visit the company’s Web site al: www.continenial.com or
Houston, TX 77002 wrile:
(713) 324-5000 Investor Relations
Continental Airlines, Inc.
P.O. Box 4607
Houston, TX 77210-4607
Transfer Agent and Registrar Independent Auditors
BNY Mellon Sharcowner Services Emst & Young LLP
480 Washington Boulevard 5 Houston Center
Jersey City, NJ 07310-1900 1401 McKinney, Suite 1200
Attn: Shareholder Services Houston, TX 77010

Telephone: (888) 711-6201
http://www bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd
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NYSE Corporate Governance Matters

Our Chief Executive Officer, as required under Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE Listed Company Manual,
must certify to the NYSE each year whether or not he is aware of any violation by the company of NYSE Corporale
Governance listing standards as of the date of the certification. On July 10, 2007, our Chief Executive Officer submitted
such a certification to the NYSE. which stated that he was not aware of any violation by Continental of the NYSE
Corporate Governance listing standards.

On February 21, 2008, Continental fited its 2007 Form 10-K with the SEC, which included as Exhibits 31.1
and 312 the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certifications required under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Performance Graph
The following graph compares the cumulative total retun on our common stock with the cumulative total

returns (assuming reinvestment of dividends) on the Amex Airline Index and the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index as
if $100 were invested in the common stock and each of those indices on December 31, 2002,

600

—4a— CAL

— = Amex Airtine A
500

—— S8P 500

400

300

200

100

o : . 1
12/31/2002 1213172003 1213172004 12/31/2005 1213112006 12/31/2007
12/31/02 | 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/08 12/31/06 12/31/07
Continental ATTTIIES oot e eeee e imeeesaressaesieeen S100.000 $2244)| $186.76| $293.79| $368.97| S 306.90
Amex AIINE INACX oot ra s eesne e $100.00| $158.46] $155.241 $140.73]| $150.79} § 88.87
SEP 500 INACX ..eveieieeeiireeee et ecre v s s arsravmraasese et s arssaaesend $100.00f $12836| $142.14| $149.01| $172.27] § 181.72
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTEVE OFFICERS

Board of Directors

Name

Kirbyjon H. Caldwell ...............
Lawrence W. Kellner..............
Douglas H. McCorkindale............
Henry L. Meyer Il ..o
Oscar Munoz .......occocevvvennien

George G. C. Parker ................

Jeffery A. Smisek ...
Karen Hastie Williams.............

Ronald B. Woodard .................

Charles A. Yamarone ..............

Executive Officers

Name

Lawrence W. Kellner...............
Jeffery A. Smisek .....ccooveennne
James Compton ...
Jeffrey J. Misner ..o
Mark J. Moran ...
Jennifer L. Vogel ..........coovvee.

Title & Prncipal Employer

Senior Pastor

The Windsor Village-United Methodist Church

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Continental Airlines, Inc.

Retired Chairman

Gannett Co., Inc. (an international news and information company)
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
KevCorp (banking)

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

CSX Corporation (freight transportation)

Dean Witier Distinguished Professor of Finance (Emeritus), Graduate School
of Business

Stanford University

President

Continental Airlines, Inc.

Senior Counsel

Crowell & Moring LLP (law firm)

Chairman of the Board

MagnaDrive Corporation (a supplier of new engine power transfer
technology applications for industrial equipment)

Executive Vice President

Libra Securities, LLC (institutional broker-dealer)

Title
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

President

Executive Vice President - Marketing

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Executive Vice President - Operations

Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Secretary and Chief Compliance
Officer
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